
October 26, 2023 

Board Agenda - 1 -

I hereby certify that the following agenda 
was posted at least 72 hours prior to 
the time of the meeting so noticed 
below at 24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, 
Lake Forest, California. 

DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, 
Secretary of the El Toro Water 
District and the Board of Directors 
thereof 

AGENDA 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 26, 2023 

7:30 a.m. 

BOARDROOM, DISTRICT OFFICE
24251 LOS ALISOS BLVD., LAKE FOREST, CA 92630 

This meeting will be held in person. As a convenience for the public, the meeting may 
also be accessed by Zoom and will be available by either computer or telephone audio 
as indicated below. Because this is an in-person meeting and the virtual component is 
not required, but rather is being offered as a convenience, if there are any technical 
issues during the meeting, this meeting will continue and will not be suspended. 

Members of the public who wish to comment on any item within the jurisdiction of the 
District or on any item on the agenda, may attend the meeting in person at the District’s 
office or may observe and address the Meeting by joining at this link:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89375055831   (Meeting ID: 893 7505 5831). 

Members of the public who wish only to listen to the telephonic meeting may dial in at 
the following numbers (669) 900-6833 or (346) 248-7799 with the same Meeting ID 
noted above. Please be advised the Meeting is being recorded. 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER – President Havens  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Vice President Monin 

ROLL CALL (Determination of a Quorum) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89375055831


October 26, 2023 

Board Agenda - 2 - 
 

 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public may address the Board at this time or they may reserve this 
opportunity with regard to an item on the agenda, until said item is discussed by the 
Board. Comments on other items will be heard at the time set aside for “COMMENTS 
REGARDING NON-AGENDA ITEMS.” The public may identify themselves when called 
on and limit their comments to three minutes. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
Determine need and take action to agendize items which arose subsequent to the 
posting of the Agenda. (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a 
two-thirds vote of the Board members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board 
members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present.) 
 
1. Consider Board Member’s Request for Remote Participation (AB 2449) 
 
2. Presentation of Awards, Recognitions, Certifications and Introductions 
 

a. Service Awards 
 
Mr. Cafferty will recognize and congratulate Yesenia Ocampo, Maintenance 
Worker I, for 5 years of service with the District. 
 
Mr. Cafferty will recognize and congratulate Josh Perez, Electrical 
Systems/SCADA Supervisor for 10 years of service with the District. 
 
Mr. Cafferty will recognize and congratulate Christopher Magill, Truck Driver, 
for 20 years of service with the District. 

 
3. Consent Calendar 

 
(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a 
Board member or a member of the public requests separate action or discussion 
on a specific item) 

 
a. Consider approving the minutes of the September 26, 2023 Special Board 

meeting 
 

b. Consider approving the minutes of the September 28, 2023 Board meeting 
 
Recommended Action:   The Board will consider approving the above Consent 
Calendar. 
 

4. Director Reports for Meetings Attended (Oral Report) 
 
 
 



October 26, 2023 

Board Agenda - 3 - 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION ITEMS 
 
5. Resolution No. 23-10-2 Modifying Standing and External Organization 

Board and Staff Assignments for the remainder of Calendar Year 2023 
(Reference Material Included) 

 
Staff will review and comment on Resolution No. 23-10-2 modifying Standing and 
External Organization Board and Staff Assignments for the remainder of calendar 
year 2023. 
 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 23-10-2 
modifying Standing and External Organization Board and Staff Assignments for 
the remainder of calendar year 2023. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-10-2 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

MODIFYING STANDING AND EXTERNAL ORGANIZATION 
BOARD AND STAFF ASSIGNMENTS 

FOR THE REMAINDER OF CALENDAR YEAR 2023 
 
 

GENERAL MANAGER INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

6. General Manager’s Monthly Report (Reference Material Included) 
 

Staff will review and comment on the General Manager’s Monthly Report. 
 
7. Legislative Reports (Reference Material Included) 

Staff and General Counsel will review and comment on the Legislative reports. 
 

8. Public Education and Outreach Report (Reference Material Included) 

 Staff will review and comment on the Public Education and Outreach report. 
 

9. Water Use Efficiency Report (Reference Material Included) 

Staff will review and comment on the Water Use Efficiency Report. 
 

10. SOCWA Report (Reference Material Included) 

a. SOCWA Board Meeting – October 5, 2023 

b. SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting – October 12, 2023 
 

c. SOCWA Special Board Meeting – October 24, 2023 

 
 
 



October 26, 2023 

Board Agenda - 4 - 
 

 
 

11. Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) Report 
(Reference Material Included) 

a. MWDOC Planning/Operations Meeting – October 2, 2023 

b. MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop – October 4, 2023 

c. MWDOC Admin/Finance Meeting – October 11, 2023 

d. MWDOC Board Meeting – October 18, 2023 

e. MWDOC Managers Meeting – October 19, 2023 
 

12. South Orange County Agencies Group Meeting (Reference Material Included) 

Report on the September 28, 2023 South Orange County Agencies Group 
Meeting. 
 

13. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Report 
(Reference Material Included) 

Report on the October 11, 2023 LAFCO meeting 
 
14. ISDOC Meetings Report (Reference Material Included) 

Report on the October 3, 2023 ISDOC Executive Committee meeting 
 
15. WACO Meetings Report (Reference Material Included) 

a. Report on the October 6, 2023 WACO meeting 

b. Report on the October 17, 2023 WACO Planning meeting 
 
COMMITTEE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
16. Dates to Remember for October/November 2023  (Reference Material 

Included) 

 
COMMENTS REGARDING NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) to consult with legal 
counsel and staff regarding the following existing litigation: Plaintiff, 
Marlene Jean v. Defendants, Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. et al., Superior 
Court of Los Angeles Case No. 19STCV25234. 

 

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) to conduct the 
General Manager’s annual performance evaluation. 

 



October 26, 2023 

Board Agenda - 5 - 
 

 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION (Legal Counsel) 

 
Mr. Granito will provide an oral report on the Closed Session. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The agenda material for this meeting is available to the public at the District's Administrative Office, which is located 

at 24251 Los Alisos Blvd., Lake Forest, Ca. 92630. If any additional material related to an open session agenda item 

is distributed to all or a majority of the board of directors after this agenda is posted, such material will be made 
available for immediate public inspection at the same location. 

 
Request for Disability-Related Modifications or Accommodations 

 
If you require any disability-related accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this 
public meeting, please telephone the District's Recording Secretary, Polly Welsch at (949) 837-7050, extension 225 
at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to said meeting. If you prefer, your request may be submitted in writing to El Toro 
Water District, P.O. Box 4000, Laguna Hills, California 92654, Attention: Polly Welsch. 



September 26, 2023 

Special Bd Minutes 1 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
September 26, 2023 

  
  
 At approximately 7:30 a.m. President Havens called the regular meeting to order. 

 President Havens led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

Committee Members KAY HAVENS, KATHRYN FRESHLEY, MIKE GASKINS, 

and MARK MONIN participated. 

Also participating were DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, General Manager, JUDY 

CIMORELL, Human Resources Manager, SHERRI SEITZ, Public Relations Manager, 

GILBERT J. GRANITO, General Counsel, WYATT MCCLEAN, Board Candidate, FRED 

ADJARIAN, Board Candidate, and POLLY WELSCH, Recording Secretary.  

Oral Communications/Public Comment 

 There were no comments. 

ETWD Board of Director Office Appointment 

 President Havens read the General Qualifications in order to be a candidate for 

Director, California Water District Board.  She further stated that both Board candidates 

qualify for these categories. 

 President Havens stated that the District is 63 years old, serving approximately 

48,000 customers, and maintains three services (potable water service, sewer service, 

and recycled water service).  She further stated that the District has 61 highly valued 

employees, and there are committee assignments, conferences, and policy dinners that 

the Board members attend. 

 President Havens stated that the individual candidates would be requested to 

leave the Board room and then interviewed one at a time.   



September 26, 2023 

Special Bd Minutes 2 

At approximately 7:45 a.m. Ms. Welsch escorted Mr. Adjarian and Mr. McClean 

to the employee breakroom. 

Mr. McClean was randomly chosen to be the first interview.   Ms. Welsch 

escorted Mr. McClean from the employee breakroom back to the Board room. 

Mr. McClean was asked a series of questions by each of the Board members 

who took individual notes during the interview.  After the interview questions were 

answered, Ms. Welsch escorted Mr. McClean back to the employee breakroom. 

At approximately 8:10 a.m. Mr. Adjarian was escorted by Ms. Welsch from the 

employee breakroom back to the Board room. 

 Mr. Adjarian was asked a series of the same questions by the Board members.   

 At approximately 8:45 a.m. the Board took a short recess. 

 At approximately 9:00 a.m. regular session resumed, and the two candidates 

were returned to the Board room. 

 President Havens asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Freshley made a motion, seconded by Director Monin to 

appoint Fred Adjarian to the Board vacancy seat. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Monin   aye 
 Director Gaskins   aye 
 Director Freshley   aye 
 President Havens   aye 
 
 President Havens and the Board thanked the candidates for their interest in 

serving on the ETWD Board and for their time today in interviewing for the vacancy. 

Oath of Office 

 At approximately 9:07 a.m. Mr. Cafferty administered the Oath of Office to 

Director Adjarian. 



September 26, 2023 

Special Bd Minutes 3 

Notification to Registrar of Voters Office and to the Orange County Clerk of the Board 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the District’s Board Secretary would now forward the 

newly appointed Director’s Oath of Office form to the Orange County Clerk of the Board 

and the Registrar of Voters office. 

 President Havens asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Freshley made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin to 

authorize the District’s Board Secretary to forward the newly appointed Directors Oath 

of Office form to the Orange County Clerk of the Board and Registrar of Voters office. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Monin   aye 
 Director Gaskins   aye 
 Director Freshley   aye 
 Director Adjarian   aye 
 President Havens   aye 
 
 At approximately 9:08 a.m. Mr. McClean thanked the Board for their 

consideration and left the meeting. 

Director Adjarian thanked the Board for their support in appointing him to the 

Board vacancy. 

Adjournment 
 
 There being no further business the Special Board meeting was closed at 

approximately 9:11 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted 

 
 
 
  
POLLY WELSCH 
Recording Secretary 

 
 



September 26, 2023 

Special Bd Minutes 4 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
KAY HAVENS, President 
of the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary 
of the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 1 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

September 28, 2023 

 

President Havens called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the ELTORO 

WATER DISTRICT to order at 7:30 a.m.  

 President Havens led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

Directors KAY HAVENS, MIKE GASKINS, MARK MONIN, FRED ADJARIAN, 

and KATHRYN FRESHLEY participated. 

Also present were DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, General Manager, HANNAH FORD, 

Engineering Manager, JUDY CIMORELL, Human Resources Manager, SCOTT 

HOPKINS, Operations Superintendent, VISHAV SHARMA, CFO, VU CHU, Water Use 

Efficiency Analyst, MIKE MIAZGA, IT Manager (Zoom), VICKI TANIOUS (Zoom), 

GILBERT J. GRANITO, General Counsel, and POLLY WELSCH, Recording Secretary. 

Determination of a Quorum 

 Roll Call: 

 Director Monin  here 
 Director Gaskins  here 
 Director Freshley  here 
 Director Adjarian  here 
 President Havens  here 
 
 Five Board members were present for the meeting, therefore a quorum was  

determined. 

 

 

 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 2 

Oral Communications/Public Comments 

 Mr. Cafferty read aloud to the Board a mailed request from a resident in Lake 

Forest for the Board to consider creating a policy to fine water wasters. 

Items Received Too Late to be Agendized 

President Havens asked if there were any items received too late to be 

agendized.  Mr. Cafferty replied no. 

Consent Calendar 

 President Havens asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Freshley made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin to 

approve the Consent Calendar. 

Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Monin  aye 
 Director Gaskins  aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 Director Adjarian  aye 
 President Havens  aye 
 
Director Reports for Meetings Attended 

 Director Monin stated that he attended the CSDA conference, the ISDOC 

Executive Committee meeting, the WACO meeting, the MWDOC/MET Directors 

workshop, the CASA conference, the WACO Planning Committee, the MWDOC 

Admin/Finance meeting, the Special Board meeting, the OCCOG meeting, and the 

regular ETWD Board meetings. 

 Director Gaskins stated that he attended the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting, the RRC meeting, the Board luncheon, the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, 

the SOCWA Board meeting, the WACO meeting, the MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, 

the MWDOC Board meeting, the ETWD Special Board meeting, the SOCWA Special 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 3 

Board meeting, the South County Agencies meeting, TV-6 program, and the regular 

ETWD Board meetings. 

 Director Freshley stated that she attended the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting, the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, the LAFCO meeting, the MWDOC 

Board meeting, the ETWD Special Board meeting, the SOCWA Special Board meeting, 

the SOCWA Board meeting, the SOCWA Finance meeting, the Laguna Woods City 

Council meeting, two Laguna Hills City Council meetings, WACO, ACWA Engineering 

Committee meeting, and the regular ETWD Board meetings. 

 President Havens stated that she attended the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting, the Board luncheon, the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, WACO, the 

MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, the ETWD Special Board meeting, the Agenda 

Review meeting, the University of California Landscape Planning Irrigation Trials 

meeting, the MWDOC Board meeting, and the regular ETWD Board meetings. 

General Manager Action Items 

Election of Vice President 

 President Havens asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Gaskins made a Motion, seconded by Director Freshley to elect 

Director Monin as Vice President for the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District 

to serve for the remainder of the 2023 calendar year. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Vice President Monin aye 
 Director Gaskins  aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 Director Adjarian  aye 
 President Havens  aye 
 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 4 

General Manager Information Items 

General Manager’s Monthly Report 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that going forward staff will be modifying a few things that are 

currently in the General Manager’s report.   

 Mr. Cafferty stated that staff is working on creating an Operations Report which 

would include the Water Quality reports and would be in the Engineering Committee 

meeting. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that there is an error in the current Water Quality Report, of 

the Nitrite level of .74 that should be .074. 

 President Havens asked when the District experienced a spill with the techite 

pipe that broke.  Mr. Cafferty replied that the Spill Summary should have been updated 

to reflect that spill, and staff will correct the Summary. 

Legislative Reports 

 There were no comments.  

Public Education and Outreach Report 

 Ms. Seitz stated that regarding the Adopt-a-Channel project, she emailed and 

is waiting on a response and signage. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that staff will do a reach out to our HOA’s and apartment 

complexes with some information on runoff. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that the newsletters have been sent out. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that Mr. Cafferty conducted a history and behind the scenes 

look at what it takes to maintain a reservoir this large at the R-6 for the Orange Cunty 

Grand Jury.  She further stated that the tour was part of the MWDOC/MET Water 

Supply and Infrastructure trip. 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 5 

 Ms. Seitz stated that staff will attend an information table at the LWV Gate 11 

Fall meeting on September 26th.  She further stated that staff will present “How water 

gets to your tap” at their monthly meeting on September 20th. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that staff will have a booth at the City of Mission Viejo South 

County Disaster Preparedness Expo on October 21st at the Village Green at Norman 

Murray Community and Senior Center. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that is partnering with MNWD, IRWD, SMWD, SCWD, TCWD, 

LBCWD and cities of Aliso Viejo, Dana Point, Laguna Beach, Laguna Hills, Laguna 

Niguel, Laguna Woods, Lake Forest, Mission Viejo, Rancho Santa Margarita, San 

Clemente, and Unincorporated Orange County for the H20 for HOA’s event on 

October 26th. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that Vu Chu will conduct workshops on how to find, fix and 

prevent leaks in and around the home on October 24th and October 28th. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that ETWD is co-hosting with MWD and G3 Green Gardeners 

Group a series of free online landscape workshops. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that staff is co-hosting with MWDOC a Girl Scout Tour at the 

Plant on November 4th.  She further stated that staff will co-host with MWDOC a Boy 

Scout Tour on December 9th at the Plant. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that ETWD will provide drought tolerant centerpieces for the 

City of Lake Forest Chamber of Commerce Law and Order luncheon in November.  

She further stated that ETWD will provide the water trailer to race attendees at the 

City of Lake Forest Chamber of Commerce Elf Yourself 5K Race on November 18th 

at the Lake Forest Sports Park. 

 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 6 

 

Water Use Efficiency Report 

 Mr. Chu stated that consumption increased, but the effects from tropical storm 

Hilary was not included in this billing period.  He further stated that compared to August 

2022, potable consumption, single family, and LWV were up. 

SOCWA Reports 

 Director Freshley stated that some progress is being made at SOCWA.  She 

further stated that some of the issues are being resolved. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that there was discussion on extending the PC-2 agreement 

to the end of the fiscal year.  He further stated that they also discussed PC-15, PC-

17, and the General Fund allocation. 

 Director Freshley stated that at the SOCWA Finance meeting they discussed 

OPEB costs and the responsibility of paying for it. 

 Ms. Ford stated that they discussed the Use Audit, and the Air Vac 

Replacement on the ETM for less than $20,000 at the SOCWA Engineering 

Committee Meeting. 

MWDOC Reports 

 Director Freshley stated that the long range finance report was interesting. 

 President Havens stated that WEROC finally got approval for their mobile EOC 

and is waiting on purchase. 

LAFCO  

 Director Freshley stated that it was a short meeting with nothing to report. 

 

 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 7 

ISDOC 

 Director Monin stated that the quarterly luncheon is approaching and is in 

person.  He further stated that they amended the bylaws to be more streamlined, they 

discussed the website, and membership dues.  

WACO 

 Director Monin stated that there was an ACWA update, and earthquake 

discussions.    President Havens suggested future topics of Climate Change Whiplash 

in the Water Industry, and Purified author to discuss Advanced Water Treatment. 

COMMITTEE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

Dates to Remember for September/October 2023 

 There were no comments. 

Comments Regarding Non-Agenda Items 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the ACWA election is complete, with Cathy Green 

President, and Ernie Avila as Vice President. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the SOCEC is having a Chairman’s luncheon on 

November 3rd at the Norman P. Murray Center. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that ACWA’s Committee Structure is requesting who is 

interested in being on which of their Committees.  He further stated that Director 

Freshley is on the Engineering/Energy Committee, Director Gaskins Water Quality, 

and President Havens is also interested, Director Adjarian is interested in the  

Business Development Committee, Director Monin is also interested in the 

Membership Committee. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that he will fill out and submit the form to ACWA by 

tomorrow’s deadline. 



September 28, 2023 

Board Mtg 8 

Attorney Report 

 Mr. Granito reported that there is no need for a Closed Session at today’s 

meeting, and as such Regular Session continued. 

Mr. Granito commented on the recent decision rendered by the California 

Supreme Court in Pico Neighborhood Association’s v. City of Santa Monica which 

concerns the challenge to the City’s at-large election system. 

Adjournment 

 There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was 

adjourned at 8:57 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
   

POLLY WELSCH 
 Recording Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 ____ 
KAY HAVENS, President of  
the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
 
 
 _ 
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and 
the Board of Directors thereof  



RESOLUTION NO. 23-10-2 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

MODIFYING STANDING AND EXTERNAL ORGANIZATION 
BOARD AND STAFF ASSIGNMENTS 

FOR THE REMAINDER OF CALENDAR YEAR 2023 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District deems it to be in 
the best interest of the District to modify the President’s appointment of Board to Standing 
Committee assignments; and  

 
WHEREAS, the list of appointments is attached hereto marked Exhibit "A," and 

made part of this Resolution.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, as follows: 

 
RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District hereby 

confirms the Standing and External Organization Board and Staff Assignments as listed 
in Exhibit “A”.  

 
 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 26th day of October 2023.  

 

 
  
KAY HAVENS, President 
El Toro Water District and of the 
Board of Directors thereof 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 _ 
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary 
El Toro Water District and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 



EXHIBIT A  
RESOLUTION 23-10-2 

  

BOARD/STAFF MEMBER ORGANIZATIONAL AND STANDING COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS – 2023 
 

ETWD COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN ALTERNATE FREQUENCY 

Engineering Committee Freshley Adjarian 
Monthly 

(Full Board) 

Finance & Insurance Committee Gaskins Monin 
Monthly 

(Full Board) 

Agenda Review Committee Havens Monin Monthly 

Regional Reclamation Committee (RRC) Freshley Gaskins Monthly 

Community Advisory Group (CAG) Gaskins Adjarian Quarterly 

ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE ALTERNATE FREQUENCY 

WACO Planning Monin Adjarian Monthly 

SOCWA Board Freshley Gaskins Monthly 

SOCWA Finance Committee Cafferty Freshley Monthly 

ISDOC Monin Gaskins Monthly 

LAFCO Freshley Gaskins Monthly 

Santiago Aqueduct Commission Gaskins Adjarian Quarterly 

South OC Agencies Group Gaskins Havens Bi-Monthly 

South OC Watershed Management Area 
Executive Committee 

Havens Monin Quarterly 

ADDITIONAL COMMITTEES THAT MEET ON AN OCCASIONAL OR AS NEEDED BASIS 

ETWD COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN ALTERNATE FREQUENCY 

Computer Technology Freshley Monin Annual/As Required 

Audit Committee Monin Freshley Annual/As Required 

Budget Committee Havens Gaskins Annual/As Required 

Human Resources Committee Gaskins Monin Annual/As Required 

Water Quality Committee Gaskins Havens Annual/As Required 

JPIA Gaskins Freshley Semi-Annual 

ACWA Energy/Engineering Committee Freshley N/A As Required 

ACWA Education/Finance Committee Monin N/A As Required 

ACWA Water Quality Committee Gaskins N/A As Required 

 
 

DIRECTORS WILL NOT BE COMPENSATED FOR ATTENDING MEETINGS NOT LISTED ABOVE UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY 
THE BOARD PRESIDENT, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF: OCWA Luncheon Meetings, WateReuse Luncheon Meetings, WACO, 
CAG, ISDOC Quarterly Luncheon, MWDOC Quarterly Policy Forum events, MWDOC/Met Directors Workshop, MWDOC 
Elected Officials Forum, MWDOC Board Meeting, MWDOC Administration & Finance Committee Meeting, MWDOC Planning 
& Operations Committee Meeting, MWDOC/OCWD Joint Planning Committee Meeting, So Cal Water Committee, South 
Orange County Economic Coalition, Lake Forest Chamber of Commerce Events, City Council meetings in the 5 cities served 
by the District, Supervisor/Congressmen meetings in the areas served by the District. 

 



GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

October 2023 

 

I. OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 
 

• MWDOC Board Meeting 

• MWDOC A&F Committee Meeting 

• MWDOC Managers Meeting 

• MWDOC / OCWD Joint Planning Committee Meeting 

• SOCWA Board Meeting 

• MET / MWDOC AMP Shutdown Meeting 

• Meeting with CSDA CEO, Finance Director and Communications Director 

• City of Lake Forest Leadership Academy Presentation 

• Meeting with ESource to Discuss Annual Water Audit 

• Orange County Water Summit 

• South Orange County Agencies Group 

• InPipe Energy Meeting 

• Meeting with Bob Rogers (Customer) Regarding Monthly Bills 

• ETWD President / Vice President / GM Meeting 

• ETWD RRC Meeting 

• ETWD Agenda Review Meeting 

• ETWD Regular Engineering & Finance Committee Meetings 

• ETWD Regular Board Meeting 

 
 
II. DOMESTIC AND RECYCLED WATER SALES 
 

Actual domestic sales for the year-to-date as of September 30, 2023 are 1,869.33 
acre-feet. This compares to year-to-date budgeted domestic sales of 2,207.00 
acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects a decrease 
of 337.67 acre-feet. Actual sales are 113.58 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date 
actual sales for the same period. 

 
Actual recycled sales for the year-to-date as of September 30, 2023 are 528.40 
acre-feet. This compares to year-to-date budgeted recycled sales of 640.00 acre-
feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects a decrease of 
111.60 acre-feet. Actual sales are 23.60 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date 
actual sales for the same period. 



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
cr

e 
F

ee
t

F.Y. 2023-2024

POTABLE WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
cr

e 
F

ee
t

F.Y. 2023-2024

RECYCLED WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
6,700.00 AF

YTD Budget
2,207.00 AF

Actual
1869.33 AF      

Under Budget
337.67 AF

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
1,485.00 AF

YTD Budget
640.00 AF

Actual
528.40 AF      

Under Budget
111.60 AF 



SEP 2023

Customer Service Activity Report

Regular Service Calls SEP 2023 SEP 2022 Telephone Calls SEP 2023 SEP 2022

Serviceman Dispatched to Read, 

Connect/Disconnect Service 57 90

Change of Service:                               

Connections and Disconnections
71 67

Field Investigations: Billing / Payments & Graph Inquires 152 200

Check for leaks - calls to CS 

Office:(irrigation,meter,street leaks)

Assistance with online payments and 

ETWD's portal (cc, e-checks, other.)
33 14

  Customer Responsible 13 15

  District Responsible 7 8 Variance / Adjustment Inquiries 10 14

  None found/other 8 12
Variance / Adjustment Requests 

Processed
6 7

High Reads Checked - High Consumption 

(Billing Dept.)

Ordinance Infraction / Water Waste 

Complaints
0 4

   Cust Leaks: 16  No Leaks: 25 62 28

Check Stopped Slowed Meters-Low 

Consumption (Billing) 12 7
Outside Utility Districts 47 60

Re-Check Read
10 8

Phone calls Transfer to other 

Departments within ETWD
28 40

Ordinance Infraction 1 4 Phone calls for the Board of Directors 0 5

Recycled Water 0 0 Recycled Water 0 0

Water Quality:  Taste / Odor / Color  2 4 Water Quality Taste - Odor - Color 2 10

Phone response: 2 Field response: 0 Leaks / Breaks 13 16

Construction (Hydrant) Meters issued 0 0 Construction Meter calls (Hydrant) 3 1

Sewer - Odor/Stoppage/ Manhole Covers 1 4 Sewer Problems (odor / spills) 2 2

Meter Box: 2 Lids: 5 / Covers Replaced: 1 8 20

Meter Box Clean, Digout 0 5
Backflow / Cross Connection 

(questions or yearly testing forms)
0 6

Raised Meter Box 0 3

ETWD facilities inquiries: 

Boxes/Covers/Lids/Hydrants/Pump 

Stations/Graffiti/ "Gen. Maint"
4 4

Trim Bushes / Meter Obstruction 2 19

General Maintenance Response 1 11
Tyco (ADT) Calls                            

(Alarms to ETWD facilities)
0 0

Fire Hydrants:  Hit / Leaks / Caps 1 1 ATT Calls (access to tower sites) 0 8

Pressure(psi) Checks / Reads 3 2 SCE Calls (access to tower sites) 2 0

CSSOV (Angle Meter/Ball Valve/Gate 

Valve/Globe Valve) chk,repair,replaced
6 8

Pager Calls specifically for Pump 

Stations - SCADA
0 0

AMS angle-meter-stop replace/repair 1 0

Bees Removed 4 1

Backflow / Cross Connection 0 2 Payment Extensions 17 22

Fogged Registers 0 26

Delinquent Payment Calls to 

Customer 's prior to shut off per billing 

calendar (automatic courtesy dialer)  
31 30

OMCOP: Old Meter Change - Out Program 
1 6

Return Calls from customers left on 

our voice mail system. Ext 500
15 6

Other: (uncommon non-maintenance calls) 10 5 Email Correspondence: 32 65

On-Call After Hrs. CS  Response 19 21
Maintenance Service Order Requests 

(bees, psi, fogged-dirty registers)
8 9

# Posting Notice & 24 Hr. Door Hangers 

Hung
83 47

Misc. (other: employment, deliveries, 

sales calls)
25 21

#Shut Offs/Disconnect for Non-Payment 

(DNP) 5 11
Payment Processing Fee Complaints

0 0

Removed Meter 0 3
Customers Complaints non bill 

related.
1 0

New Meter 5 5 Billing Disputes 0 0

Unread Meters 3 4
Total Field Investigations 325 380 Total Telephone Calls 502 611

 

Uncollectible Accounts: Credit Card Payments SEP 2023 SEP 2022

Budget YTD 4,251.00$   5,001.00$   REGULAR 1,317 $253,309.77 1,087 $182,168.33

Actual YTD 301.00$      7,628.00$   



Water Year 
2022-2023

WATER SUPPLY CONDITIONS REPORT
Produced by the Water Resource Management Group  

State Water Project ResourcesQuestions? Email mferreira@mwdh2o.com

https://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR

81%

C
a

p
a

c
ity 2

.0
3

 M
A

F

San Luis Reservoir

1.66 MAF
(09/30/2023)

585 TAF
(10/01/2022)

1.23 MAF
(10/01/2022)

2.60 MAF
(09/30/2023)

73%

C
a

p
a

c
ity 3

.5
5

 M
A

F

Lake Oroville

All stats are preliminary and may be subjected to change.

3.0
1.8
3.2
13.8
5.9

San Joaquin Valley Runoff (MAF)

2022-2023

2020-2021

2019-2020

Average (1991-2020)

2021-2022

2022-2023 is 3rd wettest since 1901

9.7
6.4
10.8
24.1
17.7

Sacramento River Index Runoff  (MAF)

2020-2021

2019-2020

2022-2023

Average (1991-2020)

2021-2022

D
E

C
 

2
0

2
2 • Initial SWP allocation is 5% 

Table A plus human health 
and safety

J
A

N
 

2
0

2
3

• 9 atmospheric rivers landed 
between Dec 26 and Jan 17

• SWP allocation increases to 30%

F
E

B
 

2
0

2
3

• Blizzard warning for southern 
California – first time since 1989

• SWP allocation increases to 35%

M
A

R
 

2
0

2
3

• 31 atmospheric rivers reached 
California from Oct to Mar

• DWR starts offering Article 21 water
• SWP allocation increases to 75%

A
P

R
 

2
0

2
3 • SWP allocation increases to 100% –

first time since 2006

M
A

Y
 

2
0

2
3

• DWR uses the Kern River intertie to 
redirect flood water into the California 
Aqueduct – first time since 2006

J
U

N
 

2
0

2
3 • DWR ends the Article 21 allocation 

after 14 weeks – the longest ever

(Map) 
Departure from normal temperature
(Oct 2022 – Sep 2023)

0 +2F-2F-4F

(Map) 
% of normal precipitation 
(Oct 2022 – Sep 2023)

300%

(% April 1 average)
April 5, 2023

Southern Sierra Peak

199%

Northern Sierra Peak
(% April 1 average)
April 11, 2023

162%

5 Station
64.5 in

125%

8 Station
66.6 in

5%

25%

50%

70%

90%

100%

110%

130%

150%

200%

300%

https://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/resapp/ResDetail.action?resid=SNL
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/resapp/ResDetail.action?resid=ORO
https://hprcc.unl.edu/maps.php?map=ACISClimateMaps
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/snowapp/sweq.action
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/snowapp/sweq.action
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/precipapp/get5SIPrecipIndex.action
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/precipapp/get8SIPrecipIndex.action
https://hprcc.unl.edu/maps.php?map=ACISClimateMaps


Water Year 
2022-2023

WATER SUPPLY CONDITIONS REPORT
Produced by the Water Resource Management Group  

Colorado River ResourcesQuestions? Email mferreira@mwdh2o.com

164%

Basin-wide Peak
April 6, 2023

https://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR

114%

Basin-wide
33.9 in

34%

C
a

p
a

c
ity 2

6
.1

 M
A

F

Lake Mead

8.9 MAF
(09/30/2023)

7.3 MAF
(10/01/2022)

5.8 MAF
(10/01/2022)

36%

C
a

p
a

c
ity 2

4
.3

 M
A

F

Lake Powell

8.8 MAF
(09/30/2023)

2024 2025 2026

Surplus 0% 0% 0%

Shortage 100% 93% 77%
Metropolitan 
DCP*

20%       
195 TAF

Lake Mead Shortage/Surplus Outlook

* Chance of required DCP contribution by Metropolitan. Volume is 

average contribution when needed. 

Likelihood based on results from the August 2023 CRMMS in Ensemble 

Mode/CRSS model run. Includes DCP Contributions. 

All stats are preliminary and may be subjected to change.

5.85
3.52
6.09
13.4
9.6

0 5 10 15

Powell Unregulated Inflow (MAF)

2020-2021

2019-2020

2021-2022

Average (1991-2020)

2022-2023

5%

25%

50%

70%

90%

100%

110%

130%

150%

200%

300%

(Map) 
% of normal precipitation 
(Oct 2022 – Sep 2023)

(Map) 
Departure from normal temperature
(Oct 2022 – Sep 2023)

0 +2F-2F-4F-6F

F
E

B
 

2
0

2
3 • Lake Powell water levels drop 

to record lows threatening 
power production

A
P

R
 

2
0

2
3

• Improved hydrologic conditions bump 
Lake Powell operations to balancing 
conditions

• Reclamation publishes a draft 
Supplemental Environmental Impact 
Statement (SEIS) for reservoir operations 
between 2023 and 2026

M
A

Y
 

2
0

2
3 • Lower Basin states request 

Reclamation to consider their proposal 
and the draft SEIS is withdrawn

J
U

L
 

2
0

2
3

• Warmest month on record for Arizona, 
with 31 consecutive days of 110F or 
above in Phoenix

• However, the Upper Colorado River
Basin was cooler than normal in water
year 2022-2023 (map)

A
U

G
 

2
0

2
3

• Hurricane Hilary brings record-breaking rainfall 
and flooding across parts of the southwest, 
including the first ever tropical storm watch for 
southern California

• Reclamation set a Level 1 shortage for Arizona,
Nevada and Mexico for calendar year 2024

S
E

P
 

2
0

2
3

• Since October 2022, Lake Powell gained 44 feet
while Lake Mead gained 21 feet – enough water 
to completely fill Lake Oroville plus the State 
Water Project share of San Luis Reservoir

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/WCIS/AWS_PLOTS/basinCharts/POR/WTEQ/assocHUC2/14_Upper_Colorado_Region.html
https://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/WCIS/AWS_PLOTS/basinCharts/POR/PREC/assocHUC2/14_Upper_Colorado_Region.html
https://www.usbr.gov/lc/region/g4000/riverops/crss-5year-projections.html
https://www.usbr.gov/lc/region/g4000/levels_archive.html
https://hprcc.unl.edu/maps.php?map=ACISClimateMaps


WILL SERVE SUMMARY REPORT

September 2023

PROJECT NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION PHASE CFF

Arbors Access Ramp Adding a 1-1/2” water service connection with backflow protection and 

connecting to the existing sewer system

Close-Out 28,785$                  

Burger Town Sewer 

Connection

Addition of a 4" sewer lateral Construction -$                       

The Village at Laguna Hills 

(Demo Phase)

Demolition of the various sized water services, irrigation services, fire services, 

and sewer services at the former mall site.

Close-Out -$                       

The Village at Laguna Hills 

(Retail Phase)

Installation of various sized water, fire, and sewer services at the former mall 

site.

Plan Check -$                       

The Village at Laguna Hills 

(Central Residential Phase)

Installation of various sized water, fire, and sewer services at the former mall 

site.

Plan Check -$                       

The Village at Laguna Hills 

(Southern Residential Phase)

Installation of various sized water, fire, and sewer services at the former mall 

site.

Plan Check -$                       

Womens Health Pavilion New construction of a health pavilion with water services, irrigation services, 

sewer services, and fire water services.

Close-Out 21,856$                  

Laguna Hills Inn Fire Sprinkler 

Upgrade

Fire System upgrades including conversion of a fire hydrant to private and 

addition of a 6-inch DCDA

Construction -$                       

Moulton Parkway Commercial 

Kitchens

Upgrade the existing domestic service, sewer service and installation of a 

DCDA.

Plan Check Not Yet Calculated

25376 Maximus Group Home Upgrading the water service Plan Check Not Yet Calculated



1 

To: Board of Directors, Municipal Water District of Orange County 

From: Natural Resource Results 

RE: Monthly Board Report – September 2023 

Appropriations 

The government funding situation remains extremely fluid. At the moment (September 26th) it 

looks like the government will likely shut down at midnight on September 30th. The Senate will 

attempt to pass a “clean” Continuing Resolution (CR) but it seems unlikely that the House will 

be able to do so without using Democratic votes, which would threaten Speaker McCarthy’s 

speakership as some members of the House Republican Caucus said that they would try to 

remove him if he took that path, and they potentially have the votes to do so. 

We will provide a real-time update during the workshop-board meeting. 

 Colorado River Salinity Control Fix Act 

Senator Bennet (D-CO) has introduced S. 2514, the Colorado River Salinity Control Fix Act 

which would increase the federal cost-share for salinity control programs and research authorized 

in the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Act of 1974. The bipartisan legislation, which is 

supported by all seven basin states, is cosponsored by Senator Lummis (R-WY), Senator 

Barrasso (R-WY), Senator Padilla (D-CA), Senator Feinstein (D-CA), Senator Sinema (D-AZ), 

Senator Kelly (D-AZ), Senator Romney (R-UT) and Senator Hickenlooper (D-CO). 

The bill is intended to address the funding challenges that have emerged for the salinity control 

program resulting from ongoing drought as much of the non-federal funding for the program is 

generated from the revenue of hydropower sales in the Colorado River Basin. Bill text and a 

letter of support from the Salinity Control Forum are attached.  

Item No. 2a

Page 6 of 71



 
 

 
July 12, 2023 
 
 
 
Chairwoman Stabenow 
Ranking Member Boozman 
Senate Committee on Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry 
 
Dear Chairwoman Stabenow and Ranking Member Boozman: 
 
On behalf of the seven Colorado River Basin States, through their 
gubernatorially appointed representatives to the Colorado River Basin 
Salinity Control Forum (Forum), I hereby convey our unanimous support of 
proposed legislation to amend the current cost-share percentages under 
the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Program (Program).   
 
The proposed changes are needed to resolve deficiencies in the cost share 
generated by power revenue reductions from the drought-stricken 
Colorado River System.  The changes reflect several years of review and 
discussion between the Colorado River Basin States and the Federal 
agencies involved in Program implementation.  
 
The Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Act (Act, 1974, as amended), 
authorizes the construction of projects and other activities to reduce the 
salt load of the Colorado River System.  The Act specifies that “In 
recognition of Federal responsibility for the Colorado River as an 
interstate stream and for international comity with Mexico, Federal 
ownership of the lands of the Colorado River Basin from which most of the 
dissolved salts originate, and the policy embodied in the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972” most of the expenses for 
implementation of the salinity control efforts are non-reimbursable.  The 
remaining expenses are reimbursable (cost share) presently at a rate of 
between 25% - 30%.  
 
The Act provides that the cost share in the Program is to be provided with 
moneys generated from mill levies on power revenues from the Upper 
Colorado River Basin Fund (Upper Basin Fund) and the Lower Colorado 
River Basin Development Fund (Lower Basin Fund).  The Act provides that 
the Secretary adjust power rates to provide for the salinity cost-share  

 
GOVERNORS                             
 
   Katie Hobbs, AZ 
   Gavin Newsom, CA 
   Jared Polis, CO 
   Joe Lombardo, NV 
   Michelle Lujan Grisham, NM 
   Spencer Cox, UT 
   Mark Gordon, WY 
 
 
 
FORUM MEMBERS 
 
Arizona 
 Clint Chandler 
 Patrick Dent 
 Erin Jordan 
  
   California 
 Joaquin Esquivel 
 Bill Hasencamp, Chair 
 Jessica Neuwerth 
 
   Colorado 
  Rebecca Mitchell, Vice Chair 
 Nicole Rowan 
 David W. Robbins 
 
   Nevada 
 Andrew Burns 
 Sara Price 
 
   New Mexico 
 Mike Hamman 
 Rolf Schmidt-Petersen 
 
   Utah 
 Candice Hasenyager 
 John Mackey 
 Dan Larsen 
     
   Wyoming 
 Jeff Cowley 
 Chad Espenscheid 
 David Waterstreet 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 Don A. Barnett 
 
226 South 200 West 
Farmington, UT  84025 
(801) 292-4663 
dbarnett@barnettwater.com 
www.coloradoriversalinity.org 

Page 7 of 71

mailto:dbarnett@barnettwater.com


Chairwoman Stabenow 
Ranking Member Boozman 
July 12, 2023 
Page 2 

 
dollars from the Upper Basin Fund.  However, salinity funding in the Lower Basin fund is 
fixed at 2.5 mills on specific power sales from Hoover, Parker, and Davis Dams, regardless 
of funding need. 
 
Pursuant to the Act, whenever there is an appropriation or allocation of funds for Colorado 
River salinity control activities, there is a corresponding cost-share requirement which is 
met by the withdrawal of moneys from the Upper Basin Fund and the Lower Basin Fund.  
However, in recent years, with reduced power generation, due to prolonged drought 
conditions, and increased costs of implementing projects, there has been insufficient 
money in the Lower Basin Fund to meet the cost-share requirements. 

 
The Basin States, through the Forum, have been working with Federal agencies for several 
years to determine the best solution to fix the funding imbalance.  The attached legislation 
is the best solution to make the needed changes.  The Basin States, through their 
gubernatorially appointed representatives on the Forum, support the legislation and 
respectfully request its inclusion in the 2023 Farm Bill. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
COLORADO RIVER BASIN SALINITY CONTROL FORUM 

 
 
 

Bill Hasencamp, Chair 
 
attachment 
 

Page 8 of 71



II 

118TH CONGRESS 
1ST SESSION S. 2514 

To amend the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Act to modify certain 

requirements applicable to salinity control units, and for other purposes. 

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES 

JULY 26, 2023 

Mr. BENNET (for himself, Ms. LUMMIS, Mr. PADILLA, Mr. BARRASSO, Mrs. 

FEINSTEIN, Ms. SINEMA, Mr. ROMNEY, and Mr. HICKENLOOPER) intro-

duced the following bill; which was read twice and referred to the Com-

mittee on Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry 

A BILL 
To amend the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Act 

to modify certain requirements applicable to salinity con-

trol units, and for other purposes. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-1

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 2

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 3

This Act may be cited as the ‘‘Colorado River Salinity 4

Control Fix Act’’. 5

SEC. 2. SALINITY CONTROL UNITS. 6

Section 205 of the Colorado River Basin Salinity 7

Control Act (43 U.S.C. 1595) is amended— 8

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00001 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 9 of 71



2 

•S 2514 IS

(1) by striking the section designation and all 1

that follows through ‘‘(a) The Secretary’’ and insert-2

ing the following: 3

‘‘SEC. 205. SALINITY CONTROL UNITS; AUTHORITY AND 4

FUNCTIONS OF THE SECRETARY OF THE IN-5

TERIOR. 6

‘‘(a) ALLOCATION OF COSTS.—The Secretary’’; 7

(2) by striking paragraph (1) and inserting the 8

following: 9

‘‘(1) NONREIMBURSABLE COSTS; REIMBURS-10

ABLE COSTS.— 11

‘‘(A) NONREIMBURSABLE COSTS.— 12

‘‘(i) IN GENERAL.—In recognition of 13

Federal responsibility for the Colorado 14

River as an interstate stream and for 15

international comity with Mexico, Federal 16

ownership of the land of the Colorado 17

River Basin from which most of the dis-18

solved salts originate, and the policy estab-19

lished in the Federal Water Pollution Con-20

trol Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) and ex-21

cept as provided in clause (ii), the fol-22

lowing shall be nonreimbursable: 23

‘‘(I) 75 percent of the total costs 24

of construction and replacement of 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00002 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 10 of 71



3 

•S 2514 IS

each unit or separable feature of a 1

unit authorized by section 202(a)(1), 2

including 90 percent of— 3

‘‘(aa) the costs of operation 4

and maintenance of each unit or 5

separable feature of a unit au-6

thorized by that section; and 7

‘‘(bb) the total costs of con-8

struction, operation, and mainte-9

nance of the associated measures 10

to replace incidental fish and 11

wildlife values foregone. 12

‘‘(II) 75 percent of the total costs 13

of construction and replacement of 14

each unit or separable feature of a 15

unit authorized by section 202(a)(2), 16

including 100 percent of— 17

‘‘(aa) the costs of operation 18

and maintenance of each unit or 19

separable feature of a unit au-20

thorized by that section; and 21

‘‘(bb) the total costs of con-22

struction, operation, and mainte-23

nance of the associated measures 24

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00003 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 11 of 71



4 

•S 2514 IS

to replace incidental fish and 1

wildlife values foregone. 2

‘‘(III) 75 percent of the total 3

costs of construction, operation, main-4

tenance, and replacement of each unit 5

or separable feature of a unit author-6

ized by section 202(a)(3), including 7

75 percent of the total costs of con-8

struction, operation, and maintenance 9

of the associated measures to replace 10

incidental fish and wildlife values fore-11

gone. 12

‘‘(IV) 70 percent of the total 13

costs of construction, operation, main-14

tenance, and replacement of each unit 15

or separable feature of a unit author-16

ized by paragraphs (4) and (6) of sec-17

tion 202(a), including 70 percent of 18

the total costs of construction, oper-19

ation, and maintenance of the associ-20

ated measures to replace incidental 21

fish and wildlife values foregone. 22

‘‘(V) 70 percent of the total costs 23

of construction and replacement of 24

each unit or separable feature of a 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00004 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 12 of 71



5 

•S 2514 IS

unit authorized by section 202(a)(5), 1

including 100 percent of— 2

‘‘(aa) the costs of operation 3

and maintenance of each unit or 4

separable feature of a unit au-5

thorized by that section; and 6

‘‘(bb) the total costs of con-7

struction, operation, and mainte-8

nance of the associated measures 9

to replace incidental fish and 10

wildlife values foregone. 11

‘‘(VI) 85 percent of the total 12

costs of implementation of the on- 13

farm measures authorized by section 14

202(c), including 85 percent of the 15

total costs of the associated measures 16

to replace incidental fish and wildlife 17

values foregone. 18

‘‘(ii) SPECIAL RULE FOR NONREIM-19

BURSABLE COSTS FOR FISCAL YEARS 2024 20

AND 2025.—Notwithstanding clause (i), for 21

each of fiscal years 2024 and 2025, the 22

following shall be nonreimbursable: 23

‘‘(I) 75 percent of all costs de-24

scribed in clause (i)(I). 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00005 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 13 of 71



6 

•S 2514 IS

‘‘(II) 75 percent of all costs de-1

scribed in clause (i)(II). 2

‘‘(III) 70 percent of all costs de-3

scribed in clause (i)(V). 4

‘‘(IV) The percentages of all 5

costs described in subclauses (III), 6

(IV), and (VI) of clause (i). 7

‘‘(B) REIMBURSABLE COSTS.—The total 8

costs remaining after the allocations under 9

clauses (i) and (ii) of subparagraph (A) shall be 10

reimbursable as provided for in paragraphs (2), 11

(3), (4), and (5).’’; 12

(3) in subsection (b), by striking the subsection 13

designation and all that follows through ‘‘Costs of 14

construction’’ in paragraph (1) and inserting the fol-15

lowing: 16

‘‘(b) COSTS PAYABLE FROM LOWER COLORADO 17

RIVER BASIN DEVELOPMENT FUND.— 18

‘‘(1) IN GENERAL.—Costs of construction’’; 19

(4) in subsection (c), by striking ‘‘(c) Costs of 20

construction’’ and inserting the following: 21

‘‘(c) COSTS PAYABLE FROM UPPER COLORADO 22

RIVER BASIN FUND.—Costs of construction’’; and 23

(5) in subsection (e), by striking ‘‘(e) The Sec-24

retary is’’ and inserting the following: 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00006 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 14 of 71



7 

•S 2514 IS

‘‘(e) UPWARD ADJUSTMENT OF RATES FOR ELEC-1

TRICAL ENERGY.—The Secretary is’’. 2

Æ 

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00007 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6301 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 15 of 71



SDA
Government Relations

To: Municipal Water District of Orange County
From: Syrus Devers Advocacy LLC
Date: September 27th, 2023
Re: State Legislative Report

Legislative Report

Governor Newsom still has just short of three weeks to sign or veto bills as of the day this report was
prepared; below is a preview of the expected outcome. The November report will detail the final
outcomes.

One item to keep in mind is that California does not have a “pocket veto”. Newsom must either sign or
veto a bill by midnight on October 14th. If he does nothing, the bill automatically takes effect on
January 1st. Another is that there is a process after a bill leaves the Legislature and before it lands on the
Governor’s desk for consideration. Even though session ended on September 14th, most of the bills that
passed on the last night of session were not available to the Governor for action until about a week later,
which is only a few days before the date of this report. For that reason this report is somewhat
speculative.

This report focuses on the bills that the water community at-large focused on, not just the bills on which
MWDOC took positions. The “we” in this report, therefore, refers to the collective efforts of the
lobbyists in Sacramento who represent public water agencies. In other words, this is what the lobbyists
involved in water policy actually spent time working on in Sacramento.

Omitted are several good bills that required little or no effort. An example is AB 557 (Hart) on open
meetings. The bill passed with unanimous support despite no campaign in support. This bill and all other
priority bills will be discussed in the November report.

The Good:

We stopped or amended every water policy bill we opposed. This year started as the most significant
year in Legislation in a decade, but it all went up in a legislative bonfire the first two weeks in July.

The water rights bills: SB 389 (Allen), AB 460 (Bauer-Kahan), and AB 1337 (Wicks). Although a lot of
effort went into AB 460 and AB 1337, both were held in Senate Natural Resources & Water. SB 389
went on to better success after Sen. Allen agreed to remove the most objectionable parts of the bill.
ACWA went neutral at the end and the bill awaits action by the Governor.

Syrus Devers Advocacy LLC
915 L Street, Suite 1270, Sacramento, CA 95814

(916) 862-3466 syrus.devers@sdagov.com

Item No. 2b

Page 16 of 71



The Resource Bonds: SB 867 (Allen) and AB 1567 (Garcia) make the good list despite not being
finished. There was an initial push to finish a bond bill this year and have it on the March ballot, but that
came to nought and all work stopped rather abruptly. A resource bond will be on the November ballot;
the final product to be worked out early next year. The critical variable is how large of a bond the
Governor will support. There were many budget cuts in anticipation of funding through the bonds. Keep
in mind that other areas did significantly worse in the 2023 budget than water. Transportation, in
particular, took a huge hit. That all plays into what the Governor will support in each of the bonds. Do
not be surprised if the final resource bond is smaller than anticipated. Newsom has opined that
California can handle about $26 billion in new debt. The total of all bond bills exceeds $100 billion,
although there is significant overlap. Nonetheless, the subset of water policy lobbyists working on the
bonds did get a warm reception from legislators. The cynics among us believe they want Newsom to be
the bad cop and, therefore, said “yes” to most requests.

SB 687 (Eggman): We stopped another Delta Conveyance killer bill.

The Bad:

We scored 100% on water policy legislation, but took some losses on broader issues affecting municipal
entities.

AB 1484 (Zbur): this bill makes it more costly and difficult to utilize temporary employees. We tried,
but it had organized labor support and we got beat.

AB 735 (Berman): this bill would have created a pipeline of future utility workers through education and
job placement assistance. Good bill, but we could not get it off the dreaded Suspense File.

The Ugly:

We cannot stop all the bad bills or get all the good ones through. On some we have to compromise and
roll with the punches. The result is usually a bill that we do not like, but we can hold our nose and
tolerate it. Here are the top ugly compromises.

AB 1572 (Friedman): Nonfunctional turf–a lot of people would like to go a long time without hearing
that phrase again. The water community wanted to kill this bill, but MWD came from nowhere and
sponsored it, which all but ruled out stopping the bill in committee. The resulting negotiation consumed
hundreds of hours of staff time, and the final result is questionably drafted.

SB 366 (Caballero): Few bills started with more fanfare and grand expectations, but the end was
ignominious. This bill aspired to rewrite the California Water Plan and pave the way to an expanded
water supply. Much money was spent. But a funny thing happened on the way to its demise in the
Assembly Water, Parks & Wildlife Committee, which is chaired by Assm. Bauer-Kahan and staffed by
Pablo Garza. After the water community killed Bauer-Kahan’s AB 460, which Garza staffed, Garza was
tasked with getting the other water rights bill through–AB 1337. But we killed that bill too. After which,

Page 17 of 71



SB 366 was set for a hearing, in Bauer-Kahan’s committee, and analyzed by…Pablo Garza. It was not
pretty. Amendments forced on the author were so severe that the decision was made to just drop the bill.

AB 755 (Papan): This started off as a perfectly awful bill that would have required water agencies to
estimate the marginal cost of providing water to major water users and publish that estimate (guess,
really) in a rate study. Nobody liked the bill, but our attention was elsewhere and it slipped out of the
Assembly with bipartisan votes. It was then set for a hearing in the Senate right after the water rights
bills had just been held in committee. The stage was set for a serious loss. Committee members had been
worked hard the previous week and were not amenable to being lobbied hard again. Fortunately, Irvine
Ranch Water District took the lead and devoted significant time working out a set of amends that blunted
the worst parts of the bill. The final bill makes the ugly list because no one liked it, but it was far better
than what could have happened if the bill had made it out of committee without amendments–which it
almost certainly would have. But not everyone saw it this way and the bill was put to three votes and
numerous motions in the ACWA State Legislative Committee, which in the end remained neutral.

In a class by itself: ACA 13 (Ward)

Background: ACA 13 is in response to the Taxpayer Protection and Government Accountability Act
sponsored by the California Business Roundtable, which will appear on the November, 2024 ballot. It
would impose additional restrictions on enacting fees and taxes, and would invalidate any new fees or
taxes passed after January 1, 2022, that did not comply with the requirements of the initiative.

What ACA 13 does: States that an initiative that imposes a higher vote threshold for fees or taxes must
pass by the same percentage of votes it seeks to impose. In other words, the Taxpayer Protection and
Government Accountability Act would have to be passed by two-thirds of voters casting ballots in the
November election to take effect.

What ACA 13 does not do: Amend Proposition 13. The final set of amendments included the following
Whereas:

The provisions of this measure are not intended to reverse or invalidate provisions of the Constitution in
effect before January 1, 2024, including the provisions of Proposition 13 of 1978…

Current status: ACA 13 passed both legislative houses by the required 2/3rds vote, but was then held
temporarily in order for it to appear on the November ballot, as opposed to the earlier March primary
ballot. This means ACA 13 will appear on the ballot alongside the Taxpayer Protection and Government
Accountability Act. ACA 13 was drafted with this in mind, so it specifically states that it would apply to
measures that appear on the ballot at the same time.

Administrative Report

On October 4th, the State Water Resources Control Board will hold a public workshop on regulations
implementing the “Conservation as a Way of Life” bill package.

Page 18 of 71



2 Mineral King I Irvine, CA 92602 I 714-322-271 0 I dickackerman33@gmail.com

ACKERMAN CONSULTING 

Legal and Regulatory 

October 4, 2023 

1. The “Great” Salt Lake:  The Great Salt Lake used to be larger than Rhode Island.  Over time and drought

conditions, it is one half that size.  Scientists think it could be totally gone by 2030.   As the Lake dries up, it gets

saltier making it difficult for brine shrimp to live.  That impacts millions of birds that migrate through the area.  In

addition, the Lakebed contains arsenic which means more toxic dust is being blown around.  Utah has changed

some of its laws to ease the situation.  Farmers used to be in a “use it or lose it” position with respect to water

rights.  Now they can retain their rights without exercising their right to use it.  The state is also trying to control

alfalfa production which uses almost half of all water in Utah.  The State is also considering putting a minimum

water level into law which would protect the Lake from overdraft.  Environmental groups are being highly active,

but the Lake is also important to the overall economy.

2. Golf and Water:  Golf courses are heavy users of water and are under more pressure to change their ways or close

down.  Many courses, such as The Ranch at Laguna Beach (Ben Browns), are using exclusively reclaimed water.

They have also changed the type of grass and adopted other methods to save water.   Nationally, 21% of courses

used recycled water.  Many courses around the country do not use much water as their natural rain keeps them in

business.  Course design is also being modified to retain natural conditions.  Golf advocacy groups also remind us

that golf courses are better for the environment than roads, shopping centers and houses.

3. Panama Canal Drought:  Drought conditions in Panama are creating problems for shipping.  Panama is normally

one of the wettest spots in the world.  But the last few years, they have seen cutbacks in the number of ships

utilizing the canal.  Normal wait times are 3-5 days.  It is currently 11 days and was 19 days last year.  Five percent

of world trade uses the canal.  Forty percent of US trade in ships uses the canal.  The holding tank for the canal is

Gatun Lake which loses 156-acre feet of water every transit cycle.   The cost per boat ranges from $150,000 to $1

million based on size and load.  This has created a situation where shippers bid for a spot paying double or triple

the normal fee.  Some shippers look for cheaper alternatives such as Cape Horn or the Suez Canal.  Time and risk

become additional factors for delivery.

4. Newport Beach Water Wheel:  Newport Beach is following the lead of Baltimore Harbor in installing a trash

collecting water wheel.  This device collects trash and other stuff before it is dumped into the back bay and makes

its way to Newport Harbor.  A water wheel is attached to a platform which is anchored to the inlet bottom.  The

wheel collects all debris, dumps it on a conveyor belt which is transferred to a regular trash truck.  It is low tech

and powered by solar panels.  Total cost is $5.5 million which is being funded by local, state, and federal sources.

Item No. 2c

Page 19 of 71

mailto:dickackerman33@gmail.com


 

2 Mineral King I Irvine, CA 92602 I 714-322-271 0 I dickackerman33@gmail.com 

 

It will be running by late 2024.  The idea for Newport came from former city council man Duffy Duffield, founder 

of the Duffy electric boat. 

5. Seafloor Desal:  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District is proposing a seafloor desal project several miles off the 

California coast.  This “blue water farm” will put 40’ cylindrical pods in 1400 feet of water off our coast.  It is 

expected to produce 10 million gallons of fresh water per day and will use 40% less energy than normal desal.  The 

traditional reverse osmosis process is not needed as the water is taken from the aphotic zone.  That is a depth 

with extraordinarily little sunlight and marine life and produces no brine due to the water pressure existing at that 

depth.  Water from the pods goes through a semi permeable filter producing freshwater.  Cost and construction 

details were not provided.  

6. Arrowhead Water (Continued):  The State Water Resources Control Board ordered BlueTriton, owner of 

Arrowhead water, to stop using a portion of the natural springs water it had been using.  Arrowhead started 

selling bottled water from the area in 1906 and has been continuously doing so since then.  During that time, it 

had different channels and source spots to draw from.  The Board’s order covers some of those locations, but not 

all.  There is a continuing disagreement as to what permits Arrowhead has and the validity of those permits.  I am 

sure additional litigation will follow. 

7. Microbial Electrochemistry:  Wastewater treatment gets more high tech and efficient each day.  A group of 

students from the US and Britain won an international competition is this area using microbial electrosynthesis.  

As you may guess this process is very complicated.  It is described in the report as “a microbial electrochemical 

cell.   In the apparatus, wastewater if fed to bacteria on the surface of an electrode, called an anode, which 

decomposes the organic matter via an oxidation reaction, a chemical reaction that liberates electrons.”   It is 

described by the author as a magic trick.  However, it is just the result of all these reactions taking place.  The 

process can be very efficient and produces no toxic byproducts and lowers emissions.  This process is very 

expensive, and the next step is looking at commercial build up.   

8.  Hand Held Water Maker:  UC Berkeley scientists have designed a hand held gadget that can make water from 

using only sunlight.  Using MOF (metal organic framework) which is a very porous material, they produced 

drinkable water in Death Valley using only sunlight.  This little thing produced one cup of water per day and is 

reusable.  Scaling up studies are continuing.  It will be used in remote areas and small systems where energy is 

lacking. 

9. More Water in Space:  The Webb telescope continues to amazing work.  Researchers are looking at a young star, 

PDS 70, remarkably similar to our own sun.  It is 370 light years away, which is a long, long, long distance from 

earth.   We have previously reported that it is believed that water on earth came from many water carrying 

asteroids hitting us during our early years.  Reviews of PDS 70 system’s planet forming disk show the presence of 

water.  The amount is large and will ultimately end up on one or more of the planets associated with PDS 70.   

Since water is the building block for all life, we may have some neighbors some time in the future a very long ways 

away. 

Page 20 of 71

mailto:dickackerman33@gmail.com


 

2 Mineral King I Irvine, CA 92602 I 714-322-271 0 I dickackerman33@gmail.com 

 

10. Saudi Arabia Water LIV:  Saudi Arabia is investing over $6 billion in a new Global Water Organization centered in 

Riyadh.  Its purpose is to “integrate and encourage global efforts to achieve water sustainability.”  They intend to 

work with other countries, share advanced technologies and prioritize projects on a global scale.  Water and 

sanitation projects will be evaluated all over the globe.  Stay tuned.  

11. Folsom Lake Evaporation:  Lake officials are not concerned with the 6500-acre feet of water lost to evaporation 

every month.  The reservoir whose capacity of 900,000-acre feet is presently 73% of capacity.  The loss is not 

consequential in their everyday operations and plan for supplying needs downstream.  They do track the loss and 

monitor the amount.  

12. Making Lithium Batteries Safer:  Lithium batteries are being used more and more due to their increased power, 

longer life, and lighter weight.   However, they are not without concerns particularly when it comes to fire 

incidents.  By their nature they are more of a fire hazard than other batteries.  Also, they are harder to extinguish.  

One of the main reasons is the electrolyte ingredients which include organic solvents such as ethylene carbonate.  

Battery manufacturers are now looking at adding water to the electrolyte.  This would mean a much safer battery, 

but it would also add weight.  However, in larger battery applications such as building backup, weight is not a 

factor.  Water may make the high-tech lithium product a better product.   

13.   Tulare Lake Going:  At the height of our latest rains, Tulare Lake covered about 120,000 acres.  At the present 

time it is under 50,000 and expected to continue to downward trend.  Locals expect it to be all gone by the end of 

this winter.  The damage caused by it will remain and is being dealt with.  

 

Page 21 of 71

mailto:dickackerman33@gmail.com


Whittingham PAA, LLC 
31441 Santa Margarita Parkway, Suite A181 ▪ Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688 

(949) 280-9181 ▪ peter@whittinghampaa.com

October 6, 2023 

TO:  MWDOC Board of Directors 

FROM: Peter Whittingham 

SUBJECT: September 2023 Report 

While the month of September saw the typical flurry of activity in Sacramento, many cities, 
water districts and other agencies in Orange County were also back to business as summer 
wound to a close. Following are a few of the more notable developments and issues of the 
month: 

 Thanks to a $31.8 million grant from the California Coastal Conservancy, a 103-
acre portion of the Los Cerritos Wetlands in Seal Beach will be restored for
conservation purposes. The Los Cerritos Wetland Authority — a joint powers
agency comprised of the cities of Long Beach and Seal Beach, the state conservancy
itself, and the California Rivers and Mountain Conservancy — will use the grant to
initiate the Southern Los Cerritos Wetlands Restoration Project, a vision that has
been in the works for decades.

 Work is underway to enhance two Mesa Water District reservoirs. The upgrades
include implementation of a reservoir chemical management system that will allow
the district to store up to an additional 15 million gallons of water and updating
pump stations to improve the Mesa Water District’s distribution system. These
upgrades, which will increase the reliability of Mesa Water District operations, are
expected to be completed in Fall 2025.

 Orange County Water District General Manager Mike Markus has announced his
retirement, effective January 26, 2024. Mr. Markus has enjoyed a distinguished 45-
year career in water resource management and has served as GM of OCWD since
2007, only the sixth general manager in the District’s 90-year history. He first
joined OCWD in 1988 as a construction manager and ascended through the
organization’s management ranks. Congratulations Mike!

 Six teams responded to South Coast Water District’s Request For Qualifications
for Doheny Desalination Plant project in Dana Point. SCWD also updated the
projected cost of water from the Project, which received unanimous last fall, to
$2,058 per acre-foot the first year of operation, versus the prior estimate of $1,589

Item No. 2d

Page 22 of 71



2 
 

per acre-foot. The plant is now expected to cost $175 million, up from the prior 
estimate of $140 million; one-fifth of that cost is already covered by state and 
federal grants, and the district continues to seek additional grant funding.  The city 
of San Clemente, Laguna Beach Water District, Eastern Municipal Water District 
in Perris, and Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District are all reviewing 
commitment letters provided by SCWD, which is seeking partners to share in the 
initial five MGD production of the proposed facility. 
 

 The City of Anaheim is moving forward with development of the OC River Walk, 
an estimated $100 million project that would include the expansion of trails in and 
around the river, construction of a 350-foot pedestrian and cycling bridge across 
the river that would connect the cities of Anaheim and Orange. In addition, a 150-
foot bridge would extend across Katella Avenue, connecting ARTIC transit center 
with the Honda Center. The project is moving forward with a $5 million grant from 
the U.S. Department of Transportation and is being advanced concurrent to but 
separate from the ocV!be mixed-use entertainment district that has begun its initial 
phase of development surrounding the Honda Center.  

 
 

It is a pleasure to work with you and to represent the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Peter Whittingham 

Page 23 of 71



Municipal Water District of Orange County 

Bill Matrix, October 4, 2023 

A. Priority Support/Oppose

  AB 334 (Rubio, Blanca D)   Public contracts: conflicts of interest. 
Status: 9/5/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 3 p.m.  
Summary: Current law prohibits members of the Legislature and state, county, district, judicial district, and city officers 
or employees from being financially interested in any contract made by them in their official capacity, or by any body or 
board of which they are members. Current law authorizes the Fair Political Practices Commission to commence an 
administrative or civil action against persons who violate this prohibition, as prescribed, and includes provisions for the 
collection of penalties after the time for judicial review of a commission order or decision has lapsed, or if all means of 
judicial review of the order or decision have been exhausted. Current law identifies certain remote interests in contracts 
that are not subject to this prohibition and other situations in which an official is not deemed to be financially interested 
in a contract. Existing law makes a willful violation of this prohibition a crime. This bill would establish that an 
independent contractor, who meets specified requirements, is not an officer for purposes of being subject to the 
prohibition on being financially interested in a contract. 

Position  Priority  

Support  
A. Priority
Support/Oppose

Notes 1:  Support position adopted June 7th 

  AB 460 (Bauer-Kahan D)   State Water Resources Control Board: water rights and usage: interim relief: procedures. 
Status: 7/14/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(10). (Last location was N.R. & W. on 6/7/2023)(May be acted 
upon Jan 2024) 
Summary: Current law authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to investigate all streams, stream systems, 
lakes, or other bodies of water, take testimony relating to the rights to water or the use of water, and ascertain whether 
water filed upon or attempted to be appropriated is appropriated under the laws of the state. Current law requires the 
board to take appropriate actions to prevent waste or the unreasonable use of water. This bill would authorize the board, 
in conducting specified investigations or proceedings to inspect the property or facilities of a person or entity, as 
specified. The bill would authorize the board, if consent is denied for an inspection, to obtain an inspection warrant, as 
specified, or in the event of an emergency affecting public health and safety, to conduct an inspection without consent or 
a warrant.  

Position  Priority  

Opposition  
A. Priority
Support/Oppose

  AB 557 (Hart D)   Open meetings: local agencies: teleconferences. 
Status: 9/15/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  
Summary: The Ralph M. Brown Act allows for meetings to occur via teleconferencing subject to certain requirements, 
particularly that the legislative body notice each teleconference location of each member that will be participating in the 
public meeting, that each teleconference location be accessible to the public, that members of the public be allowed to 
address the legislative body at each teleconference location, that the legislative body post an agenda at each 
teleconference location, and that at least a quorum of the legislative body participate from locations within the 
boundaries of the local agency’s jurisdiction. The act provides an exemption to the jurisdictional requirement for health 
authorities, as defined. Current law, until January 1, 2024, authorizes the legislative body of a local agency to use 

Item No. 2e

Page 24 of 71



teleconferencing without complying with those specified teleconferencing requirements in specified circumstances when 
a declared state of emergency is in effect. Those circumstances are that (1) state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, (2) the legislative body is meeting for the purpose of determining 
whether, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees, or (3) the legislative body has previously made that determination. If there is a continuing state of emergency, 
or if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, existing law requires a 
legislative body to make specified findings not later than 30 days after the first teleconferenced meeting, and to make 
those findings every 30 days thereafter, in order to continue to meet under these abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures. This bill would revise the authority of a legislative body to hold a teleconference meeting under those 
abbreviated teleconferencing procedures when a declared state of emergency is in effect.  

        
        Position   Priority            

        Support   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Support adopted April 5th 
   
  

  AB 735 (Berman D)   Workforce development: utility careers. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
5/10/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Would establish the High Road Utility Careers (HRUC) program, to be administered by the California 
Workforce Development Board, to connect existing resources with individuals interested in careers in the utility sector 
and ensure a continued reliable workforce for California utilities. The bill would require the board to administer the 
HRUC program through partnerships with statewide water, wastewater, and energy utility associations and to coordinate 
the program with existing and future programs and initiatives administered by the board, including high road training 
partnerships, in order to align interested individuals with available resources. The bill would require the HRUC program, 
upon appropriation by the Legislature, to dedicate funding and resources toward accomplishing specified goals, 
including connecting workers to high-quality jobs or entry-level work with defined routes to advancement and increasing 
skills and opportunities while expanding pipelines for low-income populations.  

        
        Position   Priority            

        Support   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Support adopted April 5th 
   
  

  AB 755 (Papan D)   Water: public entity: water usage demand analysis. 
  Status: 9/19/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  

Summary: Current law authorizes a public entity that supplies water at retail or wholesale within its service area to 
adopt, in accordance with specified procedures, and enforce a water conservation program. This bill would require a 
public entity, as defined, to conduct a water usage demand analysis, as defined, prior to completing, or as part of, a cost-
of-service analysis conducted to set fees and charges for water service that are consistent with applicable law. The bill 
would require a public entity to identify, within the water usage demand analysis, the costs of water service for the 
highest users, as defined, incurred by the public entity, and the average annual volume of water delivered to high water 
users.  

        
        Position   Priority            

        Watch   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Oppose position adopted May 3rd. Amended in the Senate. ACWA neutral on final version. 
   
  

  AB 838 (Connolly D)   California Water Affordability and Infrastructure Transparency Act of 2023. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
4/19/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: The California Safe Drinking Water Act requires the State Water Resources Control Board to administer 
provisions relating to the regulation of drinking water to protect public health. Current law declares it to be the 
established policy of the state that every human being has the right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water 
adequate for human consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes. The act prohibits a person from operating a public 
water system unless the person first submits an application to the state board and receives a permit to operate the system, 
as specified. The act requires a public water system to submit a technical report to the state board as a part of the permit 
application or when otherwise required by the state board, as specified, and to submit the report in the form and format 
and at intervals specified by the state board. This bill would require, beginning January 1, 2025, and thereafter at 
intervals determined by the state board, public water systems to provide specified information and data related to 
customer water bills and efforts to replace aging infrastructure to the state board. 

        
        Position   Priority            Page 25 of 71



        Opposition   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

   
  

  AB 1337 (Wicks D)   State Water Resources Control Board: water diversion curtailment. 

  
Status: 7/14/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(10). (Last location was N.R. & W. on 6/7/2023)(May be acted 
upon Jan 2024) 

  
Summary: Under existing law, the diversion or use of water other than as authorized by specified provisions of law is a 
trespass, subject to specified civil liability. This bill would expand the instances when the diversion or use of water is 
considered a trespass. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

        
        Position   Priority            

        Opposition   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Oppose adopted April 5th 
   
  

  AB 1572 (Friedman D)   Potable water: nonfunctional turf. 
  Status: 9/20/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  

Summary: Would make legislative findings and declarations concerning water use, including that the use of potable 
water to irrigate nonfunctional turf is wasteful and incompatible with state policy relating to climate change, water 
conservation, and reduced reliance on the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta ecosystem. The bill would direct all appropriate 
state agencies to encourage and support the elimination of irrigation of nonfunctional turf with potable water.  

        
        Position   Priority            

        
Oppose unless 
amended   

A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  OUA adopted April 5th 
   
  

  AB 1594 (Garcia D)   Medium- and heavy-duty zero-emission vehicles: public agency utilities. 
  Status: 9/21/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 3:30 p.m.  

  

Summary: Current law establishes the Air Quality Improvement Program that is administered by the State Air 
Resources Board for purposes of funding projects related to, among other things, the reduction of criteria air pollutants 
and improvement of air quality, and establishes the Medium- and Heavy-Duty Zero-Emission Vehicle Fleet Purchasing 
Assistance Program within the Air Quality Improvement Program to make financing tools and nonfinancial supports 
available to operators of medium- and heavy-duty vehicle fleets to enable those operators to transition their fleets to 
zero-emission vehicles. This bill would require any state regulation that seeks to require, or otherwise compel, the 
procurement of medium- and heavy-duty zero-emission vehicles to authorize public agency utilities to purchase 
replacements for traditional utility-specialized vehicles that are at the end of life when needed to maintain reliable 
service and respond to major foreseeable events, including severe weather, wildfires, natural disasters, and physical 
attacks, as specified. The bill would define a public agency utility to include a local publicly owned electric utility, a 
community water system, a water district, and a wastewater treatment provider, as specified.  

        
        Position   Priority            

        Support   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Support adopted May 3rd 
   
  

  SB 23 (Caballero D)   Water supply and flood risk reduction projects: expedited permitting. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
5/15/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law prohibits an entity from substantially diverting or obstructing the natural flow of, or substantially 
changing or using any material from the bed, channel, or bank of, any river, stream, or lake, or deposit or dispose of 
debris, waste, or other material containing crumbled, flaked, or ground pavement where it may pass into any river, 
stream, or lake, except under specified conditions, including requiring the entity to send written notification to the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife regarding the activity in the manner prescribed by the department. This bill would 
require a project proponent, if already required to submit a notification to the department, to submit to the department the 
certified or adopted environmental review document, as applicable, for the activity in the notification. The bill would 
require the department, under prescribed circumstances, to take certain actions within specified timelines, or within a 
mutually agreed-to extension of time. 

        
        Position   Priority            

        Support   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Support position approved on 3/1/2023 

Page 26 of 71



   
  

  SB 366 (Caballero D)   The California Water Plan: long-term supply targets. 

  
Status: 7/14/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(10). (Last location was W.,P. & W. on 6/8/2023)(May be 
acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law requires the Department of Water Resources to update every 5 years the plan for the orderly and 
coordinated control, protection, conservation, development, and use of the water resources of the state, which is known 
as “The California Water Plan.” Current law requires the department to include a discussion of various strategies in the 
plan update, including, but not limited to, strategies relating to the development of new water storage facilities, water 
conservation, water recycling, desalination, conjunctive use, water transfers, and alternative pricing policies that may be 
pursued in order to meet the future needs of the state. Current law requires the department to establish an advisory 
committee to assist the department in updating the plan. This bill would revise and recast certain provisions regarding 
The California Water Plan to, among other things, require the department to instead establish a stakeholder advisory 
committee and to expand the membership of the committee to include tribes, labor, and environmental justice interests. 
The bill would require the department to coordinate with the California Water Commission, the State Water Resources 
Control Board, other state and federal agencies as appropriate, and the stakeholder advisory committee to develop a 
comprehensive plan for addressing the state’s water needs and meeting specified long-term water supply targets 
established by the bill for purposes of The California Water Plan. The bill would require the plan to provide 
recommendations and strategies to ensure enough water supply for all beneficial uses. 

        
        Position   Priority            

        Support   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

   
  

  SB 389 (Allen D)   State Water Resources Control Board: investigation of water right. 
  Status: 9/20/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4:30 p.m.  

  

Summary: Current law provides generally for the appropriation of water. Existing law authorizes the State Water 
Resources Control Board to investigate bodies of water, to take testimony in regard to the rights to water or the use of 
water, and to ascertain whether or not water is appropriated lawfully, as provided. Under current law, the diversion or 
use of water other than as authorized by specified provisions of law is a trespass, subject to specified civil liability. This 
bill would instead authorize the board to investigate and ascertain whether or not a water right is valid. The bill would 
authorize the board to issue an information order in furtherance of an investigation, as executed by the executive director 
of the board, as specified. The bill would authorize a diversion or use of water ascertained to be unauthorized to be 
enforced as a trespass, as specified. 

        
        Position   Priority            

        Watch   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     
Notes 1:  Oppose adopted April 5th. Amended in the Assembly. ACWA and CMUA moved to a WATCH on the final 
version. 

   
  

  SB 687 (Eggman D)   Water Quality Control Plan: Delta Conveyance Project. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
5/8/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Would require the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt a final update of the 1995 Water Quality 
Control Plan for the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary, as provided, before the board may 
consider a change in point diversion or any other water rights permit or order for the Delta Conveyance Project. The bill 
would also, if, after completing the update of the plan and in compliance with existing law, the board approves a change 
in point of diversion or any other water rights permit or order associated with the Delta Conveyance Project, prohibit the 
operation of the Delta Conveyance Project unless and until the updated plan is fully implemented. The bill would specify 
that these provisions do not constitute an authorization for or approval of funding for the Delta Conveyance Project or 
any other project that includes isolated Delta conveyance facilities, and do not reduce any statutory or other regulatory 
conditions or permit requirements for Delta conveyance projects. 

        
        Position   Priority            

        Opposition   
A. Priority 
Support/Oppose   

         

     Notes 1:  Oppose adopted per Policy Principles. 
 

 

  B. Watch 

 
Page 27 of 71



 
 
   
  

  AB 30 (Ward D)   Atmospheric rivers: research: reservoir operations. 
  Status: 9/1/2023-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 134, Statutes of 2023.  

  

Summary: Current law establishes the Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and Climate Forecasting Program in 
the Department of Water Resources. Current law requires the department, upon an appropriation for purposes of the 
program, to research climate forecasting and the causes and impacts that climate change has on atmospheric rivers, to 
operate reservoirs in a manner that improves flood protection, and to reoperate flood control and water storage facilities 
to capture water generated by atmospheric rivers. This bill would rename that program the Atmospheric Rivers Research 
and Forecast Improvement Program: Enabling Climate Adaptation Through Forecast-Informed Reservoir Operations and 
Hazard Resiliency (AR/FIRO) Program. The bill would require the department to research, develop, and implement new 
observations, prediction models, novel forecasting methods, and tailored decision support systems to improve 
predictions of atmospheric rivers and their impacts on water supply, flooding, post-wildfire debris flows, and 
environmental conditions.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 62 (Mathis R)   Statewide water storage: expansion. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
5/10/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law establishes within the Natural Resources Agency the State Water Resources Control Board and 
the California regional water quality control boards. Current law requires the work of the state board to be divided into at 
least 2 divisions, known as the Division of Water Rights and the Division of Water Quality. This bill would establish a 
statewide goal to increase above- and below-ground water storage capacity by a total of 3,700,000 acre-feet by the year 
2030 and a total of 4,000,000 acre-feet by the year 2040. The bill would require the Department of Water Resources, in 
consultation with the state board, to take reasonable actions to promote or assist efforts to achieve the statewide goal, as 
provided. The bill would require the department, beginning July 1, 2027, and on or before July 1 every 2 years thereafter 
until January 1, 2043, in consultation with the state board, to prepare and submit a report to the Legislature on the 
progress made to achieve the statewide goal.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 66 (Mathis R)   Natural Resources Agency: water storage projects: permit approval. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
4/19/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law establishes the Natural Resources Agency, composed of departments, boards, conservancies, and 
commissions responsible for the restoration, protection, and management of the state’s natural and cultural resources. 
Current law establishes in the agency the Department of Water Resources, which manages and undertakes planning with 
regard to water resources in the state. This bill would require the agency, and each department, board, conservancy, and 
commission within the agency, to take all reasonable steps to approve the necessary permits for specified projects that 
meet certain employment conditions within 180 days from receiving a complete permit application.  

        
        Position   Priority            
           B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 249 (Holden D)   Water: schoolsites: lead testing. 
  Status: 9/20/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  

Summary: Existing law, the California Safe Drinking Water Act, requires the State Water Resources Control Board to 
administer provisions relating to the regulation of drinking water to protect public health. The act requires the state board 
to establish a grant program, in consultation with the State Department of Education, to award grants to local educational 
agencies for the purposes of improving access to, and the quality of, drinking water in public schools serving 
kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, and preschools and child daycare facilities located on public school 
property. This bill would require a community water system that serves a schoolsite, as defined, to test for lead in the 
potable water system outlets of the schoolsite before January 1, 2027, except as provided. This bill contains other related 
provisions and other existing laws. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            

Page 28 of 71



   
  

  AB 277 (Rodriguez D)   Extreme Weather Forecast and Threat Intelligence Integration Center. 

  
Status: 9/1/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(11). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
8/21/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law establishes the Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and Climate Forecasting Program 
within the department to, upon appropriation of special fund moneys, research climate forecasting and the causes and 
impacts that climate change has on atmospheric rivers, to operate reservoirs in a manner that improves flood protection 
in the state, and to reoperate flood control and water storage facilities to capture water generated by atmospheric rivers. 
This bill would establish the State-Federal Flood Operations Center within the Department of Water Resources and 
would authorize the department to administer the center in the department’s divisions, offices, or programs. The bill 
would provide that the purpose of the center is to function as the focal point for gathering, analyzing, and disseminating 
flood and water-related information to stakeholders and would authorize the center to take specified actions for that 
purpose, including to function during emergency situations to enable the department to centrally coordinate statewide 
emergency responses. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 305 (Villapudua D)   California Flood Protection Bond Act of 2024. 
  Status: 6/14/2023-Referred to Coms. on N.R. & W. and GOV. & F.  

  

Summary: Would enact the California Flood Protection Bond Act of 2024 which, if approved by the voters, would 
authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,500,000,000 pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law for 
flood protection projects, as specified. The bill would provide for the submission of these provisions to the voters at the 
November 5, 2024, statewide general election. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 338 (Aguiar-Curry D)   Fuel reduction work. 
  Status: 9/20/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  

Summary: Existing law establishes the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection in the Natural Resources Agency 
and establishes the State Board of Forestry and Fire Protection within the department. Existing law requires the 
department to administer fire prevention programs and activities and requires the state board to adopt regulations 
implementing minimum fire safety standards. This bill would, commencing July 1, 2026, require fuel reduction work, 
done under contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds, as specified, to meet several standards, including 
that all workers performing work within an apprenticeable occupation in the building and construction trades be paid at 
least the general prevailing rate of per diem wages. The bill would authorize the Labor Commissioner to enforce the 
requirement to pay prevailing wages. The bill would exempt from these requirements, among other things, contracts in 
the amount of $500,000 or less. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 340 (Fong, Vince R)   California Environmental Quality Act: grounds for noncompliance. 

  
Status: 4/28/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(2). (Last location was NAT. RES. on 2/9/2023)(May be acted 
upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) prohibits an action or proceeding from being brought in 
a court to challenge the approval of a project by a public agency unless the alleged grounds for noncompliance are 
presented to the public agency orally or in writing by a person during the public comment period provided by CEQA or 
before the close of the public hearing on the project before the issuance of the notice of determination. This bill would 
require the alleged grounds for noncompliance with CEQA presented to the public agency in writing be presented at 
least 10 days before the public hearing on the project before the issuance of the notice of determination. The bill would 
prohibit the inclusion of written comments presented to the public agency after that time period in the record of 
proceedings and would prohibit those documents from serving as basis on which an action or proceeding may be 
brought. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 676 (Bennett D)   Water: general state policy. 
  Status: 9/15/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  
Summary: Would specify that the use of water for domestic purposes includes water use for human consumption, 
cooking, sanitary purposes, care of household livestock, animals, and gardens, fire suppression and other safety 

Page 29 of 71



purposes, and a purpose determined to be a domestic purpose as established by the common law. 
        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 1072 (Wicks D)   Water conservation and efficiency: low-income residential customers. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
5/17/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  
Summary: Would declare the policy of the state that all residents have access to water conservation and efficiency 
programs. The bill would also set forth related findings including that reaching the state’s environmental justice goals 
and commitments requires designing climate adaptation programs so that all households may participate.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 1205 (Bauer-Kahan D)   Water rights: sale, transfer, or lease: agricultural lands. 

  
Status: 9/14/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(14). (Last location was INACTIVE FILE on 9/11/2023)(May 
be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law declares that, because of the conditions prevailing in this state, the general welfare requires that 
the water resources of the state be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of which they are capable, that the waste or 
unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use of water be prevented, and that the conservation of the water is to be 
exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use of the water in the interest of the people and for the public 
welfare. This bill would require the State Water Resources Control Board to, on or before January 1, 2027, conduct a 
study and report to the Legislature and appropriate policy committees on the existence of speculation or profiteering by 
an investment fund in the sale, transfer, or lease of an interest in any surface water right or groundwater right previously 
put to beneficial use on agricultural lands, as specified. The bill would repeal this provision on January 1, 2031. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 1567 
(Garcia D)   Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought Preparation, Flood Protection, Extreme Heat 
Mitigation, Clean Energy, and Workforce Development Bond Act of 2024. 

  Status: 6/14/2023-Referred to Coms. on N.R. & W. and GOV. & F.  

  

Summary: Would enact the Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought Preparation, Flood Protection, Extreme 
Heat Mitigation, Clean Energy, and Workforce Development Bond Act of 2024, which, if approved by the voters, would 
authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $15,995,000,000 pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to 
finance projects for safe drinking water, wildfire prevention, drought preparation, flood protection, extreme heat 
mitigation, clean energy, and workforce development programs.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  AB 1573 (Friedman D)   Water conservation: landscape design: model ordinance. 

  
Status: 9/14/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(14). (Last location was INACTIVE FILE on 9/7/2023)(May 
be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: The Water Conservation in Landscaping Act provides for a Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance that 
is adopted and updated at least every 3 years by the Department of Water Resources, unless the department makes a 
specified finding. Current law requires a local agency to adopt the model ordinance or to adopt a water efficient 
landscape ordinance that is at least as effective in conserving water as the updated model ordinance, except as specified. 
Current law specifies the provisions of the updated model ordinance, as provided. Current law includes a related 
statement of legislative findings and declarations. This bill would require the updated model ordinance to include 
provisions that require that plants included in a landscape design plan be selected based on their adaptability to climatic, 
geological, and topographical conditions of the project site, as specified. The bill would also exempt landscaping that is 
part of a culturally specific project, as defined, ecological restoration projects that do not require a permanent irrigation 
system, mined-land reclamation projects that do not require a permanent irrigation system, and existing plant collections, 
as part of botanical gardens and arboretums open to the public, from the model ordinance. The bill would require the 
updated model ordinance to include provisions that, among other changes, prohibit the use of traditional overhead 
sprinklers on all new and rehabilitated landscapes and require that new and rehabilitated landscapes use only water 
efficient irrigation devices.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

Page 30 of 71



  AB 1637 (Irwin D)   Local government: internet websites and email addresses. 
  Status: 9/21/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 3:30 p.m.  

  

Summary: Would, no later than January 1, 2029, require a local agency, as defined, that maintains an internet website 
for use by the public to ensure that the internet website utilizes a “.gov” top-level domain or a “.ca.gov” second-level 
domain and would require a local agency that maintains an internet website that is noncompliant with that requirement to 
redirect that internet website to a domain name that does utilize a “.gov” or “.ca.gov” domain. This bill, no later than 
January 1, 2029, would also require a local agency that maintains public email addresses to ensure that each email 
address provided to its employees utilizes a “.gov” domain name or a “.ca.gov” domain name. By adding to the duties of 
local officials, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
     Notes 1:  No longer applies to special districts 
   
  

  AB 1648 (Bains D)   Water: Colorado River conservation. 

  
Status: 4/28/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(2). (Last location was W.,P. & W. on 3/16/2023)(May be 
acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Would prohibit the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and the Department of Water and 
Power of the City of Los Angeles from achieving a reduction in, or conservation of, Colorado River water consumption 
required by an agreement with specified entities through increased water deliveries or imports from other regions of 
California, including the San Joaquin Valley and the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. The bill would require the Colorado 
River Board of California, the Department of Water Resources, and the State Water Resources Control Board to use their 
existing authority to enforce these provisions. The bill would specify that these provisions apply retroactively to January 
1, 2023, and apply to any agreement entered into on or after that date. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  ACA 2 (Alanis R)   Public resources: Water and Wildfire Resiliency Act of 2023. 
  Status: 4/20/2023-Referred to Coms. on W., P., & W. and NAT. RES.  

  

Summary: Would establish the Water and Wildfire Resiliency Fund within the State Treasury, and would require the 
Treasurer to annually transfer an amount equal to 3% of all state revenues that may be appropriated as described from the 
General Fund to the Water and Wildfire Resiliency Fund. The measure would require the moneys in the fund to be 
appropriated by the Legislature and would require that 50% of the moneys in the fund be used for water projects, as 
specified, and that the other 50% of the moneys in the fund be used for forest maintenance and health projects, as 
specified. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Out for Analysis   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 3 (Dodd D)   Discontinuation of residential water service: covered water system. 
  Status: 9/15/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 3 p.m.  

  

Summary: Current law establishes the Safe Drinking Water Account to be available to the State Water Resources 
Control Board, upon appropriation by the Legislature, for the purpose of providing funds necessary to administer the 
California Safe Drinking Water Act. This bill would expand the use of available funds in the account to be used by the 
state board, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to include the administration of the Water Shutoff Protection Act. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Out for Analysis   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 48 (Becker D)   Building Energy Savings Act. 
  Status: 9/21/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  

Summary: Current law requires each utility to maintain records of the energy usage data of all buildings to which they 
provide service for at least the most recent 12 complete calendar months, and to deliver or otherwise provide that 
aggregated energy usage data for each covered building, as defined, to the owner, as specified. Current law requires the 
State Energy Resources Conservation and Development Commission (Energy Commission) to adopt regulations 
providing for the delivery to the Energy Commission and public disclosure of benchmarking of energy use for covered 
buildings, and specifies that this requirement does not require the owner of a building with 16 or fewer residential utility 
accounts to collect or deliver energy usage information to the Energy Commission. This bill would additionally specify 
that the requirement does not require the owner of a building with less than 50,000 square feet of gross floor space to 
collect or deliver energy usage information to the Energy Commission. 

        
        Position   Priority            

Page 31 of 71



        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 57 (Gonzalez D)   Utilities: disconnection of residential service. 

  
Status: 4/28/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(2). (Last location was E. U., & C. on 3/22/2023)(May be 
acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Would require an electrical corporation, local publicly owned electric utility, gas corporation, local publicly 
owned gas utility, water corporation, or local agency that owns a public water system to postpone the disconnection of a 
customer’s residential service for nonpayment of a delinquent account when the temperature will be 32 degrees 
Fahrenheit or cooler, or 95 degrees Fahrenheit or warmer, within the utility’s service area during the 24 hours after that 
service disconnection would occur, as specified. The bill would require each of those utilities to notify its residential 
ratepayers of that requirement and to create an online reporting system available through its internet website, if it has 
one, that enables its residential ratepayers to report when their utility service has been disconnected in violation of that 
requirement, as specified. The bill would require the PUC to establish a citation program to impose a penalty on an 
electrical corporation or gas corporation that violates that requirement, and require each local publicly owned electric 
utility and local publicly owned gas utility to annually report to the State Energy Resources Conservation and 
Development Commission the number of residential service connections it disconnected for nonpayment of a delinquent 
account. The bill would authorize the State Water Resources Control Board to enforce the requirement that a water 
corporation and local agency that owns a public water system postpone a disconnection of a customer’s residential 
service, as specified. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 66 
(Hurtado D)   Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014: Drinking Water Capital 
Reserve Fund: administration. 

  
Status: 4/28/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(2). (Last location was E.Q. on 3/29/2023)(May be acted upon 
Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: The Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 bond act provides that the sum of 
$260,000,000 is to be available for grants and loans for public water system infrastructure improvements and related 
actions to meet safe drinking water standards, ensure affordable drinking water, or both, as specified. Current law 
requires the State Water Resources Control Board to deposit up to $2,500,000 of the $260,000,000 into the Drinking 
Water Capital Reserve Fund, to be available upon appropriation by the Legislature. Current law requires the state board 
to administer the Drinking Water Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of serving as matching funds for disadvantaged 
communities and requires the state board to develop criteria to implement this provision. This bill would require the state 
board to provide an analysis of the criteria to implement that provision to the Senate Committee on Natural Resources 
and Water and Assembly Committee on Water, Parks, and Wildlife on January 1, 2025, and every 2 years thereafter. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 69 
(Cortese D)   California Environmental Quality Act: local agencies: filing of notices of determination or 
exemption. 

  Status: 9/13/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 4 p.m.  

  

Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires a local agency that approves or determines to 
carry out a project subject to CEQA to file a notice of determination with the county clerk of each county in which the 
project will be located, as provided. CEQA authorizes a local agency that determines that a project is not subject to 
CEQA to file a notice of exemption with the county clerk of each county in which the project will be located, as 
provided. CEQA requires the county clerk to make the notice available for public inspection and post the notice within 
24 hours of receipt in the office or on the internet website of the county clerk, as specified. CEQA requires an action or 
proceeding challenging an act or decision of a public agency, including a local agency, on the grounds of noncompliance 
with CEQA to be commenced within certain time periods, as specified. This bill would require a local agency to file a 
notice of determination with the State Clearinghouse in the Office of Planning and Research in addition to the county 
clerk of each county in which the project will be located. The bill would authorize a local agency to file a notice of 
exemption with the State Clearinghouse in the Office of Planning and Research in addition to the county clerk of each 
county in which the project will be located. The bill would require the notice, including any subsequent or amended 
notice, to be posted both in the office and on the internet website of the county clerk and by the Office of Planning and 
Research on the State Clearinghouse internet website within 24 hours of receipt. The bill would specify that the posting 
of the notice by the Office of Planning and Research would not affect the applicable time periods to challenge an act or 
decision of a local agency, as described above.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

Page 32 of 71



  SB 231 (Hurtado D)   Department of Water Resources: water supply forecasting. 

  
Status: 9/1/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(11). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
8/23/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Would require the Department of Water Resources, on or before December 31, 2025, to establish a formal 
process for annually evaluating and improving the accuracy of its water supply forecasts, adopt a new water supply 
forecasting model that better addresses the effects of climate change, and implement a formal policy and procedures for 
documenting its operational plans for the state’s water supply and its rationale for its operating procedures. The bill 
would require the department, by December 1, 2024, to prepare, and submit to the Legislature, a report on its progress 
toward meeting these requirements.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 272 (Laird D)   Sea level rise: planning and adaptation. 
  Status: 9/18/2023-Enrolled and presented to the Governor at 3 p.m.  

  

Summary: Would require a local government, as defined, lying, in whole or in part, within the coastal zone, as defined, 
or within the jurisdiction of the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission, as defined, to develop a 
sea level rise plan as part of either a local coastal program, as defined, that is subject to approval by the California 
Coastal Commission, or a subregional San Francisco Bay shoreline resiliency plan that is subject to approval by the San 
Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission, as applicable, on or before January 1, 2034, as provided. By 
imposing additional requirements on local governments, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program. The bill 
would require local governments that receive approval for a sea level rise plan to be prioritized for funding, upon 
appropriation by the Legislature, for the implementation of sea level rise adaptation strategies and recommended projects 
in the local government’s approved sea level rise plan. The bill would require, on or before December 31, 2024, the 
California Coastal Commission, in close coordination with the Ocean Protection Council and the California Sea Level 
Rise State and Regional Support Collaborative, to establish guidelines for the preparation of the sea level rise plan. The 
bill would also require, on or before December 31, 2024, the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission, in close coordination with the California Coastal Commission, the Ocean Protection Council, and the 
California Sea Level Rise State and Regional Support Collaborative, to establish guidelines for the preparation of the sea 
level rise plan. The bill would make the operation of its provisions contingent upon an appropriation for its purposes by 
the Legislature in the annual Budget Act or another statute. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing 
laws. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 315 (Hurtado D)   Groundwater: groundwater sustainability agencies: probationary basins. 

  
Status: 5/19/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(5). (Last location was APPR. SUSPENSE FILE on 
5/1/2023)(May be acted upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to 
designate specified basins as probationary basins if certain conditions are met, including, but not limited to, that the 
Department of Water Resources, in consultation with the board, determines that a groundwater sustainability plan is 
inadequate or that the groundwater sustainability program is not being implemented in a manner that will likely achieve 
the sustainability goal. Current law requires the board, if it designates a basin as a probationary basin pursuant to 
specified conditions, to identify the specific deficiencies and potential remedies. Current law authorizes the board to 
request the department, within 90 days of the designation, to provide technical recommendations to local agencies to 
remedy the deficiencies and to develop an interim plan for the probationary basin one year after the designation, as 
specified. This bill would require any groundwater sustainability agency that hires a third-party consulting firm to ensure 
that the integrity of the science being used to develop a groundwater sustainability plan is protected and the data is not 
sold. The bill would delete the authorizations for the board to request technical recommendations from the department. 
The bill would additionally place various requirements on the board in working with a groundwater sustainability 
agency, including, among other things, requiring the board to provide clear benchmarks and guidance for groundwater 
sustainability agencies to improve their groundwater management plans.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 865 (Laird D)   Municipal water districts: automatic exclusion of cities. 

  
Status: 4/28/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(2). (Last location was GOV. & F. on 3/1/2023)(May be acted 
upon Jan 2024) 

  

Summary: Current law authorizes a governing body of a municipal water district to adopt an ordinance excluding any 
territory annexed to a metropolitan water district organized under the Metropolitan Water District Act, if the territory is 
annexed prior to the effective date of the formation of the municipal water district. Current law requires the Secretary of 
State to issue a certificate reciting the passage of the ordinance and the exclusion of the area from the municipal water Page 33 of 71



district within 10 days of receiving a certified copy of the ordinance. This bill would extend the number of days the 
Secretary of State has to issue a certificate to 14 days. 

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
   
  

  SB 867 
(Allen D)   Drought, Flood, and Water Resilience, Wildfire and Forest Resilience, Coastal Resilience, Extreme 
Heat Mitigation, Biodiversity and Nature-Based Climate Solutions, Climate Smart Agriculture, Park Creation 
and Outdoor Access, and Clean Energy Bond Act of 2024. 

  Status: 7/6/2023-July 10 hearing postponed by committee.  

  

Summary: Would enact the Drought, Flood, and Water Resilience, Wildfire and Forest Resilience, Coastal Resilience, 
Extreme Heat Mitigation, Biodiversity and Nature-Based Climate Solutions, Climate Smart Agriculture, Park Creation 
and Outdoor Access, and Clean Energy Bond Act of 2024, which, if approved by the voters, would authorize the 
issuance of bonds in the amount of $15,500,000,000 pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance 
projects for drought, flood, and water resilience, wildfire and forest resilience, coastal resilience, extreme heat 
mitigation, biodiversity and nature-based climate solutions, climate smart agriculture, park creation and outdoor access, 
and clean energy programs.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   B. Watch            
 

 

  C. Spot Bill 

 
 
 
   
  

  AB 422 (Alanis R)   Natural Resources Agency: statewide water storage: tracking. 

  
Status: 4/28/2023-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(a)(2). (Last location was W.,P. & W. on 2/9/2023)(May be acted 
upon Jan 2024) 

  
Summary: Would require the Natural Resources Agency, on or before June 1, 2024, to post on its publicly available 
internet website information tracking the progress to increase statewide water storage, and to keep that information 
updated.  

        
        Position   Priority            
        Watch   C. Spot Bill            
 

Total Measures: 40 

Total Tracking Forms: 40 

Page 34 of 71



M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tio
n 

M
at

ri
x 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
– 

Fi
rs

t Y
ea

r 
of

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Se
ss

io
n 

B
ill

 N
um

be
r 

A
ut

ho
r 

A
m

en
de

d 
D

at
e 

L
oc

at
io

n 
T

itl
e-

Su
m

m
ar

y 
M

W
D

 P
os

iti
on

 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

A
B

 4
00

 
B

.R
ub

io
 (D

 –
B

al
dw

in
 P

ar
k)

Sp
on

so
rs

: 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 S
ta

te
 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 

C
ou

nt
ie

s, 
Le

ag
ue

 o
f 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

iti
es

 

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

13
/2

3 

 P
en

di
ng

 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s 
Si

gn
at

ur
e 

L
oc

al
 a

ge
nc

y 
de

si
gn

-b
ui

ld
 p

ro
je

ct
s:

 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n.

 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
su

ns
et

 
da

te
 to

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

03
1,

 fo
r t

he
 u

se
 o

f d
es

ig
n-

bu
ild

 a
s a

 d
el

iv
er

y 
m

et
ho

d 
fo

r p
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s. 

Su
pp

or
t 

B
a s

ed
 o

n 
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

1 
B

oa
rd

 A
ct

io
n 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 u

se
 d

es
ig

n-
bu

ild
 

un
de

r A
B

 1
84

5 
(C

al
de

ro
n,

 C
H

. 2
75

, 2
02

2)
 w

ill
 su

ns
et

 
on

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

02
8.

 T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f t
hi

s b
ill

 w
ou

ld
 

al
lo

w
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 to

 u
se

 d
es

ig
n-

bu
ild

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
03

1.
 

A
B

 1
56

7 
G

ar
ci

a 
(D

-
C

oa
ch

el
la

) 

A
m

en
de

d 
5/

26
/2

02
3 

Se
na

te
 N

at
ur

al
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 

W
at

er
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Sa
fe

 D
ri

nk
in

g 
W

at
er

, W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 

D
ro

ug
ht

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n,

 F
lo

od
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 

E
xt

re
m

e 
H

ea
t M

iti
ga

tio
n,

 C
le

an
 E

ne
rg

y,
 a

nd
 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

on
d 

A
ct

 o
f 2

02
4.

  

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
 a

ut
ho

riz
e 

a 
$1

5.
99

5 
bi

lli
on

 
ge

ne
ra

l o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

bo
nd

 fo
r t

he
 M

ar
ch

 5
, 2

02
4,

 
ba

llo
t t

o 
fu

nd
 a

 b
ro

ad
 ra

ng
e 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
-b

as
ed

 
pr

og
ra

m
s t

ha
t w

ill
 a

ss
is

t C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

its
 c

lim
at

e 
re

si
lie

nc
y.

  

Su
pp

or
t, 

if 
am

en
de

d 

B
a s

ed
 o

n 
Ju

ne
  

20
23

 B
oa

rd
 

A
ct

io
n 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 

cu
rr

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 su

pp
or

ts
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 C

lim
at

e 
A

da
pt

at
io

n 
M

as
te

r P
la

n.
  

M
et

r o
po

lit
an

 is
 se

ek
in

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
, d

am
 sa

fe
ty

, r
eg

io
na

l 
co

nv
ey

an
ce

, d
ro

ug
ht

 a
nd

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

A
B

 1
57

2 
Fr

ie
dm

an
 (D

 - 
G

le
nd

al
e)

 

C
o-

Sp
on

so
rs

: 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
, 

H
ea

l t
he

 B
ay

, 
N

at
io

na
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 
D

ef
en

se
 C

ou
nc

il 

A
m

en
de

d 
9/

5/
20

23
 

Se
na

te
 F

lo
or

 

Po
ta

bl
e 

w
at

er
: n

on
fu

nc
tio

na
l t

ur
f. 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

ts
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
ot

ab
le

 w
at

er
 

fo
r t

he
 ir

rig
at

io
n 

of
 n

on
-fu

nc
tio

na
l t

ur
f l

oc
at

ed
 

on
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
, i

nd
us

tri
al

, i
ns

tit
ut

io
na

l. 
Th

is
 

m
ea

su
re

 p
ro

vi
de

s t
he

 S
ta

te
 W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

C
on

tro
l B

oa
rd

 w
ith

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 p

os
tp

on
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

da
te

s a
s p

re
sc

rib
ed

. 

C
o-

Sp
on

so
r 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
A

pr
il 

20
23

 
B

oa
rd

 a
ct

io
n 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
in

pu
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r a
ge

nc
ie

s, 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 so

ug
ht

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 e

xc
lu

de
 m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l c
on

tro
l o

f p
ub

lic
 w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s. 

 T
he

 Ju
ne

 
19

 v
er

si
on

 re
fle

ct
s t

he
se

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 is

 a
 “

C
o-

Sp
on

so
r”

 o
f t

hi
s m

ea
su

re
.  

Ite
m

 N
o.

 2
f

Page 35 of 71



M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tio
n 

M
at

ri
x 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
– 

Fi
rs

t Y
ea

r 
of

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Se
ss

io
n 

B
ill

 N
um

be
r 

A
ut

ho
r 

A
m

en
de

d 
D

at
e 

L
oc

at
io

n 
T

itl
e-

Su
m

m
ar

y 
M

W
D

 P
os

iti
on

 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

A
B

 1
57

3 
Fr

ie
dm

an
 

(D
 - 

G
le

nd
al

e)
 

 Sp
on

so
r: 

Ea
rth

 A
dv

oc
ac

y 
an

d 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
N

at
iv

e 
Pl

an
t 

So
ci

et
y 

  

A
m

en
de

d 
on

  
9/

1/
20

23
 

 Se
na

te
 F

lo
or

 

W
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n:

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
de

si
gn

: m
od

el
 

or
di

na
nc

e.
 

 Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
  

up
da

te
 th

e 
m

od
el

 w
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
or

di
na

nc
e 

fo
r n

ew
 o

r r
en

ov
at

ed
 n

on
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
ar

ea
s t

o 
re

qu
ire

 a
t l

ea
st

 2
5%

 lo
ca

l n
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ts
 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
02

6.
 T

hi
s m

ea
su

re
 w

ou
ld

 
al

so
 p

ro
hi

bi
t t

he
 u

se
 o

f n
on

fu
nc

tio
na

l t
ur

f i
n 

no
nr

es
id

en
tia

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 p

ro
je

ct
s a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 
20

26
. 

Su
pp

or
t 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
, 

ad
op

te
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 e

ff
or

t 
to

 re
du

ce
 n

on
fu

nc
tio

na
l t

ur
f w

ith
in

 it
s s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a.

 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 st

af
f i

ni
tia

lly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 b
ut

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
au

th
or

’s
 

of
fic

e 
to

 b
rin

g 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 to

 a
 su

pp
or

t p
os

iti
on

.  
 

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 re

qu
es

te
d 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
: (

1)
 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 .3

 p
la

nt
 fa

ct
or

, (
2)

 a
 p

ha
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 n
at

iv
e 

pl
an

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t, 
an

d 
(3

) 
re

qu
ire

 w
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

ds
.  

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t v

er
si

on
 o

f t
he

 b
ill

 re
fle

ct
s t

he
se

 re
qu

es
te

d 
ch

an
ge

s. 
A

B
 1

64
8 

B
ai

ns
 (D

 - 
B

ak
er

sf
ie

ld
) 

A
m

en
de

d 
3/

16
/2

02
3 

  Tw
o 

Y
ea

r B
ill

 
 

W
at

er
: C

ol
or

ad
o 

R
iv

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

 Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 p
ro

hi
bi

t 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

nd
 L

A
D

W
P 

to
 o

ff
se

t f
ed

er
al

ly
 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
C

ol
or

ad
o 

Ri
ve

r r
es

ou
rc

es
 

w
ith

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
w

at
er

 d
el

iv
er

ie
s f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 

re
gi

on
s o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

D
el

ta
, 

re
tro

ac
tiv

el
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

02
3.

 

O
pp

os
e 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 

Le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s a
nd

 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

, 
ad

op
te

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 a
ff

ec
ts

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

 w
ith

 
its

 e
nt

ire
 w

at
er

 p
or

tfo
lio

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

A
nn

ua
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pl
an

. 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
’s

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
its

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 m

ee
t 

de
m

an
ds

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 im

pa
ire

d 
by

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
 o

n 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s w
ith

 it
s S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 

C
ol

or
ad

o 
R

iv
er

 B
as

in
 st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
.  

SB
 1

22
 

Se
na

te
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Fi
sc

al
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

26
/2

02
3 

  Si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r 

C
ha

pt
er

 5
1,

 
St

at
ut

es
 o

f2
02

3 

Fl
oo

d 
Fl

ow
 S

tr
ea

m
lin

in
g 

 Pr
ov

is
io

ns
 in

 th
is

 tr
ai

le
r b

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

at
 

di
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 fl
oo

d 
flo

w
s f

or
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

re
ch

ar
ge

 d
o 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
tiv

e 
w

at
er

 
rig

ht
 if

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

di
ve

rs
io

n 
ar

e 
m

et
. T

he
se

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s e

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ct
 

(C
EQ

A
) s

pe
ci

fie
d 

ac
tio

ns
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 C
ol

or
ad

o 
R

iv
er

 w
at

er
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 th

e 
U

S 
B

ur
ea

u 
of

 
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n.

 

Se
ek

 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

, 
ad

op
te

d 
A

pr
il 

20
23

 

Th
e 

no
-p

er
m

it 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

po
se

s a
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
co

nc
er

n 
to

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 P

ro
je

ct
 

su
pp

lie
s. 

 T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

pr
oc

es
s f

or
 p

ro
te

st
in

g,
 n

o 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
ha

t d
iv

er
te

rs
 a

vo
id

 h
ar

m
 to

 o
th

er
 le

ga
l 

w
at

er
 u

se
rs

 w
ith

 w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

 se
ni

or
 to

 th
e 

flo
od

 fl
ow

 
di

ve
rte

r, 
an

d 
no

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 S

W
P 

an
d 

C
V

P 
rig

ht
s t

o 
di

ve
rt 

“e
xc

es
s f

lo
w

s”
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 e
xi

st
 in

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 

up
 to

 th
e 

fu
ll 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
s. 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

 a
s t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 is

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

   

 

Page 36 of 71



M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tio
n 

M
at

ri
x 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
– 

Fi
rs

t Y
ea

r 
of

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Se
ss

io
n 

B
ill

 N
um

be
r 

A
ut

ho
r 

A
m

en
de

d 
D

at
e 

L
oc

at
io

n 
T

itl
e-

Su
m

m
ar

y 
M

W
D

 P
os

iti
on

 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

SB
 1

24
 

Se
na

te
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Fi
sc

al
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 

A
m

en
de

d 
 

6/
26

/2
02

3 
  Si

gn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r 
C

ha
pt

er
 5

3,
 

St
at

ut
es

 o
f 2

02
3 

G
re

en
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s f
or

 F
ed

er
al

 IR
A

 
Fu

nd
in

g 
 Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 c

on
ta

in
s v

ar
io

us
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 2
02

3 
St

at
e 

B
ud

ge
t A

ct
, w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

ut
ho

riz
in

g 
th

e 
St

at
e 

In
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

an
k 

an
d 

D
W

R
 to

 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 u
til

iz
e 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
di

ng
 in

 th
e 

In
fla

tio
n 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
A

ct
 to

 fi
na

nc
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 re
du

ce
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 e

m
is

si
on

s. 
 

Su
pp

or
t 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
, 

ad
op

te
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2 

Fo
r t

he
 S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 P

ro
je

ct
, D

W
R

’s
 d

ire
ct

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s c
ou

ld
 lo

w
er

 it
s c

ap
ita

l c
os

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 u
lti

m
at

el
y 

be
 p

as
se

d 
on

 to
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

an
d 

ot
he

r S
W

P 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s. 

SB
 1

46
 

G
on

za
le

z 
(D

-L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

) 
 

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

26
/2

02
3 

 Si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r 

C
ha

pt
er

 5
8,

 
St

at
ut

es
 o

f 2
02

3 

Pu
bl

ic
 r

es
ou

rc
es

: i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e:

 c
on

tr
ac

tin
g.

 
 Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e 

tra
ile

r b
ill

 p
ac

ka
ge

 a
nd

 a
ut

ho
riz

es
 

D
W

R
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

iv
e 

de
si

gn
-b

ui
ld

 p
ro

je
ct

 
de

liv
er

y 
m

et
ho

d 
fo

r u
p 

to
 e

ig
ht

 p
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

at
 e

xc
ee

d 
$2

5 
m

ill
io

n.
 T

he
 D

el
ta

 
co

nv
ey

an
ce

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
nd

 se
aw

at
er

 d
es

al
in

at
io

n 
ar

e 
ex

pr
es

sl
y 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
un

de
r t

hi
s m

ea
su

re
.  

Su
pp

or
t 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

1 
B

oa
rd

 A
ct

io
n 

  

B
y 

ut
ili

zi
ng

 P
D

B
 a

nd
 a

w
ar

di
ng

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

on
tra

ct
 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
de

si
gn

 w
or

k,
 D

W
R

 c
an

 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
ra

ll 
co

st
s a

nd
 e

xe
cu

te
 sh

or
te

r 
pr

oj
ec

t d
el

iv
er

y 
sc

he
du

le
s. 

Th
is

 c
ou

ld
 le

ad
 to

 re
du

ce
d 

co
st

s f
or

 S
W

P-
re

la
te

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 c
os

t 
sa

vi
ng

s b
ei

ng
 p

as
se

d 
on

 to
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
. 

 

SB
 1

47
 

A
sh

by
 (D

-
Sa

cr
am

en
to

) 

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

26
/2

02
3 

  Si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r 

C
ha

pt
er

 5
9,

 
St

at
ut

es
 o

f 2
02

3 

Fu
lly

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 sp

ec
ie

s:
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
E

nd
an

ge
re

d 
Sp

ec
ie

s A
ct

: a
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

ta
ke

 
 Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e 

tra
ile

r b
ill

 p
ac

ka
ge

 a
nd

 a
ut

ho
riz

es
 

th
e 

ta
ke

 o
f f

ul
ly

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 sp

ec
ie

s f
or

 c
er

ta
in

 
in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 if
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
re

 
m

et
.  

El
ig

ib
le

 p
ro

je
ct

s i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, 
re

pa
ir 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
 W

at
er

 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
as

 w
el

l a
s c

rit
ic

al
 re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

w
at

er
 in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e.

  

Su
pp

or
t a

nd
 

A
m

en
de

d 
 B

as
ed

 o
n 

20
23

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s a
nd

 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

, 
ad

op
te

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2 

W
hi

le
 th

is
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
ne

fit
s o

ve
r c

ur
re

nt
 

FP
S 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

re
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 a
nd

 
m

ay
 m

ak
e 

pe
rm

it 
te

rm
s i

nf
ea

si
bl

e 
or

 c
os

t p
ro

hi
bi

tiv
e 

an
d 

co
ul

d 
cr

ea
te

 o
th

er
 li

tig
at

io
n 

ris
ks

 fo
r p

er
m

itt
ee

s. 
C

om
bi

ne
d,

 th
es

e 
as

pe
ct

s m
ak

e 
it 

un
lik

el
y 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 w
ou

ld
 se

ek
 to

 u
se

 th
is

 m
et

ho
d.

 
 

Page 37 of 71



M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tio
n 

M
at

ri
x 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
– 

Fi
rs

t Y
ea

r 
of

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Se
ss

io
n 

B
ill

 N
um

be
r 

A
ut

ho
r 

A
m

en
de

d 
D

at
e 

L
oc

at
io

n 
T

itl
e-

Su
m

m
ar

y 
M

W
D

 P
os

iti
on

 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

SB
 1

49
 

C
ab

al
le

ro
 (D

-
M

er
ce

d)
 

   

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

28
/2

02
3 

  Si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r 

C
ha

pt
er

 6
0,

 
St

at
ut

es
 o

f 2
02

3 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ct

: 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
an

d 
ju

di
ci

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s:
 

re
co

rd
 o

f p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

: j
ud

ic
ia

l s
tr

ea
m

lin
in

g.
 

 Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

in
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e 
tra

ile
r b

ill
 p

ac
ka

ge
 a

nd
 m

ak
es

 
va

rio
us

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 C

EQ
A

. T
hi

s b
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
cl

ar
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r w
ha

t i
s c

on
si

de
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
re

co
rd

, a
s w

el
l a

s a
llo

w
in

g 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

y 
to

 d
en

y 
a 

re
qu

es
t t

o 
pr

ep
ar

e 
th

e 
re

co
rd

 o
f p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
. T

hi
s b

ill
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
ju

di
ci

al
 re

vi
ew

 fo
r s

pe
ci

fie
d 

en
er

gy
 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.  

Su
pp

or
t a

nd
 

A
m

en
d 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
, 

ad
op

te
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
R

ec
or

ds
 S

tre
am

lin
in

g:
 O

ve
ra

ll,
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

ne
fic

ia
l t

o 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

s 
th

ey
 c

ou
ld

 lo
w

er
 C

EQ
A

 li
tig

at
io

n 
co

st
s a

nd
 sh

or
te

n 
lit

ig
at

io
n 

tim
el

in
es

.  
 Ex

pe
di

te
d 

Ju
di

ci
al

 R
ev

ie
w

: T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
re

co
rd

 fo
r a

ny
 g

ov
er

no
r-

ce
rti

fie
d 

in
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e 
pr

oj
ec

t m
us

t f
ol

lo
w

 c
er

ta
in

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 c

os
tly

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. W
hi

le
 e

xp
ed

ite
d 

ju
di

ci
al

 re
vi

ew
 is

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

n 
co

nc
ep

t, 
un

le
ss

 
am

en
de

d,
 th

e 
pr

er
eq

ui
si

te
s m

ay
 b

e 
in

fe
as

ib
le

 o
r c

os
tly

 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t. 
 

SB
 1

50
 

D
ur

az
o 

(D
-L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

) 
  

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

26
/2

02
3 

  Si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r 

C
ha

pt
er

 6
1,

 
St

at
ut

es
 o

f 2
02

3 
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
 p

ub
lic

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s. 

 Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

in
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e 
tra

ile
r b

ill
 p

ac
ka

ge
 a

nd
 fo

cu
se

s o
n 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
st

at
e’

s w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its
 w

ith
 in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e 

in
ve

stm
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 sh

ar
e 

of
 fe

de
ra

l 
fu

nd
s. 

Su
pp

or
t 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
, 

ad
op

te
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2 

Th
is

 b
ill

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
de

ve
lo

p 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
m

od
el

s t
o 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

st
at

e’
s t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 

pi
pe

lin
e 

fo
r j

ob
s w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 b
en

ef
its

 
on

 in
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. 
 Th

is
 b

ill
 is

 a
lig

ne
d 

w
ith

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 v

al
ue

s a
nd

 
w

ou
ld

 b
en

ef
it 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t b

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
th

e 
ne

xt
 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
at

e’
s c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
or

kf
or

ce
.  

 

Page 38 of 71



M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tio
n 

M
at

ri
x 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
– 

Fi
rs

t Y
ea

r 
of

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Se
ss

io
n 

B
ill

 N
um

be
r 

A
ut

ho
r 

A
m

en
de

d 
D

at
e 

L
oc

at
io

n 
T

itl
e-

Su
m

m
ar

y 
M

W
D

 P
os

iti
on

 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

SB
 3

66
 

C
ab

al
le

ro
 (D

 - 
M

er
ce

d)
 

 Sp
on

so
rs

: 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 U
til

iti
es

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
an

d 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

B
al

an
ce

, C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

St
at

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 
C

ou
nt

ie
s 

A
m

en
de

d 
 

6/
29

/2
02

3 
   Tw

o-
ye

ar
 b

ill
 

T
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 P
la

n:
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 su
pp

ly
 

ta
rg

et
s. 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
 re

vi
se

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 
Pl

an
 to

 re
qu

ire
 th

e 
D

W
R

 to
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
W

at
er

 P
la

n 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

8,
 a

nd
 e

ve
ry

 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
s a

fte
r, 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 w
at

er
 

su
pp

ly
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

05
0 

an
d 

di
sc

us
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

pe
ci

fie
d 

w
at

er
 su

pp
ly

 so
ur

ce
s 

to
 m

ee
t d

em
an

d.
  

Su
pp

or
t, 

if 
am

en
de

d 
  B

as
ed

 o
n 

20
23

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s a
nd

 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

, 
ad

op
te

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2 

Th
e 

in
te

nt
 o

f t
hi

s b
ill

 is
 to

 h
el

p 
m

od
er

ni
ze

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 re

lia
bl

e 
su

pp
lie

s i
n 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

.  
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 is

 se
ek

in
g 

cl
ar

ify
in

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
20

50
 ta

rg
et

 re
fle

ct
s 

st
at

ew
id

e,
 re

gi
on

al
, a

nd
 lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

ef
fo

rts
.  

 R
ec

en
t a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

D
el

ta
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
ar

e 
no

t c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

W
at

er
 P

la
n.

  

SB
 6

59
 

A
sh

by
 (D

 –
 

Sa
cr

am
en

to
) 

 Sp
on

so
rs

: 
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 
R

eg
io

na
l W

at
er

 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 
 

A
m

en
de

d 
9/

1/
20

23
 

  A
ss

em
bl

y 
Fl

oo
r 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

So
lu

tio
ns

 A
ct

 o
f 

20
23

.  
 Th

is
 b

ill
 w

ou
ld

 re
qu

ire
 D

W
R

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 re

ch
ar

ge
 p

la
n 

by
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
02

6,
 

to
 c

re
at

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 re

ch
ar

ge
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 2
02

8 
up

da
te

 to
 th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 W
at

er
 P

la
n.

 

Su
pp

or
t, 

if 
A

m
en

de
d 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 

Le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s a
nd

 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
ad

op
te

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2.

 
 

Th
is

 b
ill

 w
ill

 fu
rth

er
 e

le
va

te
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 in
 th

e 
st

at
e’

s p
la

nn
in

g 
ef

fo
rts

. 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 is
 re

qu
es

tin
g 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 a
dd

 
cl

ar
ify

in
g 

la
ng

ua
ge

 to
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f s
to

rm
w

at
er

 
ca

pt
ur

e 
an

d 
m

er
ge

 th
is

 p
la

n 
in

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 P
la

n 
to

 re
m

ov
e 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

ef
fo

rt 
an

d 
en

su
re

 m
or

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
la

nn
in

g.
  

SB
 6

87
  

E
gg

m
an

 (D
 - 

St
oc

kt
on

) 
   

A
m

en
de

d 
5/

2/
20

23
 

  Tw
o-

ye
ar

 b
ill

 
   

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tr

ol
 P

la
n:

 D
el

ta
 

C
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t. 

 Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 th

e 
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
 to

 a
do

pt
 a

 fi
na

l u
pd

at
e 

of
 th

e 
B

ay
-D

el
ta

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l P
la

n 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 c

on
si

de
rs

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

po
in

t 
of

 d
iv

er
si

on
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 p

er
m

it 
or

 
or

de
r f

or
 th

e 
D

el
ta

 C
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t. 

 

O
pp

os
e 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
, 

ad
op

te
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 su
pp

or
ts

 u
pd

at
in

g 
th

e 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l P

la
n 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

s i
n 

th
e 

D
el

ta
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s b
ill

 w
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 h

al
tin

g 
or

 d
el

ay
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 e

ff
or

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
D

el
ta

 C
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t f
ro

m
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

if 
ap

pr
ov

ed
.  

Page 39 of 71



M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
St

at
e 

L
eg

is
la

tio
n 

M
at

ri
x 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
– 

Fi
rs

t Y
ea

r 
of

 L
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

Se
ss

io
n 

B
ill

 N
um

be
r 

A
ut

ho
r 

A
m

en
de

d 
D

at
e 

L
oc

at
io

n 
T

itl
e-

Su
m

m
ar

y 
M

W
D

 P
os

iti
on

 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

SB
 7

06
 

C
ab

al
le

ro
 (D

-
M

er
ce

d)
 

 Sp
on

so
rs

: 
C

A
 S

ta
te

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 
C

ou
nt

ie
s;

 C
ou

nt
y 

of
 

Sa
n 

D
ie

go
; D

es
ig

n 
B

ui
ld

 In
st

itu
te

 o
f 

A
m

er
ic

a 
W

es
te

rn
 

Pa
ci

fic
 C

ha
pt

er
; 

Le
ag

ue
 o

f 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 C
iti

es
 

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

28
/2

3 
    P

en
di

ng
 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s 

Si
gn

at
ur

e 

Pu
bl

ic
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

: p
ro

gr
es

si
ve

 d
es

ig
n-

bu
ild

: 
lo

ca
l a

ge
nc

ie
s. 

  
 Th

is
 b

ill
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 
un

til
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
02

3,
 fo

r c
iti

es
, c

ou
nt

ie
s, 

an
d 

sp
ec

ia
l d

is
tri

ct
s t

o 
us

e 
pr

og
re

ss
iv

e 
de

si
gn

-b
ui

ld
 

au
th

or
ity

 fo
r u

p 
to

 1
0 

pu
bl

ic
 w

or
ks

 p
ro

je
ct

s t
ha

t 
ar

e 
in

 e
xc

es
s o

f $
5 

m
ill

io
n.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 a
ny

 
lo

ca
l a

ge
nc

y 
th

at
 u

se
s t

hi
s a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 
pr

og
re

ss
iv

e-
de

si
gn

 b
ui

ld
 p

ro
ce

ss
 m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

Le
gi

sl
at

ur
e.

 

Su
pp

or
t 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
20

23
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
, 

ad
op

te
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
, p

ro
gr

es
si

ve
 d

es
ig

n-
bu

ild
 e

lig
ib

le
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
ac

ili
tie

s, 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s, 

so
lid

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s a

nd
 w

at
er

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
bi

ll 
w

ill
 n

ow
 a

ut
ho

riz
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 o

th
er

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 n
ee

ds
 to

 fu
rth

er
 su

pp
or

t 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
’s

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 fo

r r
el

ia
bl

e 
w

at
er

 su
pp

ly
 

de
liv

er
ie

s t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t i

ts
 se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
. 

   

SB
 8

67
 

A
lle

n 
(D

-S
an

ta
 

M
on

ic
a)

 
   

A
m

en
de

d 
6/

22
/2

02
3 

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
N

at
ur

al
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

  

D
ro

ug
ht

, F
lo

od
 a

nd
 W

at
er

 R
es

ili
en

ce
, 

W
ild

fir
e 

an
d 

Fo
re

st
 R

es
ili

en
ce

, C
oa

st
al

 
R

es
ili

en
ce

, E
xt

re
m

e 
H

ea
t M

iti
ga

tio
n,

 
B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

nd
 N

at
ur

e-
B

as
ed

 C
lim

at
e 

So
lu

tio
ns

, C
lim

at
e 

Sm
ar

t A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

, P
ar

k 
C

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

O
ut

do
or

 A
cc

es
s, 

an
d 

C
le

an
 

E
ne

rg
y 

B
on

d 
A

ct
 o

f 2
02

4.
 

 Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
 a

ut
ho

riz
e 

a 
$1

5.
5 

bi
lli

on
 

ge
ne

ra
l o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
bo

nd
 fo

r a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
-

ba
se

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s t

ha
t w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a’

s 
cl

im
at

e 
re

si
lie

nc
y.

 If
 a

pp
ro

ve
d,

 th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

on
 th

e 
M

ar
ch

 5
, 2

02
4 

st
at

ew
id

e 
ba

llo
t. 

Su
pp

or
t, 

if 
am

en
de

d 
  B

as
ed

 o
n 

Ju
ne

 
20

23
 B

oa
rd

 
A

ct
io

n 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 

cu
rr

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
pr

io
rit

ie
s a

nd
 su

pp
or

ts
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

’s
 C

lim
at

e 
A

da
pt

at
io

n 
M

as
te

r P
la

n.
  

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 is
 se

ek
in

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
, d

am
 sa

fe
ty

, r
eg

io
na

l 
co

nv
ey

an
ce

, d
ro

ug
ht

, a
nd

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

 

Page 40 of 71



II 

118TH CONGRESS 
1ST SESSION S. 2514 

To amend the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Act to modify certain 
requirements applicable to salinity control units, and for other purposes. 

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES 

JULY 26, 2023 
Mr. BENNET (for himself, Ms. LUMMIS, Mr. PADILLA, Mr. BARRASSO, Mrs. 

FEINSTEIN, Ms. SINEMA, Mr. ROMNEY, and Mr. HICKENLOOPER) intro-
duced the following bill; which was read twice and referred to the Com-
mittee on Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry 

A BILL 
To amend the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Act 

to modify certain requirements applicable to salinity con-
trol units, and for other purposes. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-1

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 2

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 3

This Act may be cited as the ‘‘Colorado River Salinity 4

Control Fix Act’’. 5

SEC. 2. SALINITY CONTROL UNITS. 6

Section 205 of the Colorado River Basin Salinity 7

Control Act (43 U.S.C. 1595) is amended— 8

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00001 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 44 of 71



2 

•S 2514 IS

(1) by striking the section designation and all 1

that follows through ‘‘(a) The Secretary’’ and insert-2

ing the following: 3

‘‘SEC. 205. SALINITY CONTROL UNITS; AUTHORITY AND 4

FUNCTIONS OF THE SECRETARY OF THE IN-5

TERIOR. 6

‘‘(a) ALLOCATION OF COSTS.—The Secretary’’; 7

(2) by striking paragraph (1) and inserting the 8

following: 9

‘‘(1) NONREIMBURSABLE COSTS; REIMBURS-10

ABLE COSTS.— 11

‘‘(A) NONREIMBURSABLE COSTS.— 12

‘‘(i) IN GENERAL.—In recognition of 13

Federal responsibility for the Colorado 14

River as an interstate stream and for 15

international comity with Mexico, Federal 16

ownership of the land of the Colorado 17

River Basin from which most of the dis-18

solved salts originate, and the policy estab-19

lished in the Federal Water Pollution Con-20

trol Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) and ex-21

cept as provided in clause (ii), the fol-22

lowing shall be nonreimbursable: 23

‘‘(I) 75 percent of the total costs 24

of construction and replacement of 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00002 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 45 of 71



3 

•S 2514 IS

each unit or separable feature of a 1

unit authorized by section 202(a)(1), 2

including 90 percent of— 3

‘‘(aa) the costs of operation 4

and maintenance of each unit or 5

separable feature of a unit au-6

thorized by that section; and 7

‘‘(bb) the total costs of con-8

struction, operation, and mainte-9

nance of the associated measures 10

to replace incidental fish and 11

wildlife values foregone. 12

‘‘(II) 75 percent of the total costs 13

of construction and replacement of 14

each unit or separable feature of a 15

unit authorized by section 202(a)(2), 16

including 100 percent of— 17

‘‘(aa) the costs of operation 18

and maintenance of each unit or 19

separable feature of a unit au-20

thorized by that section; and 21

‘‘(bb) the total costs of con-22

struction, operation, and mainte-23

nance of the associated measures 24

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00003 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 46 of 71



4 

•S 2514 IS

to replace incidental fish and 1

wildlife values foregone. 2

‘‘(III) 75 percent of the total 3

costs of construction, operation, main-4

tenance, and replacement of each unit 5

or separable feature of a unit author-6

ized by section 202(a)(3), including 7

75 percent of the total costs of con-8

struction, operation, and maintenance 9

of the associated measures to replace 10

incidental fish and wildlife values fore-11

gone. 12

‘‘(IV) 70 percent of the total 13

costs of construction, operation, main-14

tenance, and replacement of each unit 15

or separable feature of a unit author-16

ized by paragraphs (4) and (6) of sec-17

tion 202(a), including 70 percent of 18

the total costs of construction, oper-19

ation, and maintenance of the associ-20

ated measures to replace incidental 21

fish and wildlife values foregone. 22

‘‘(V) 70 percent of the total costs 23

of construction and replacement of 24

each unit or separable feature of a 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00004 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 47 of 71



5 

•S 2514 IS

unit authorized by section 202(a)(5), 1

including 100 percent of— 2

‘‘(aa) the costs of operation 3

and maintenance of each unit or 4

separable feature of a unit au-5

thorized by that section; and 6

‘‘(bb) the total costs of con-7

struction, operation, and mainte-8

nance of the associated measures 9

to replace incidental fish and 10

wildlife values foregone. 11

‘‘(VI) 85 percent of the total 12

costs of implementation of the on- 13

farm measures authorized by section 14

202(c), including 85 percent of the 15

total costs of the associated measures 16

to replace incidental fish and wildlife 17

values foregone. 18

‘‘(ii) SPECIAL RULE FOR NONREIM-19

BURSABLE COSTS FOR FISCAL YEARS 2024 20

AND 2025.—Notwithstanding clause (i), for 21

each of fiscal years 2024 and 2025, the 22

following shall be nonreimbursable: 23

‘‘(I) 75 percent of all costs de-24

scribed in clause (i)(I). 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00005 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 48 of 71



6 

•S 2514 IS

‘‘(II) 75 percent of all costs de-1

scribed in clause (i)(II). 2

‘‘(III) 70 percent of all costs de-3

scribed in clause (i)(V). 4

‘‘(IV) The percentages of all 5

costs described in subclauses (III), 6

(IV), and (VI) of clause (i). 7

‘‘(B) REIMBURSABLE COSTS.—The total 8

costs remaining after the allocations under 9

clauses (i) and (ii) of subparagraph (A) shall be 10

reimbursable as provided for in paragraphs (2), 11

(3), (4), and (5).’’; 12

(3) in subsection (b), by striking the subsection 13

designation and all that follows through ‘‘Costs of 14

construction’’ in paragraph (1) and inserting the fol-15

lowing: 16

‘‘(b) COSTS PAYABLE FROM LOWER COLORADO 17

RIVER BASIN DEVELOPMENT FUND.— 18

‘‘(1) IN GENERAL.—Costs of construction’’; 19

(4) in subsection (c), by striking ‘‘(c) Costs of 20

construction’’ and inserting the following: 21

‘‘(c) COSTS PAYABLE FROM UPPER COLORADO 22

RIVER BASIN FUND.—Costs of construction’’; and 23

(5) in subsection (e), by striking ‘‘(e) The Sec-24

retary is’’ and inserting the following: 25

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00006 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 49 of 71



7 

•S 2514 IS

‘‘(e) UPWARD ADJUSTMENT OF RATES FOR ELEC-1

TRICAL ENERGY.—The Secretary is’’. 2

Æ 

VerDate Sep 11 2014 02:49 Aug 10, 2023 Jkt 039200 PO 00000 Frm 00007 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6301 E:\BILLS\S2514.IS S2514kj
oh

ns
on

 o
n 

D
S

K
79

L0
C

42
P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 B

IL
LS

Page 50 of 71



 

Agenda Item No. 8 
 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors Meeting Date:  October 26, 2023 

From: Sherri Seitz, Public Affairs Manager 

Subject: Public Education and Outreach Report 

 

Bill Message 

 

Customer October/November bill message: 

Fall is the perfect time to refresh your landscape. Nearly half of residential water is used 

outdoors, and as much as half of that is wasted or lost to overwatering, runoff and 

evaporation. Visit www.ETWD/conservation/landscape-workshops for more information on 

upcoming leak detection and landscape workshops. 

El Toro Regional Reservoir Outreach 

Following this report is the most recent El Toro Regional Reservoir construction alert flyer 

sent to the customers surrounding the Reservoir. 

Press Release 

Staff distributed a press release announcing the appointment of Director Fred Adjarian. 

Past Events 

Laguna Woods Village Gate 11 Fall Meeting (CH 2) 

On September 26, Vu Chu and Sherri Seitz staffed an information table at the Laguna 

Woods Village Gate 11 Fall meeting.  The meeting drew approximately 100 attendees. 

http://www.etwd/conservation/landscape-workshops


 
Public Education and Outreach Report 
Page 2 
 

 

Laguna Woods Village College Club 

On September 20, 2023, Sherri Seitz and Vu Chu presented on “How water gets to your 

tap” to the College Club at their monthly meeting.  Approximately 50 village residents 

attended. 

 



 
Public Education and Outreach Report 
Page 3 
 

 

City of Lake Forest Leadership Academy 

Each year the City of Lake Forest holds an eight-week leadership academy for citizens to 

learn about their city.  Dennis Cafferty along with representatives from SCE and IRWD 

presented on October 18, 2023.  Dennis’s presentation included information on ETWD 

services, water supply and the current challenges we face as a water district.  

Approximately 20 residents were registered for the academy course. 



 
Public Education and Outreach Report 
Page 4 
 

 

Upcoming Community Events 

South County Disaster Preparedness Expo 

Staff will staff a booth and provide water from ETWD’s emergency water trailer at the City 

of Mission Viejo South County Disaster Preparedness Expo on Saturday, October 21, 

2023 from 9 am to 12 pm at the Village Green at the Norman Murray Community and 

Senior Center. 

H2O for HOAs 

ETWD staff is partnering with MNWD, IRWD, SMWD, SCWD, TCWD, LBCWD and the 

cities of Aliso Viejo, Dana Point, Laguna Beach, Laguna Hills, Laguna Niguel, Laguna 

Woods, Lake Forest, Mission Viejo, Rancho Santa Margarita, San Clemente and 

Unincorporated Orange County to hold this year’s H20 for HOA event on Thursday, 

October 26, 2023 from 8 a.m. to 12 p.m. at the Norman P. Murray Community Center in 

Mission Viejo.  Donna Rane-Szostak of Laguna Woods Village will participate as a panelist 

this year on the “How to Push Through a Successful Project” from an HOA perspective. 

 



 
Public Education and Outreach Report 
Page 5 
 

ETWD “Pipe Patrol - Leak Detection and Prevention” Workshops  

Vu Chu will conduct 2 “Pipe Patrol – Leak Detection and Prevention” Workshops at ETWD 

headquarters.  These workshops will provide customers information on how to find, fix and 

prevent leaks in and around the home.  The first workshop is scheduled for Tuesday, 

October 24 from 6:30 p.m. to 8 p.m. and the second workshop is Saturday, October 28 

from 9 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. 

MWD Landscape Workshops 

ETWD is co-hosting a series of free online landscape workshops with MWD and run by G3 

Green Gardeners Group.  For each class, ETWD will be able to provide an introduction for 

each workshop. Schedule is as follows: 

October 18 – 6 pm to 7 pm – Good Bye Grass – Qualify for a Turf Removal Rebate 

October 21 – 9 am – 10 am – Deciphering Your Irrigation Controller 

November 2 – 6 pm to 7 pm – CA Friendly Native Plant Landscape 

November 7 – 6 pm to 7 pm - Irrigation & Water Use Efficiency 

November 8 – 6 to 7:30 pm – Garden Design 

November 14– 6 pm to 7 pm – Drip Irrigation 

Girl Scouts Tour 

ETWD is co-hosting a Girl Scout tour with MWDOC at the ETWD Water Recycling Plant on 

Saturday, November 4, 2023 from 9 a.m. – 11 a.m. 

  



 
Public Education and Outreach Report 
Page 6 
 

City of Lake Forest/Lake Forest Chamber of Commerce 

Law & Order O.C – Legislative Luncheon 

ETWD will provide drought tolerant centerpieces for the City of Lake Forest/Lake 

Forest Chamber of Commerce Law & Order O.C. Legislative Luncheon in 

November. 

Elf Yourself 5K 

ETWD staff will provide water from ETWD’s water trailer to race attendees at the 

upcoming City of Lake Forest/Lake Forest Chamber of Commerce Elf Yourself 5K 

Race on Saturday, November 18, 2023 at the Lake Forest Sports Park. A flyer 

follows this report. 

Boy Scout Tour 

ETWD is co-hosting a Boy Scout tour with MWDOC at the ETWD Water Recycling Plant 

on Saturday, December 9, 2023 from 8 a.m. – 12 noon. 



LIVING WORD
LUTHERAN CHURCH

LAGUNA PARENT 
PARTICIPATION

PRESCHOOL

CONSTRUCTION
ROUTE

EL TORO REGIONAL RESERVOIR SITE MAP

THERE WILL BE NO IMPACT 
TO RESIDENTS’ WATER SERVICE.

CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS
• Work Hours: 7 a.m. to 5 p.m.
• Monday through Friday, except holidays 

During the project, residents near the reservoir 
can expect:

• Increased construction noise during the day.
• Increased construction traffic in and around the site, 

including entering the site off La Glorieta and exiting the 
site onto Alicia Parkway next to the Living World Lutheran 
Church and Laguna Parent Participation School.

• Larger vehicles moving on and off the property.

For more information on this project call 
(949) 837-0660, or visit etwd.com/eltororeservoir.

PROJECT UPDATE
Thank you for your patience during the El Toro Reservoir 
Liner and Cover Replacement Project. The liner and cover 
replacement is now complete, and the reservoir is filled.

RESERVOIR PERIMETER ROAD REPAIR
During the next two months, El Toro Water District will be 
replacing the asphalt road around the perimeter of the 
reservoir.

SHELL CASINGS
ETWD has found multiple pellet gun/BB gun pellets with 
sharp tips on and around the reservoir. These sharp tips can 
cause damage to the reservoir by poking a hole in the cover. As 
a reminder, it is illegal to discharge a pellet/BB gun within the 
City of Mission Viejo.

If you have any information regarding these incidents, you 
are encouraged to call ETWD at (949) 837-0660 or the Orange 
County Sheriff at (949) 770-6011.  We thank you for your 
attention to this matter.



    Agenda Item No. 9 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors  Meeting Date:  October 26, 2023 

From: Vu Chu, Water Use Efficiency Analyst 

Subject: Water Use Efficiency Report 

Rebate Programs: 

The SoCal WaterSmart regional rebate program is available to ETWD customers provided 
by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, the Municipal Water District of 
Orange County and ETWD. 

The following tables reflect the ETWD customer device rebates available to customers from 
July 2022 through June 30, 2024. 

Select device purchases are eligible for rebates while meeting eligibility requirements and 
subject to funding availability.  Rebate information can be found at 
www.etwd.com/conservation/rebates. 

Residential Rebate Programs: 

Device MET 
Rebate 

MWDOC 
Grant 

ETWD 
Rebate 

Total Rebate 
(up to) 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 

$85 $115 $200

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet 

$40 $60 $100

Rotating Sprinkler Nozzles 
(min 30 per home) 

$2 ea $2 

Smart Irrigation Timer $80 $100 $70 $250 

Turf Removal Program (up to 
5,000 sq ft)* 

$2 sq. ft. $1 sq. ft. $1 sq. ft. $4 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor System 
<1 Acre 
>1 Acre

$80 
$35/station 

$100 $70 $250 
$35/station 



 
Water Use Efficiency Report 
Page 2 
 
 
Hose Bib Irrigation Controller $35   $35  

Rain Barrels 
Cisterns 
(200 -500 gallon) 
(501-999 gallon) 
(1,000 gallon or more) 

$35 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

  $35 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

Spray to Drip Irrigation (up to 
5,000 sf of converted area per 
fiscal year) 

 $0.50 sq. 
ft. 

$0.25 sq. 
ft. 

$0.75 sq. ft. 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  MWDOC Grant funding based on 
availability. ETWD has discontinued funding of synthetic turf rebates. 
 
Commercial Rebate Programs: 
 

Device MET 
Rebate 

MWDOC 
Grant 

ETWD 
Rebate 

Total Rebate 
(up to) 

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet  
 

$40   $40 

Multi-family Premium 
High Efficiency Toilet  
 

$40   $40 

Zero Water/Ultra Low 
Water Urinal 

$200   $200 

Plumbing Flow Control 
Valve 
(min. 10) 

$5   $5 

Smart Irrigation 
Timer/Central Computer 
Irrigation Controller/Soil 
Moisture Sensor 
System/Hose Bib 
Irrigation Controller 

$35/station   $35/station 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (minimum 
quantity of 15) 

$2   $2 

Rotating Nozzles – 
Large Rotary 

$13   $13 

Turf Removal Program 
(up to 50,000 sq ft MET-
MWDOC/up to 10,000 sq. 
ft. ETWD funding)* 

$2 sq. ft*   $2 sq. ft.* 

Spray to Drip Irrigation 
(up to 45,000 sq. ft) 

 $0.50 sq. ft.  $0.50 sq. ft. 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  Synthetic turf is not eligible for 
the turf removal rebate.  Additional commercial rebates available online at ocwatersmart.com.  MWDOC 
Grant funding based on availability. 
 



 
Water Use Efficiency Report 
Page 3 
 
 
Actual Customer Rebates Analysis: 
 
The following ETWD residential customer and commercial customer device rebates were 
approved by the Metropolitan Water District and the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County during the month of September 2023. 
 
 

Residential 
Device Rebates 

  

Rebates 
Approved 

September 
2023 

ETWD 
Amount 

Paid  

MET 
Amount  

Paid 

Total  
Rebate 

Paid 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 

2 $230 $170 $400.00 

Rain Barrel   1     $35.00 

 

The following ETWD rebates for Turf Removal Program and Spray-To-Drip Program that 
have been paid during the current fiscal year 2023/2024 through the end of September 2023.  
 

 
Turf Removal Program 

 

Total sq.ft. 
Paid 

ETWD 
Supplemental 

Amount 

ETWD Supplemental 
Rebate Total 

Turf Removal 
Residential & Commercial 

6,733 $1 sq. ft. 
 

$6,733.00 

Spray-To-Drip  
Residential & Commercial  

4,185 $0.25 sq. ft. $1,046.25  

 
Water Use Efficiency Plan Update: 
 

The District Water Budget-Based Tiered Conservation Rate Structure (WBBTCRS) pricing 
structure is the primary plan that gives customers the incentive needed to be efficient. The 
Plan efforts initially will concentrate on those customers continually in the Inefficient and 
Excessive Tiers (Tiers 3 and 4).  During September 2023, residential customers accounted 
for 64.4% of Tier 3 usage and dedicated irrigation accounted for 35.6%. For Tier 4, 
residential customers accounted for 49.2% and dedicated irrigation accounted for 50.8% 
during the same period.  

Total Consumption Comparison to Evapotranspiration (ET) Factor: 

Included in this month’s Water Use Efficiency Report is a chart comparing the current fiscal 
year consumption and ET factor to the fiscal 2022/23 consumption and ET factor. Total 
potable water consumption decreased 10.24% in September 2023 versus September 2022. 
The ET factor decreased from 5.23 to 3.99 during the same period.  



 
Water Use Efficiency Report 
Page 4 
 
 
ETWD Tier Consumption Information and Usage Information Compared to Previous 
Years:  

The following graphs highlight ETWD year-to-date consumption and consumption by tier for 
the current fiscal year compared to 2022-2023 fiscal year. ETWD water consumption 
compared to 2013 and 2020 are also included.  

 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY 2022-2023 302,569 265,312 295,875 243,292 215,271 183,731 151,223 147,895 137,806 158,858 191,244 229,339

FY 2023-2024 257,133 291,565 265,582

% Change -15.02% 9.90% -10.24%

FY 22/23 ET 7.15 6.91 5.23 3.60 2.92 1.82 2.02 2.75 3.02 4.69 3.80 4.57

FY 23/24 ET 7.03 6.30 3.99

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Total Consumption Comparison (CCF)

ET
 F

ac
to

r



Residential
Laguna

Woods Village
Multi Family Trailer Parks Condo

Irrigation -
Functional

Irrigation -
Recreational

Commercial
Recycled

Water
Public

Authority
Private Fire Flooding

Tier IV 1,392 322 688 372 365 3,125 114 0 0 0 0 0

Tier III 2,171 770 1,057 211 609 2,420 239 0 0 0 0 0

Tier II 21,825 15,354 1,132 574 196 35,097 12,339 0 0 0 0 0

Tier I 50,837 46,896 18,945 5,195 9,653 0 0 30,520 55,379 2,724 5 435

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

Bi
lli

ng
 U

ni
ts

September 2023 Water Sales



Residential
Laguna Woods

Village
Multi Family Trailer Parks Condo

Irrigation -
Functional

Irrigation -
Recreational

Commercial Recycled Water Public Authority Private Fire Flooding

Tier IV 3,185 744 2,162 1,385 1,060 7,504 333 0 0 0 0 0

Tier III 4,901 2,579 3,037 660 1,694 6,855 640 0 0 0 0 0

Tier II 72,538 61,384 4,392 2,201 580 113,038 38,786 0 0 0 0 0

Tier I 148,627 136,069 54,831 15,495 27,726 0 0 91,550 179,026 8,988 24 1,312

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

150,000

175,000

200,000

225,000

250,000

Bi
lli

ng
 U

ni
ts

Year-to-Date Water Sales as of September 2023



Third United Mutual 50 GRF

 26,705  42,808  1,458  3,096

Tier 4 213 109 - 77

Tier 3 306 452 12 198

Tier 2 7,185 15,786 12 2,821

Tier 1 19,001 26,461 1,434 -

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

Bi
lli

ng
 U

ni
ts

Laguna Woods Village
September 2023 Water Sales 

Total

Third United Mutual 50 GRF

80,459 143,223 4,083 10,110

Tier 4 529 208 3 86

Tier 3 1,322 1,655 183 426

Tier 2 24,635 63,096 65 9,598

Tier 1 53,973 78,264 3,832 0

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

Bi
lli

ng
 U

ni
ts

Laguna Woods Village
Year-to-Date Water Sales 

September 2023

Total



Third United Mutual 50 GRF
LWV Golf

Course

 62,385  45,565  2,227  7,953  13,874

Tier 4 213 109 - 77

Tier 3 306 452 12 198

Tier 2 7,185 15,786 12 2,821

Tier 1 19,001 26,461 1,434 -

RW 35,680 2,757 769 4,857 13,874

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

Bi
lli

ng
 U

ni
ts

Laguna Woods Village
September 2023 Water & RW Sales 

Third United Mutual 50 GRF
LWV Golf

Course

203,084 152,904 6,587 20,221 51,147

Tier 4 529 208 3 86

Tier 3 1,322 1,655 183 426

Tier 2 24,635 63,096 65 9,598

Tier 1 53,973 78,264 3,832 0

RW 122,625 9,681 2,504 10,111 51,147

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

Bi
lli

ng
 U

ni
ts

Laguna Woods Village
Year-to-Date Water & RW Sales 

September 2023

Total Total



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 302,569 265,312 295,875 243,292 215,271 183,731 151,223 147,895 137,806 158,858 191,244 229,339

2023-2024 257,133 291,565 265,582

% Change -15.02% 9.90% -10.24%

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
ETWD Total Consumption 



YTD Start  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

2022-2023 0 302,569 567,881 863,756 1,107,04 1,322,31 1,506,05 1,657,27 1,805,16 1,942,97 2,101,83 2,293,07 2,522,41

2023-2024 0 257,133 548,698 814,280

% Change -15.02% -3.38% -5.73%

0

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

1,600,000

2,000,000

2,400,000

2,800,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

ETWD Fiscal YTD Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 134,45 118,83 135,39 121,83 120,87 113,47 106,21 101,61 95,661 110,73 110,63 128,54

2023-2024 126,58 124,63 131,52

% Change -5.85% 4.88% -2.86%

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
Tier I Consumption 



YTD Start  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

2022-2023 0 134,454 253,288 388,682 510,513 631,387 744,860 851,076 952,691 1,048,35 1,159,08 1,269,71 1,398,26

2023-2024 0 126,589 251,222 382,748

% Change -5.85% -0.82% -1.53%

0

300,000

600,000

900,000

1,200,000

1,500,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Tier I Fiscal YTD Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 121,621 102,525 105,292 72,718 50,151 30,663 11,482 15,388 13,515 17,051 46,166 53,657

2023-2024 89,331 117,071 86,517

% Change -26.55% 14.19% -17.83%

22/23 ET 7.15 6.91 5.23 3.60 2.92 1.82 2.02 2.75 3.02 4.69 3.80 4.57

23/24 ET 7.03 6.30 3.99

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

0

30,000

60,000

90,000

120,000

150,000

180,000
C

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 in
 C

C
F

Tier II Consumption 

ET
 F

ac
to

r

*Impact of Tropical Storm Hilary that occured end of August 2023 is reflected in this billing cycle.



YTD Start  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

2022-2023 0 121,621 224,146 329,438 402,156 452,307 482,970 494,452 509,840 523,355 540,406 586,572 640,229

2023-2024 0 89,331 206,402 292,919

% Change -26.55% -7.92% -11.09%

0

300,000

600,000

900,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Tier II Fiscal YTD Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 5,402 5,705 8,432 7,778 6,967 6,151 4,537 3,253 3,149 2,948 3,570 6,713

2023-2024 5,036 7,853 7,477

% Change -6.78% 37.65% -11.33%

0

3,000

6,000

9,000
C

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 in
 C

C
F

Tier III Consumption 



YTD Start  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

2022-2023 0 5,402 11,107 19,539 27,317 34,284 40,435 44,972 48,225 51,374 54,322 57,892 64,605

2023-2024 0 5,036 12,889 20,366

% Change -6.78% 16.04% 4.23%

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
Tier III Fiscal YTD Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 4,560 5,219 7,361 7,727 7,241 7,582 5,643 2,695 3,030 2,532 3,513 8,264

2023-2024 3,957 6,038 6,378

% Change -13.22% 15.69% -13.35%

0

3,000

6,000

9,000
C

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 in
 C

C
F

Tier IV Consumption 



YTD Start  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

2022-2023 0 4,560 9,779 17,140 24,867 32,108 39,690 45,333 48,028 51,058 53,590 57,103 65,367

2023-2024 0 3,957 9,995 16,373

% Change -13.22% 2.21% -4.47%

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Tier IV Fiscal YTD Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 86,607 74,169 83,523 70,756 63,356 54,100 48,008 48,670 40,687 52,066 55,989 66,974

2023-2024 77,138 75,888 76,225

% Change -10.93% 2.32% -8.74%

35,000

45,000

55,000

65,000

75,000

85,000

95,000

105,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
Single Family Residents Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 40,893 35,378 39,659 35,949 35,277 33,501 35,420 32,782 30,992 36,378 32,130 36,592

2023-2024 38,711 37,515 38,997

% Change -5.34% 6.04% -1.67%

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
Multi Family Residents Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 71,755 62,259 67,619 55,197 52,565 43,857 36,038 33,935 34,694 36,736 46,453 55,899

2023-2024 59,374 78,060 63,342

% Change -17.25% 25.38% -6.33%

25,000

35,000

45,000

55,000

65,000

75,000

85,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
Laguna Woods Village Consumption (Excluding Dedicated Irrigation) 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 32,509 29,263 35,438 29,659 27,823 24,307 22,802 23,280 21,469 24,043 24,968 29,341

2023-2024 28,574 32,456 30,520

% Change -12.10% 10.91% -13.88%

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F
Commercial Consumption 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2022-2023 66,782 60,477 65,678 48,152 34,035 26,411 8,412 7,564 8,982 8,084 29,310 37,715

2023-2024 49,690 64,132 53,334

% Change -25.59% 6.04% -18.79%

22/23 ET 7.15 6.91 5.23 3.60 2.92 1.82 2.02 2.75 3.02 4.69 3.80 4.57

23/24 ET 7.03 6.30 3.99

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000
C

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 in
 C

C
F

Dedicated Irrigation Consumption (including LWV) 

ET
 F

ac
to

r

*Impact of Tropical Storm Hilary that occured end of August 2023 is reflected in this billing cycle.



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY 2022-2023 89,088 76,424 74,943 55,909 41,920 19,185 4,152 4,801 9,905 8,252 38,244 41,307

FY 2023-2024 75,779 85,141 69,253

% Change -14.94% 11.41% -7.59%

FY 22/23 ET 7.15 6.91 5.23 3.60 2.92 1.82 2.02 2.75 3.02 4.69 3.80 4.57

FY 23/24 ET 7.03 6.30 3.99

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Recycled Water Consumption

ET
Fa

ct
o

r



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2020 Potable 460.20 524.32 402.00 429.20 709.80 685.37 843.39 804.95 724.90 690.90 539.80 467.00

2023 Potable 348.80 381.03 334.04 448.44 536.05 570.79 644.66 679.99 517.40

Potable % Change -24.21% -27.33% -16.91% 4.48% -24.48% -16.72% -23.56% -15.52% -28.62%

2020 ET 2.42 3.43 3.53 4.47 6.59 5.93 7.23 7.19 5.45 4.38 2.92 2.62

2023 ET 2.02 2.75 3.02 4.69 3.80 4.57 7.03 6.30 3.99

 -

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

ETWD Consumption Comparison vs 2020 (AF)

ET
 F

ac
to

r

*September 2023 data excludes 763 AF to refill R-6 Reservoir. 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2013 Potable 543.15 502.41 736.34 825.00 874.56 996.66 1016.80 1042.70 963.00 811.60 684.20 593.20

2023 Potable 348.80 381.03 334.04 448.44 536.05 570.79 644.66 679.99 517.40

Potable % Change -35.78% -24.16% -54.64% -45.64% -38.71% -42.73% -36.60% -34.79% -46.27%

2013 ET 2.54 2.88 4.08 4.79 5.99 6.07 5.81 6.53 5.26 3.92 2.52 2.49

2023 ET 2.02 2.75 3.02 4.69 3.80 4.57 7.03 6.30 3.99

 -

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

ETWD Consumption Comparison vs 2013 (AF)

ET
 F

ac
to

r

*September 2023 data excludes 763 AF to refill R-6 Reservoir. 



ETWD WATER USAGE COMPARED TO 2013

-27% -30%
-18%

-25% -24% -21% -24%

-39%

-19% -16%

-30%

-16%

-9%
-13%

-15%
-12% -12% -16%

-17%

-11%

-17% -19%

-17%

-11%

-60%

-50%

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

TO
TAL SAVIN

G
S

Potable Water Recycled Water



I hereby certify that the following Agenda was posted at least 72 
hours prior to the time of the Board Meeting so noticed below, at 
the usual agenda posting location of the South Orange County  
Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) and at www.socwa.com. 

Danita Hirsh, Assistant Secretary 
SOCWA and the Board of Directors thereof 

Regular Meeting of The  
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors 

October 5, 2023 
8:30 a.m. 

PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION: 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

34156 Del Obispo Street 
Dana Point, CA  92629 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE. IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED 
ACCOMMODATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (949) 234-
5452 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING TO REQUEST SUCH ACCOMMODATIONS.  THIS AGENDA 
CAN BE OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY 
AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC HAVE THE OPTION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN AND MAY JOIN THE MEETING REMOTELY VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE FOR VISUAL INFORMATION ONLY (USE ZOOM LINK 
BELOW) AND BY TELECONFERENCE FOR AUDIO PARTICIPATION (USE PHONE NUMBERS BELOW).  THIS IS A PHONE-CALL MEETING AND 
NOT A WEB-CAST MEETING, SO PLEASE REFER TO AGENDA MATERIALS AS POSTED ON THE WEBSITE AT  WWW.SOCWA.COM. ON YOUR 
REQUEST, EVERY EFFORT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE PARTICIPATION.  FOR PARTIES PARTICIPATING REMOTELY, PUBLIC 
COMMENTS WILL BE TAKEN DURING THE MEETING FOR ORAL COMMUNICATION IN ADDITION TO PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED BY 
PARTIES PARTICIPATING IN PERSON. COMMENTS MAY BE SUBMITTED PRIOR TO THE MEETING VIA EMAIL TO ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
DANITA HIRSH AT DHIRSH@SOCWA.COM WITH THE SUBJECT LINE “REQUEST TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT.” IN THE EMAIL, PLEASE 
INCLUDE YOUR NAME, THE ITEM YOU WISH TO SPEAK ABOUT, AND THE TELEPHONE NUMBER YOU WILL BE CALLING FROM SO THAT THE 
COORDINATOR CAN UN-MUTE YOUR LINE WHEN YOU ARE CALLED UPON TO SPEAK. THOSE MAKING PUBLIC COMMENT REQUESTS 
REMOTELY VIA TELEPHONE IN REAL-TIME WILL BE ASKED TO PROVIDE YOUR NAME, THE ITEM YOU WISH TO SPEAK ABOUT, AND THE 
TELEPHONE NUMBER THAT YOU ARE CALLING FROM SO THE COORDINATOR CAN UN-MUTE YOUR LINE WHEN YOU ARE CALLED UPON TO 
SPEAK. ONCE THE MEETING HAS COMMENCED, THE CHAIR WILL INVITE YOU TO SPEAK AND ASK THE COORDINATOR TO UN-MUTE YOUR 
LINE AT THE APPROPRIATE TIME.

AGENDA ATTACHMENTS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR A MAJORITY OF, 
THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN CONNECTION WITH A MATTER 
SUBJECT FOR DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC 
INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY 
OFFICE”) OR BY PHONE REQUEST MADE TO THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT 949-234-5452.  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN 
THE RECEPTION AREA OF THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT THE SAME TIME AS THEY ARE DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 
SENT TO ANY REMOTE PARTICIPANTS REQUESTING EMAIL DELIVERY OR POSTED ON SOCWA’S WEBSITE.  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE 
DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE MEETING ROOM OR IMMEDIATELY 
UPON VERBAL REQUEST TO BE DELIVERED VIA EMAIL TO REQUESTING PARTIES PARTICIPATING REMOTELY. 

THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE REMOTELY BY VIRTUAL MEANS.  FOR AUDIO OF MEETING USE THE CALL 
IN PHONE NUMBERS BELOW AND FOR VIDEO USE THE ZOOM LINK BELOW. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://socwa.zoom.us/ 

Meeting ID: 825 5659 9386 
Passcode: 759774 

Dial by your location: 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

Find your local number: https://socwa.zoom.us/u/krJP7x89i  

http://www.socwa.com/
http://www.socwa.com/
mailto:dhirsh@socwa.com
https://socwa.zoom.us/j/82556599386?pwd=TzY0SWNYTDhRWWwxMjZxRGtXMnIrQT09
https://socwa.zoom.us/u/krJP7x89i


South Orange County Wastewater Authority 
Board of Directors Meeting  

October 5, 2023 

Agenda 

ii 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Members of the public may address the board regarding an item on the agenda or may
reserve this opportunity during the meeting at the time the item is discussed by the board.
There will be a three-minute limit for public comments.

4. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEMBER REQUEST FOR REMOTE PARTICIPATION

ACTION Board Discussion/Direction and Action.

PAGE NO 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Minutes of Board of Directors  ................................................................................................ 1 

• Board of Directors Meeting of September 7, 2023

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the subject Minutes. 

B. Minutes of Engineering Committee  ....................................................................................... 6 

• Engineering Committee Meeting of August 10, 2023

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the subject 
Minutes. 

C. Minutes of Finance Committee  ............................................................................................. 10 

• Finance Committee Meeting of June 20, 2023

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the subject 
Minutes. 

D. Preliminary Financial Reports for the Month of June 2023 (Close of Fiscal Year) and
Financial Report for the Month of July 2023 .......................................................................... 13

1. June 2023 preliminary reports included are as follows:
a. Budget vs. Actual Expenses (June 2023)

 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
 Operations and Environmental by PC (E-1.2)
 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
 Administration (Exhibit E-3)
 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)
 Q4 Fringe Pool and Fringe Rate (Exhibit E-5)



South Orange County Wastewater Authority 
Board of Directors Meeting  

October 5, 2023 

Agenda 

iii 

2. July 2023 financial reports included are as follows:
a. Summary of Disbursements for July 2023 (Exhibit A-1):
b. Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
c. Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)
d. Capital Schedule (Exhibit D)

 Capital Projects – Graph (Exhibit D-1)
e. Budget vs. Actual Expenses:

 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
 Operations and Environmental by PC (E-1.2)
 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
 Administration (Exhibit E-3)
 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)

ACTION The Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors (i) 
receive and file the June 2023 (Preliminary) Financial Reports, (ii) 
ratify the June disbursements for the period from June 1, 2023, 
through June 30, 2023, totaling $2,041,032, and (iii) ratify the July 
2023 disbursements for the period from July 1, 2023, through July 
31, 2023, totaling $3,348,611. 

E. Operations Report (August) ................................................................................................... 49

1. Monthly Operational Report
2. SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency
3. Quarterly Report on Key Operational Expenses
4. Beach Ocean Monitoring Report
5. Recycled Water Report
6. Pretreatment Report (August)

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject reports as 
submitted. 

F. Capital Improvement Program Status Report (September) .................................................. 92

ACTION Information item. 

G. Capital Improvement Construction Projects Progress and Change Order
Report (September) [Project Committees 2, 15, 17, & 24]  .................................................. 95

ACTION The Engineering Committee recommends that the PC 15 Board of 
Directors approve Change Order 1 for $4,345 to DC Hubbs 
Construction for the CTP AWMA Guardrail Replacement project. 



South Orange County Wastewater Authority 
Board of Directors Meeting  

October 5, 2023 

Agenda 

iv 

PAGE NO 

6. ENGINEERING MATTERS

A. Contract Amendment for Design of Effluent Transmission Main Air Valve
Replacement Project [Project Committee 21]  .................................................................... 110 

ACTION The Engineering Committee recommends that the PC 21 Board of 
Directors approve the contract amendment to Tetra Tech for a total 
of $55,200 for additional design services for the ETM Air Valve 
Replacement Project. 

B. Contract Award for Engin\eering Services During Construction for Coastal Treatment
Plant (CTP) Aeration Diffuser Replacement Project [Project Committee 15]  ..................... 112 

ACTION The Engineering Committee recommends to the Board of Directors 
approval of the contract to Hazen and Sawyer for a total of $68,580 
for Engineering Services During Construction for the CTP Aeration 
Diffuser Replacement Project. 

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. El Toro Water District Water District Potable Reuse Strategic Plan Support for
WaterSMART Planning and Profect Design Grant Application for FY 2023-24 ...................... 114 

ACTION Staff recommends that the SOCWA Board to sign the letter in 
support of the ETWD grant application. 

B. Rockwell TechConnect Support Agreement Renewal (via OneSource Distributors
Inc.) for $76,992.00 [Project Committees 2, 15, & 17] ............................................................ 116 

ACTION Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the Acting 
General Manager/Director of Operations to execute the Rockwell 
TechConnect Support Agreement with OneSource Distributors 
Inc. to renew SOCWA’s SCADA system licenses in the amount of 
$76,992.00. 

C. Discussion on the SCWD/SMWD Proposal Framework .........................................................  

• PC 15 Update (Dir. Dunbar)
• Engineering staffing discussion ( Dir. Goldman)

ACTION   Board Discussion/Direction and Action. 



South Orange County Wastewater Authority 
Board of Directors Meeting  

October 5, 2023 

Agenda 

v 

PAGE NO 

D. General Counsel’s Update .....................................................................................................  

• JPA Revision Process (Standing item)

ACTION Information Item 

E. General Manager’s Report (Verbal Report) ...........................................................................  

ACTION Information Item 

F. Upcoming Meetings Schedule: ............................................................................................ 
• October 5, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting
• October 12, 2023 – Engineering Committee Meeting
• October 17, 2023 – Finance Committee Meeting
• November 2, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting

ACTION Information Item. 

8. CLOSED SESSION

A. Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant Exposure to Litigation
(Gov. Code 54956.9(d)(2)) – One potential case

B. Report out of Closed Session

9. OTHER MATTERS

Determine the need to take action on the following item(s) introduced by the Acting 
General Manager/Director of Operations, which arose subsequent to the agenda being 
posted.  [Adoption of this action requires a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if less than 
two-thirds are present, a unanimous vote.] 

ADJOURNMENT 

THE NEXT SOCWA BOARD MEETING 
NOVEMBER 2, 2023 



  
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

ENGINEERING COMMITTEE  
 

October 12, 2023 
8:30 a.m. 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 
Engineering Committee was called to be held on October 12, 2023, at 8:30 a.m.  SOCWA staff will be present and 
conducting the meeting at the SOCWA Administrative Office located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, 
California. 

 
THE SOCWA MEETING ROOM IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE. IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED 
ACCOMMODATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (949) 
234-5452 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING TO REQUEST SUCH ACCOMMODATIONS.  
THIS AGENDA CAN BE OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER 
AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
HAVE THE OPTION TO PARTICIPATE IN AND MAY JOIN THE MEETING REMOTELY VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE FOR VISUAL INFORMATION 
ONLY (USE ZOOM LINK BELOW) AND BY TELECONFERENCE FOR AUDIO PARTICIPATION (USE PHONE NUMBERS BELOW).  THIS IS 
A PHONE-CALL MEETING AND NOT A WEB-CAST MEETING, SO PLEASE REFER TO AGENDA MATERIALS AS POSTED ON THE WEBSITE 
AT  WWW.SOCWA.COM. ON YOUR REQUEST, EVERY EFFORT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE PARTICIPATION.  FOR PARTIES 
PARTICIPATING REMOTELY, PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE TAKEN DURING THE MEETING FOR ORAL COMMUNICATION IN ADDITION 
TO PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED BY PARTIES PARTICIPATING IN PERSON. COMMENTS MAY BE SUBMITTED PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING VIA EMAIL TO ASSISTANT SECRETARY DANITA HIRSH AT DHIRSH@SOCWA.COM WITH THE SUBJECT LINE “REQUEST TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT.” IN THE EMAIL, PLEASE INCLUDE YOUR NAME, THE ITEM YOU WISH TO SPEAK ABOUT, AND THE 
TELEPHONE NUMBER YOU WILL BE CALLING FROM SO THAT THE COORDINATOR CAN UN-MUTE YOUR LINE WHEN YOU ARE CALLED 
UPON TO SPEAK. THOSE MAKING PUBLIC COMMENT REQUESTS REMOTELY VIA TELEPHONE IN REAL-TIME WILL BE ASKED TO 
PROVIDE YOUR NAME, THE ITEM YOU WISH TO SPEAK ABOUT, AND THE TELEPHONE NUMBER THAT YOU ARE CALLING FROM SO 
THE COORDINATOR CAN UN-MUTE YOUR LINE WHEN YOU ARE CALLED UPON TO SPEAK. ONCE THE MEETING HAS COMMENCED, 
THE CHAIR WILL INVITE YOU TO SPEAK AND ASK THE COORDINATOR TO UN-MUTE YOUR LINE AT THE APPROPRIATE TIME. 

 
AGENDA ATTACHMENTS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR A MAJORITY 
OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY ENGINEERING COMMITTEE IN CONNECTION WITH 
A MATTER SUBJECT FOR DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE ARE 
AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA 
POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY OFFICE”) OR BY PHONE REQUEST MADE TO THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT 949-234-5452.  IF SUCH 
WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO 
THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE RECEPTION AREA OF THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT THE SAME TIME AS THEY ARE 
DISTRIBUTED TO THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE AND SENT TO ANY REMOTE PARTICIPANTS REQUESTING EMAIL DELIVERY OR 
POSTED ON SOCWA’S WEBSITE.  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY 
WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE MEETING ROOM OR IMMEDIATELY UPON VERBAL REQUEST TO BE DELIVERED VIA EMAIL TO 
REQUESTING PARTIES PARTICIPATING REMOTELY. 

 
THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE REMOTELY BY VIRTUAL MEANS.  FOR AUDIO OF MEETING USE 

THE CALL IN PHONE NUMBERS BELOW AND FOR VIDEO USE THE ZOOM LINK BELOW. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://socwa.zoom.us/ 

 
Meeting ID: 826 1000 5512 

Passcode: 863335 
 

Dial by your location: 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

Find your local number: https://socwa.zoom.us/u/kdu2FoHrfJ 
 

http://www.socwa.com/
mailto:dhirsh@socwa.com
https://socwa.zoom.us/j/82610005512?pwd=d3NuMVE3bHRiSG55d0E0aXlUM1oyUT09
https://socwa.zoom.us/u/kdu2FoHrfJ


Engineering Committee Meeting  Page 2 of 3 
October 12, 2023 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. Call Meeting to Order  
 
2. Public Comments  
 

THOSE WISHING TO ADDRESS THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE ON ANY ITEM LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
WILL BE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY AT THE OPENING OF THE MEETING AND PRIOR TO THE CLOSE OF 
THE MEETING. THE AUTHORITY REQUESTS THAT YOU STATE YOUR NAME WHEN MAKING THE 
REQUEST IN ORDER THAT YOUR NAME MAY BE CALLED TO SPEAK ON THE ITEM OF INTEREST. THE 
CHAIR OF THE MEETING WILL RECOGNIZE SPEAKERS FOR COMMENT AND GENERAL MEETING 
DECORUM SHOULD BE OBSERVED IN ORDER THAT SPEAKERS ARE NOT TALKING OVER EACH OTHER 
DURING THE CALL. 

 
PAGE NO. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes..................................................................................................................... 1 

 
• Engineering Committee Minutes of September 14, 2023 
 
Recommended Action:   Staff requests that the Engineering Committee approve subject 
Minutes as submitted. 

 
4. Operations Report ....................................................................................................................... 5 

 
Recommended Action:   Information Item. 

 
5. J.B. Latham Treatment Plant Package B Project Update  

 [Project Committee 2]  ................................................................................................................ 6 
 

Recommended Action: Information Item. 
 
6. Capital Improvement Construction Projects Progress and Change Orders Report (October)  

[Project Committees 2, 15, 17, & 24] ........................................................................................... 7 
 

Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Engineering Committee recommend 
that the PC 2 Board of Directors approve Change Orders 73 through 80 for $$482,878.33 to 
Olsson Construction for the JBL Package B project. 
 

7. Contract Award for Coastal Treatment Plant (CTP) Diffuser Replacement Project 
[Project Committees 15] ............................................................................................................ 18 

 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Engineering Committee recommend 
that the PC 15 Board of Directors award the contract to Filanc in the amount of $1,022,250 
for the CTP Aeration Diffuser Replacement Project with a contingency of $122,000. 
 
 
 

 
 



Engineering Committee Meeting  Page 3 of 3 
October 12, 2023 
 

 
PAGE NO. 

 
8. Contract Award for J.B. Latham Treatment Plant (JBL) Centrate Line Upgrades 

Project [Project Committees 2] .................................................................................................... 20 
 

Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Engineering Committee recommend 
that the PC 2 Board of Directors award the contract to SS Mechanical in the amount of 
$148,455 for the JBL Centrate Line Upgrades Project with a contingency of $14,850. 
 

9. Effluent Transmission Main Trail Bridge Crossing Project Update  
[Project Committees 21, Reach D] .............................................................................................. 22 

 
Recommended Action:   Staff requests that the Engineering Committee recommend that the 
PC-21 Reach D Board of Directors approve the Tetra Tech Amendment No. 3 in the amount 
of $53,571 for a total revised contract amount of $557,138 for the final design of the Effluent 
Transmission Main Trail Bridge Crossing Project. 

 
10. Regional Treatment Plant Standby Generator Study [Project Committees 17] ............................ 28 
 

Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Engineering Committee recommend that 
the PC 17 Board of Directors provide direction on moving forward with the MCC replacement 
design.     
 

 
Adjournment 

  
I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was personally emailed or mailed to each member of the 
SOCWA Engineering Committee at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled time of the Regular 
Meeting referred to above. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was posted at least 72 hours prior to the time of the 
above-referenced Engineering Committee meeting at the usual agenda posting location of the 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority and at www.socwa.com. 
 
Dated this 5th day of October 2023. 
  
 

________________________________________________ 
Danita Hirsh, Assistant Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

http://www.socwa.com/


1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

October 2, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
 

This meeting will be held in person at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California, 92708 (Conference 
Room 101).  As a convenience for the public, the meeting may also be accessed by Zoom Webinar and will 

be available by either computer or telephone audio as indicated below.  Because this is an in-person meeting 
and the Zoom component is not required, but rather is being offered as a convenience, if there are any 

technical issues during the meeting, this meeting will continue and will not be suspended.   
Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 
 
    Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
    Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 
 
 
P&O Committee:     Staff:   H.De La Torre, J. Berg, V. Osborn,  
Director McVicker, Chair     T. Dubuque, D. Micalizzi, H. Baez, 
Director Nederhood      M. Baum-Haley, C. Busslinger,  
Director Seckel      T. Baca 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Yoo Schneider 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
1. LETTER OF INTENT – WEROC EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER  
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
2. MWDOC LEGISLATIVE POLICY PRINCIPLES ANNUAL UPDATE  

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300
http://www.mwdoc.com/


P&O Committee Meeting  October 2, 2023 
 

2 

3. INFORMATION REGARDING RECENT ORANGE COUNTY NITRIFICATION 
EVENT 

 
4. WATER USE EFFICIENCY POTENTIAL AND OPPORTUNITIES STUDY RESULTS 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS (The following items are for informational purposes only – 
background information is included in the packet. Discussion is not necessary unless 
requested by a Director.) 
 
 
5. 2023 OC WATER SUMMIT UPDATE 

 
6. PUBLIC AFFAIRS HIGHLIGHTS 

 
7. MWDOC K-12 CHOICE SCHOOL PROGRAMS UPDATE 

 
8. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Ongoing MWDOC Reliability and Engineering/Planning Projects 
b. WEROC 
c. Water Use Efficiency Projects 
d. Public and Government Affairs 

 
9. REVIEW OF ISSUES RELATED TO PLANNING OR ENGINEERING PROJECTS, 

WEROC, WATER USE EFFICIENCY, FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT 
MAINTENANCE, WATER STORAGE, WATER QUALITY, CONJUNCTIVE USE 
PROGRAMS, EDUCATION, PUBLIC AFFAIRS PROGRAMS AND EVENTS, 
PUBLIC INFORMATION PROJECTS, PUBLIC INFORMATION CONSULTANTS, 
DISTRICT FACILITIES, and MEMBER-AGENCY RELATIONS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for 

action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items designated for 
Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final action to the full 
Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board 
meetings may be obtained from the District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board 
consideration process includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on 
the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning 
Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange 
County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of the disability 
and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact information should be 
included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related 
accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide 
the requested accommodation. 



1 

WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH MET DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
18700 Ward Street, Conference Room 101, Fountain Valley, California 

October 4, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
 

This meeting will be held in person at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California, 92708 (Conference Room 
101).  As a convenience for the public, the meeting may also be accessed by Zoom Webinar and will be available 
by either computer or telephone audio as indicated below.  Because this is an in-person meeting and the Zoom 
component is not required, but rather is being offered as a convenience, if there are any technical issues during 

the meeting, this meeting will continue and will not be suspended.   
Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 

  https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 
 
     Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
      Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 
  

AGENDA 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/COMMENTS  
At this time members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning items within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also address the Board about a 
particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and before action is taken. 
 
The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address the Board 
complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to the meeting. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize item(s), which arose subsequent to the posting of the Agenda.  
(ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the Board members 
present or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present a unanimous vote.) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 
Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public 
records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 

NEXT RESOLUTION NO. 2143 
 
 
PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. PRESENTATION ON THE COLORADO RIVER BASIN SALINITY CONTROL FORUM 

BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DON BARNETT 
 

 Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 



Workshop Board Agenda October 4, 2023 
 

2 

 
 

2. LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES 
 
a. Federal Legislative Report (NRR) 
b. State Legislative Report (SDA) 
c. Legal and Regulatory Report (Ackerman) 
d. County Legislative Report (Whittingham) 
e. MWDOC Legislative Matrix 
f. Metropolitan Legislative Matrix 

 
Recommendation:  Review and discuss the information presented.  
 
 

3. QUESTIONS OR INPUT ON MET ISSUES FROM THE MEMBER AGENCIES/MET 
DIRECTOR REPORTS REGARDING MET COMMITTEE PARTICIPATION 

 
Recommendation:  Receive input and discuss the information presented. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
4. S. 2514 (BENNET, D-CO)  – COLORADO RIVER BASIN SALINITY CONTROL ACT 
 
 Recommendation: Vote to adopt a support position on S. 2514 (Bennet, D-CO).     

 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 
5. MET ITEMS CRITICAL TO ORANGE COUNTY (The following items are for 

informational purposes only – a write up on each item is included in the packet.  
Discussion is not necessary unless requested by a Director). 

 
a. MET’s Finance and Rate Issues    
b. MET’s Water Supply Condition Update 
c. Water Quality Update    
d. Colorado River Issues 
e. Delta Conveyance Activities and State Water Project Issues 

 
Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

6. METROPOLITAN (MET) BOARD AND COMMITTEE AGENDA DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

a. Summary regarding September MET Board Meeting 
b. MET 4-Month Outlook on Upcoming Issues (tentative) 
c. Review items of significance for MET Board and Committee Agendas 

 
 Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 



Workshop Board Agenda October 4, 2023 
 

3 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, 
District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain 
Valley, CA 92728. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate 
arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodations should make the request with adequate time 
before the meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodations. 



1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

October 11, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
 

Teleconference Site: 
1620 NW Mulholland Drive 

Roseburg, OR 97470 
Director McVicker will participate from the teleconference location.   

Members of the public may attend and participate in the meeting at both in-person locations. 
 

This meeting will be held in person at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California, 92708 (Conference Room 101). 
 As a convenience for the public, the meeting may also be accessed by Zoom Webinar and will be available by either computer or 
telephone audio as indicated below.  Because this is an in-person meeting and the Zoom component is not required, but rather is 

being offered as a convenience, if there are any technical issues during the meeting, this meeting will continue and will not be 
suspended. 

Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 

 
    Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
    Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 

 
A&F Committee:     Staff:  H. De La Torre, C. Harris, 
Director Dick, Chair     H. Chumpitazi, M. Baum-Haley,  
Director Thomas     K. Davanaugh 
Director Crane 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Yoo Schneider 
 

MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board of 
Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each Committee 
has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate committee 
members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be adjourned for lack of a 
quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those Committee members and alternate 
members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the Committee 
should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action on 
item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the Agenda. 
(Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items and 
are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be available 
for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, 
California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records will also be made 
available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PRESENTATION ITEMS 
 
1. PRESENTATION BY PARS REGARDING OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

TRUST & PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PROGRAM (PRSP) TRUST CLIENT 
REVIEW 



A&F Committee Meeting  October 11, 2023 
 

2 

 
2. SUMMARY OF ORANGE COUNTY FY 2022-23 IMPORTED WATER SALES 

 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
3. TREASURER'S REPORT 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report – September 2023 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of October 2023 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of September 2023 
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of September 2023 
e. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – August 2023 
f. OPEB and Pension Trust Fund statement 

 
4. FINANCIAL REPORT - Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the 

Period Ending August 31, 2023 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
5. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION AND BENEFITS 

STUDY  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES 
ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  DISCUSSION IS 
NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
6. INDIVIDUAL CHARGES DISCLOSURE REPORT 
 
7. DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS 
 
8. CALPERS ANNUAL VALUATION REPORT AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 
 
9. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 
10. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA AND WATER SUPPLY INFORMATION 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
11. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL MATTERS, 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed 

for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items 
designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final 
action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for 
Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the District Secretary.  Members of the public are 
advised that the Board consideration process includes consideration of each agenda item by one or 
more Committees indicated on the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the 
Board meeting considering an item consequently is advised. 



A&F Committee Meeting  October 11, 2023 
 

3 

 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification 
or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning 
Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange 
County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact information 
should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for 
the District to provide the requested accommodation. 



REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
18700 Ward Street, Board Room, Fountain Valley, California 

October 18, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 

This meeting will be held in person.  As a convenience for the public, the meeting may also be 
accessed by Zoom Webinar and will be available by either computer or telephone audio as indicated 
below.  Because this is an in-person meeting and the Zoom component is not required, but rather is 
being offered as a convenience, if there are any technical issues during the meeting, this meeting will 
continue and will not be suspended. 

Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 

Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply
(877) 853 5247 Toll-free

Webinar ID: 882 866 5300#

AGENDA 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENTS/PARTICIPATION 
At this time, members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also address 
the Board about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and before 
action is taken.  If the item is on the Consent Calendar, please inform the Board Secretary before 
action is taken on the Consent Calendar and the item will be removed for separate consideration. 

The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address the 
Board complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to 
the meeting. 

ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize items(s) which arose subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the 
Board members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous 
vote of those members present.) 

ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO 
MEETING Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate 
to open session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s 
business office located at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular 
business hours.  When practical, these public records will also be made available on the District’s 
Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com.

NEXT  RESOLUTION  NO.  2143  

CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 1 to 6) 
(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a 
Board member requests separate action on a specific item) 

Page 1 of 127



Regular Meeting Agenda      October 18, 2023 
 

 
2 

 
1. MINUTES 

a. September 6, 2023 Workshop Board Meeting 
b. September 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

 
Recommendation:  Approve as presented. 

 
2. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 

a. Planning & Operations Committee Meeting:  September 5, 2023 
b. Administration & Finance Committee Meeting:  September 13, 2023 
c. Executive Committee Meeting:  September 21, 2023 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
3. TREASURER'S REPORTS 

a. MWDOC Revenue/Cash Receipt Register as of September 30, 2023 
b. Disbursement Registers (September/October) 

 
Recommendation: Ratify and approve as presented. 
 
c. Summary of Cash and Investment and Portfolio Master Summary 

Report (Cash and Investment report) as of August 31, 2023 
d. PARS Monthly Statement (OPEB Trust) 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the 
Period Ending August 31, 2023 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 

5. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION AND 
BENEFITS STUDY  
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Interim General Manager to enter into a 

professional services contract with Ralph Andersen and 
Associates to conduct the Classification and Benefits 
Study, in the amount of $42,800.   

 
6. LETTER OF INTENT – WEROC EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER  

 
Recommendation: Approve the Letter of Intent with the Moulton Niguel 

Water District, subject to non-substantive changes 
approved by legal counsel and; authorize the Interim 
General Manager to execute the Letter of Intent. 

 
End Consent Calendar 

  

Page 2 of 127



Regular Meeting Agenda October 18, 2023 

3 

INFORMATION CALENDAR (All matters under the Information Calendar will be 
Received/Filed as presented following any discussion that may occur) 

7. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT, OCTOBER (ORAL AND WRITTEN)

Recommendation: Receive and file report(s) as presented.

8. MWDOC GENERAL INFORMATION ITEMS

a. Board of Directors - Reports re: Conferences and Meetings
b. Requests for Future Agenda Topics

Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by contacting Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may discuss 
appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make 
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the requested 
accommodation.

Page 3 of 127



GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
OF STAFF ACTIVITIES 

October 2023 

Item No. 7

Page 100 of 127



   
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

MEMBER AGENCY MANAGERS MEETING 

The Member Agency Managers Meeting scheduled for September 21, 2023, was canceled.  
 
Next meeting is tentatively scheduled for October 19, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101 of 127



   
 
 
 

ENGINEERING & PLANNING  

LEAD AND COPPER RULE REVISIONS – LEAD SERVICE LINE INVENTORY 
CHOICE PROGRAM 

In mid-March 2023, multiple agencies requested MWDOC’s assistance in complying 
with US EPA Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) - Service Line Inventories, 
which all water systems are required to complete and submit to the primacy agency (for 
California, it is the State Water Boards) by October 16, 2024. 

On May 24, 2023, MWDOC hosted an initial meeting with (18) OC agencies and the 
State Division of Drinking Water staff regarding the LCRR – Lead Service Line Inventory 
compliance requirements.  

On June 19, 2023, MWDOC posted an RFP for technical assistance with multiple 
agencies’ service line inventories and received five (5) proposals. The MWDOC Board 
approved a contract award to Hazen and Sawyer (Hazen) on September 20, 2023. 

MWDOC staff have been hosting one-on-one meetings with interested agencies to 
answer agency-specific questions related to the LCRR compliance approach, costs, and 
data needs to help agencies navigate the process.   

To date, the program has 13 Participating Agencies who are in the process of selecting 
program services. MWDOC staff and Hazen will meet with each agency to finalize their 
program services selections. This will provide the Scope of Work and pricing agencies 
can take to their governing body for approval. 

The project is scheduled to begin issuing Notices to Proceed on a first-come, first-
served basis in October 2023. 

MNWD PUMP-IN TO EOCF #2 TECHNICAL STUDY 

MWDOC continues to support MNWD’s technical study of a potential pump-in project to 
East OC Feeder #2 from the City of Santa Ana’s East Station. MWDOC has hosted 
multiple meetings with staff from MET’s Water Quality, Operations, and Engineering 
Groups, Moulton Niguel Water District (MNWD), City of Santa Ana, OCWD, and 
MNWD’s consultant Brown & Caldwell.  

MWDOC will host a 4th technical meeting on October 16, 2023, between MET staff, 
MWDOC, MNWD, and consultant Brown & Caldwell. 

DOHENY OCEAN DESALINATION PROJECT  

South Coast Water District (SCWD) continues to develop the Doheny Ocean 
Desalination Project. SCWD estimates an online date of 2028 if approved by the SCWD 
Board.  

Page 102 of 127



   
 
 
 
At the SCWD Board Meeting on June 22, 2023, Clean Energy Capital (CEC) provided 
an update on the financial implications of the project. CEC presented updated cost 
projections for a 5 MGD project where SCWD would take 2 MGD.  

The updated estimated 1st-year water cost is $2,597/AF (in 2028$) or $2,058/AF 
(discounted to 2023$), which is a $469/AF increase vs. CEC’s 2021 estimate. The 
increase is largely driven by increases in energy costs (with energy costs making up 
60% of the overall cost increase). 

SCWD Unit Cost of Water ($/AF)  

MWDOC Average of High and Low      $2,100  

5 MGD Plant         $2,701  

Difference          $   601  

SCWD Residential Average Monthly Cost  

No Desal          $141.63  

With 5 MGD Plant         $145.64  

Difference             $4.01  

CEC estimates of Construction Costs:  

Escalated to a Feb 1, 2025, construction start date    $137,642,914 

Total Grants         ($ 30,423,241)1 

Total Development & Financing Costs     $ 30,685,350 

Total Capitalized Costs       $137,905,023 

SCWD Staff Report is located here: 

https://scwd.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=2790&meta_id=180312 

CEC Presentation slides are located here: 

https://scwd.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=2790&meta_id=180313 

On July 27, 2023, SCWD released the Request for Qualifications for the Progressive 
Design Build Operate and Maintain (DBOM) Project and has received several 
proposals. 
1As of September 2023, SCWD has secured $32.4M in grant funding for the Project, 
including $10M from the California Department of Water Resources Desalination 
Construction Grant, $20M from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Water Infrastructure 
Improvement for the Nation (WIN) Act Grant, and $2.4M from the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency Grant.  

Page 103 of 127



   
 
 
 
SHUTDOWNS  

R6 Reservoir Rehabilitation 

El Toro Water District (ETWD) shut down the 275-million-gallon R6 Reservoir to replace 
the aging reservoir liner and cover in November 2022. ETWD started refilling the R6 
Reservoir on September 11, 2023, and is on track to complete the refill and return to 
service by October 6, 2023. MWDOC has been coordinating with MET and the South 
Orange County agencies to return R6 to service in time for the AMP Prestressed 
Concrete Cylinder Pipe (PCCP) Inspection shutdown scheduled for October 29 through 
November 4, 2023. 

AMP Prestressed Concrete Cylinder Pipe (PCCP) Inspection 

MWDOC coordinated with ETWD, MET, and the SOC agencies to move the scheduled 
shutdown of the AMP down-gradient of OC-70 to October 29 through November 4, 
2023, to accommodate the R6 reservoir return to service. R6 is needed to support SOC 
agencies during the AMP Shutdown. 

MET is conducting a periodic inspection of the PCCP sections of the AMP to monitor 
the condition of the high tensile strength prestressed structural steel wire in the pipe. A 
rehabilitation project for the AMP to add a structural steel liner to the PCCP sections of 
the pipeline is currently in design with an estimated start date of late 2027, which will 
require a series of shutdowns over a 2–3-year period. 

Diemer Water Treatment Plant 

MET has scheduled a 7-day shutdown of the Diemer WTP to repair a broken chlorine 
solution line from January 5-11, 2024. Finding a suitable window for this shutdown 
presented challenges due to numerous maintenance shutdowns by MET and retail 
agencies and fire danger concerns.  

During the Diemer shutdown, the following pipelines will be down for repairs: 

• Allen-McColloch Pipeline 
• East Orange County Feeder No.1 
• East Orange County Feeder No.2 
• Lower Feeder – Treated and Untreated 
• Second Lower Feeder (portions)  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104 of 127



   
 
 
 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

SEPTEMBER INCIDENTS/EVENTS  

• No Significant Events to Report  

Vicki can provide additional information on this event as warranted. 

COORDINATION/PARTICIPATION WITH MEMBER AGENCIES AND 
OUTSIDE AGENCIES MEETINGS OUTSIDE OF PROGRAMS AREAS AND 
EMERGENCY RESPONSE 

• On 9/5, Vicki conducted the monthly coordination/information call with member 
agencies. 

• On 9/6, Vicki attended the IRWD TTX Exercise After Action Report meeting.  
• On 9/7, Janine attended the Orange County Emergency Management Organization 

(OCEMO) meeting at the Health Care Agency Warehouse. Presentations included 
an overview of the Medical/Health Operational Area Coordination (MHOAC) 
Program, an overview of the planned revision cycle for the Unified County of Orange 
and Orange County Operational Area Emergency Operations Plan, and the Orange 
County Operational Area Recovery Plan.    

• On 9/8, Vicki gave her monthly update to the WACO meeting. 
• On 9/11, Vicki attended the California Office of Emergency Services, Emergency 

Management Mutual Aid SEMS Technical Subcommittee, where Vicki represents 
Region One.  

• On 9/12, Janine attended the USACE Fullerton and Carbon Canyon Dam Workshop 
training. 

• On 9/14, Vicki attended the FEMA DEI & Mitigation Webinar held virtually. 
• On 9/18, Vicki attended the Southern California Roadside Ignition meeting with Alex 

H and MET. 
• On 9/21, Vicki attended the OCEMO Leadership monthly meeting to coordinate the 

activities for the rest of 2023.  
• On 9/22, Vicki participated in a planning meeting, where she was asked to sit on a 

presentation panel regarding emergency management and water planning. The date 
of this presentation has not been finalized at this time.  

• On 9/22, Vicki attended the monthly CESA State Board meeting in which she is still 
a member at large for the southern region.  

• On 9/26, Vicki attended the first MET Member Agency Emergency Coordinator 
Meeting. The meeting discusses communications and coordination and future 
exercises. 

 

 

Page 105 of 127



   
 
 
 
PLANNING AND PROGRAM EFFORTS 

EOC Readiness & EOC Project 

WEROC EOC Project - Refer to Action item #1 on the October P&O Committee 
Meeting. Agenda. 

Contact lists and SOPs are being updated to reflect current changes to phone numbers 
and personnel changes.  

IT & Cyber Security  

WEROC continues to send out important information to the Cyber Security Distribution 
Group as received from DHS or the OCIAC.   

On September 19th, WEROC hosted the Cyber Security Working Group meeting.   Fifty-
four people attended to hear briefings by the FBI, CISA, and OCIAC. Presentations 
included the Discovery Bay Water Facility Attack, an AI overview, and an overview of 
current threats and IT Information presented to the group/ 

Member Agency and County/Operational Area Plan Review 

Vicki reviewed or revised the following plans this month: 

• SCWD Palisades Dam Emergency Response Plan (CalOES has returned the 
plan requesting additional information. A meeting is being scheduled at the 
beginning of October to discuss the change requests.) Vicki is assisting with 
crafting the dam language needed for the plan. 

• Orange County Operational Area Recovery Plan 
• Unified County of Orange and Orange County Operational Area Emergency 

Operations Plan 
• California Office of Emergency Services Emergency Management Mutual Aid 

Plan and Training Guidance. 

Regional Fuel Project  

Vicki has been conducting research and collecting data from member agencies. The 
requested deadline for information was August 31st, in which 2/3rds have responded.   

Regional Mapping Project  

Janine continues to work on a revision of the 2017 WEROC Map Atlas and Public 
Safety Power Shut (PSPS) Off map updates. MWDOC Engineering has been assisting 
with the collaboration with CDR and providing input to the project. 

Resource Requests and Member Agency Inventory Lists 

Janine has collected this information from each agency and is finishing correlating the 
information received.    

State Preparedness Report and Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk 
Assessment (THIRA) 

Page 106 of 127



   
 
 
 
WEROC will be attending UASI meetings for the preparation of the annual State 
Preparedness Report required each year.  

• October 10, 2023, Emergency Management Session #1 
• October 17, 2023, Emergency Management Session #2 

Participation in the SPR workshop is vital in identifying gaps in training, exercises, 
equipment, etc.  The workshops assist the Anaheim-Santa Ana UASI in assessing the 
information and allocating funds to address gaps in critical areas.   

Training and Exercises 

On 9/18, Vicki conducted a virtual 800Mhz training for the WEROC Member agencies.    

On 9/19, Vicki conducted an ICS 100/700 and Standardized Emergency Management 
System (SEMS) training for the upper management at SMWD. 

Vicki attended an ICS 300 course September 13-19. Vicki needs to update her training 
certification for ICS 300, ICS 400, and G191 ICP/EOC Interface. So, she can continue 
to teach and provide free training to water agencies. 

Vicki created a Workshop/Tabletop Exercise (TTX) Situation Manual for SCWD to be 
delivered on two different days, October 26th & November 2nd. Vicki will be facilitating 
this TTX on behalf of the agency. 

WEROC Planning Efforts in the Development Stage 

• Regional Water Distribution Plan 
• WEROC Logistics Plan 
• Regional Fuel Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107 of 127



   
 
 
 

MET ITEMS CRITICAL TO ORANGE COUNTY 

MET FINANCE AND RATE ISSUES 

Water Transactions for July 2023 (for water delivered in May 2023) totaled 93.4 
thousand acre-feet (TAF), which was 31.3 TAF lower than the budget of 124.7 TAF and 
translates to $95.4 million in receipts for July 2023, which was $27.4 million lower than 
the budget of $122.8 million. 

MET’S SUPPLY CONDITION UPDATE 

The 2022-23 Water Year (2022-23 WY) officially started on October 1, 2022. Thus far, 
Northern California accumulated precipitation (8-Station Index) reported 66.0. inches or 
132% of normal as of September 25th. The Northern Sierra Snow Water Equivalent 
peaked at 59.1 inches on April 9th, which is 215% of normal for that day. Due to the 
barrage of atmospheric rivers in January and March, the Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) has increased the State Water Project (SWP) “Table A” allocation 
to 100%. This allocation provides Metropolitan with approximately 1,911,500 AF in 
SWP deliveries this water year. In Addition, Article 21 supplies (approximately 
148,000 AF) were made to SWP contractors on March 24th, 2023. DWR's SWP 
Allocation considers several factors, including existing storage in SWP, conservation 
reservoirs, SWP operational, regulatory constraints, and the 2023 contractor demands. 
Metropolitan also received 134,000 AF for Human Health and Safety Supply in CY 
2022.    

The Upper Colorado River Basin accumulated precipitation is reporting 33.9 inches or 
114% of normal as of September 25th. On the Colorado River system, snowpack is 
measured across four states in the Upper Colorado River Basin. The Upper Colorado 
River Basin Snow Water Equivalent peaked at 26.2 inches as of April 10th, which is 
131% of normal for that day. Due to the below-average inflows into Lake Powell over 
the past several years, the United States Bureau of Reclamation declared a shortage 
at Lake Mead that has been ongoing since January 1st, 2022. As of September, 
there is a 100% chance of shortage continuing in CY 2024 and a 20% chance that 
Metropolitan will see a 195,000 AF reduction in Colorado River water supplies in 
CY 2026. 

As of September 25th, Lake Oroville storage is at 75% of total capacity and 137% of 
normal. As of September 25th, San Luis Reservoir has a current volume of 81% of the 
reservoir’s total capacity and is 194% of normal.   

Page 108 of 127



   
 
 
 

 
 

With CY 2023 estimated total demands and losses of 1.54 million acre-feet (MAF) and 
with a 100% SWP Table A Allocation, Metropolitan is projecting that supplies will 
exceed demand levels in Calendar Year (CY) 2023. Based on this, Metropolitan's 
estimated dry-year storage at the end of CY 2023 will increase to approximately 3.4 
MAF.  

Page 109 of 127



   
 
 
 
A projected dry-year storage supply of 3.4 MAF would be the highest level in MWD 
History. Unfortunately, due to the 100% SWP Table A Allocation, there is potential 
that MWD will not be able to store approximately 457 TAF. A large factor in 
maintaining a high-water storage level is lower than expected water demands. We are 
seeing regional water demands reaching a 40-year low. However, with a majority of 
MWD’s water supplies stored in Lake Mead and still a 5-year shortage projection 
at Lake Mead, there remains a lot of uncertainty about where supply balances will 
be in the future.  

 

 
 

 

Page 110 of 127



   
 
 
 
MET’S WATER QUALITY UPDATE 

Water System Operations 

Metropolitan member agency water deliveries were 109,700 acre-feet (AF) for August, 
with an average of 3,500 AF per day, which was about 100 AF per day lower than in 
July. In addition, Metropolitan delivered 17,700 AF to Cyclic and Conjunctive Use 
Programs. Treated water deliveries were similar to those in July for a total of 69,600 AF, 
or 54 percent of total deliveries for the month. The Colorado River Aqueduct (CRA) 
pumped a total of 60,000 AF in August. CRA deliveries were lower this month due to the 
Hurricane Hilary storm event. Metropolitan temporarily reduced pumps on the CRA from 
five to three pumps because of reduced demands during this event. State Water Project 
(SWP) imports averaged 4,400 AF per day, totaling about 137,700 AF for the month. 
The target SWP blend is around 75 percent for the Weymouth and Diemer plants and 
55 percent for the Skinner plant. 

Water Treatment and Distribution 

The State Water Project (SWP) target blend entered the Weymouth and Diemer plants 
at 75 to 80 percent in August. The Mills plant continued to receive a blend of water from 
Silverwood Lake and Lake Perris in August due to low alkalinity in the East Branch 
SWP. The SWP target entering Lake Skinner fluctuated to accommodate multiple 
operational needs and to maximize water delivery from the SWP. The SWP blend 
leaving Lake Skinner was relatively stable, at about 50 percent.  

Flow-weighted running annual averages for total dissolved solids from July 2022 
through June 2023 for Metropolitan's treatment plants capable of receiving a blend of 
supplies from the SWP and the Colorado River Aqueduct were 523, 535, and 608 mg/L 
for the Weymouth, Diemer, and Skinner plants, respectively.  

Elevated nitrite levels at multiple locations demonstrated that nitrification occurred in 
parts of the distribution system, specifically in the West Basin service area, the Oak 
Street PCS, the Second Lower Feeder area, and the Orange County area. Operational 
changes to control nitrification and improve water quality in the affected areas included 
increased monitoring of nitrite and chlorine residuals, modifying operations to increase 
flow in the impacted parts of the system, increasing plant effluent pH at some of the 
treatment plants, and extensive flushing of the distribution system at multiple locations. 
Metropolitan staff met with impacted Member Agencies to discuss monitoring results 
and operational strategies for improving water quality.  

Metropolitan staff is performing repair work on the west backwash piping at the Diemer 
plant. The backwash piping was damaged in May 2022 by a backwash valve failure. 
The failure resulted in water flooding the filter gallery, forcing the plant to operate with a 
reduced capacity. The Diemer plant can return to full capacity upon completion of the 
repair work. 

 

 

Page 111 of 127



   
 
 
 
Future Legislation and Regulation  

On July 28, Metropolitan staff sent Senators Feinstein and Padilla a letter asking them 
to support a tailored exemption for water and wastewater treatment facilities from 
liability under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and 
Liability Act (CERCLA). This is the second letter in recent weeks seeking to influence 
the Senate Environment and Public Works Committee’s draft bill on PFAS. The letter 
emphasized that absent an exemption, the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) 
proposals to designate certain PFAS as hazardous substances under CERCLA may 
unintentionally burden water and wastewater utilities with cleanup costs for 
contamination that they did not cause or contribute to. Metropolitan staff will continue to 
engage Congress and EPA in regulating PFAS. On August 3, Metropolitan staff 
submitted comments to the EPA regarding whether to designate the precursors to 
PFOA and PFOS and seven additional PFAS as hazardous substances under 
CERCLA. The seven additional PFAS are PFBS, PFHxS, PFNA, Gen X, PFBA, PFHxA, 
and PFDA. Metropolitan staff commented that the EPA should consider updated 
occurrence data and develop robust and reliable analytical methods before making any 
regulatory determination for the affected PFAS. In addition, Metropolitan staff requested 
that the EPA explore other regulatory pathways for PFAS rather than CERCLA, as well 
as follow the “Polluter Pays” principle and make additional funding available for 
treatment and cleanup costs. Metropolitan staff will continue to monitor and engage in 
potential actions to regulate PFAS.  

On August 15, Metropolitan staff submitted written comments to the State Water 
Resources Control Board’s Division of Drinking Water in response to the state’s 
proposed maximum contaminant level (MCL) for hexavalent chromium of 10 
micrograms per liter (μg/L). While offering support for the proposed MCL and the two-to-
four-year compliance period, the letter raised concerns about the true cost of 
compliance the availability of funding to ensure full compliance and recommended the 
inclusion of an alternative treatment technology to make compliance easier for some 
utilities. Metropolitan staff will continue to monitor and engage in this rulemaking 
process. Metropolitan submitted a comment letter on August 15, responding to the 
state’s proposed maximum contaminant level (MCL) of 10 parts per billion for 
hexavalent chromium. 

Page 112 of 127



   
 
 
 

 
 

Page 113 of 127



   
 
 
 

 

 

Page 114 of 127



   
 
 
 

Page 115 of 127



COLORADO RIVER ISSUES 

Lower Basin States Agreement on Colorado River Conservation Actions 

In the initial step in the NEPA process for developing the post-2026 Colorado River 
guidelines, Reclamation solicited comments from interested parties on the scope of the 
EIR to analyze the new guidelines' impacts. Comments were due to Reclamation on 
August 15. Metropolitan staff participated in a 7-state process to develop a consensus 
response to Reclamation’s request for input. Those discussions led to a 7-state letter 
and a Lower Basin letter to Reclamation. The Chair of the Colorado River Board of 
California, JB Hamby, signed both letters on behalf of California. The states agreed that 
the scope should be limited to focusing on Lake Powell and Lake Mead's reservoir 
operations and providing sufficient water use reductions to address the current and 
project supply-demand imbalance on the river. The states also affirmed their 
commitment to work toward a 7-state consensus alternative that can be included in the 
analysis of the draft EIS.  

Metropolitan’s General Manager also signed a letter with the General Managers of 
Southern Nevada Water Authority and Central Arizona Project highlighting the unique 
needs of Lower Basin states in the urban areas. Specifically, the letter highlighted the 
need to protect human health and safety deliveries, protect and incentivize water 
storage opportunities in Lake Mead, consider reasonable and beneficial water use 
standards, and provide for interstate participation in new water supply augmentation 
projects, like Pure Water Southern California. The letter also recognized the long history 
of collaboration among urban agencies over the last two decades. Reclamation will 
consider the comments received and develop a scoping report, which will guide the 
development of the new guidelines. Reclamation anticipates issuing a draft EIS in 
December of 2024, with a Record of Decision made in time for the Annual Operating 
Plan development for 2027. With the scoping letters submitted, the Basin States are 
now focusing on developing an alternative to be included in the draft EIS.  

DELTA CONVEYANCE ACTIVITIES AND STATE WATER PROJECT ISSUES 

Delta Conveyance 
 
The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) released a draft Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act for a public 
review that ended on December 16, 2022. DWR received more than 700 unique 
comment letters with over 6,000 individual comments. DWR is in the process of 
developing responses to the comments received. The Final EIR is expected at the end 
of 2023. It will include responses to all substantive comments on the Draft EIR and edits 
to the Draft EIR, as appropriate, to respond to the comments.  
 
The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), as part of its permitting review under the 
Clean Water Act and Rivers and Harbors Act, released a draft Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act for a public 

Page 116 of 127



 

  
 

review that ended on March 16, 2023. USACE is in the process of developing 
responses to the comments received. 
 
Delta Conveyance related Joint Powers Authorities 
 
At the August 17 regularly scheduled Delta Conveyance Design and Construction 
Authority (DCA), the DCA Board of Directors adopted a resolution amending the 
Purchasing and Procurement Policy. This amendment adds new language to guide the 
procurement of information technology services, clarifies and defines the current 
procurement practices, and updates the definition section to include definitions for 
emergency procurements, interagency agreements, and a definition for material 
change.  
 
The DCA Board of Directors also adopted a resolution to revise the Allowable Travel 
Expenses Policy. This revision authorizes the Executive Director to provide approvals, 
including potential deviations, from the policy. It would clarify that all foreign travel would 
require prior written DCA approval and be subject to applicable federal General 
Services Administration requirements.  
 
The August 17 regularly scheduled Delta Conveyance Finance Authority meeting was 
canceled. 
 
Sites Reservoir  
 
At the joint Sites Project Authority Board and Sites Reservoir Committee Meeting on 
August 18, the Reservoir Committee and Authority Board authorized the Executive 
Director to execute a cooperative agreement between the Sites Project Authority and 
Reclamation District No. 108 regarding the use of existing partner facilities and 
development and operation of new infrastructure. This collaborative agreement centers 
around the planned use of existing facilities, including the Colusa Basin Drain south of 
the Balsdon Wier, Knights Landing ridge cut, Knights Landing outfall gates, and the 
Wallace Weir. The cooperative agreement outlines support and assistance on several 
activities, including planning, design, permitting, construction of new infrastructure and 
facility improvements, and coordinating integration into existing facilities. 
 
Science Activities  
 
In August, Metropolitan science staff reached a major milestone in the Reorienting to 
Recovery (R2R) Project Structured Decision-Making process, completing modeled 
bookend scenarios to test combinations of management actions to recover salmonids in 
the Central Valley. Metropolitan staff also participated in planning the 2024 Interagency 
Ecological Program Workshop. The Delta Independent Science Board interviewed them 
on modeling predation in the Bay-Delta Ecosystem and how modeling can be used to 
inform water management actions.  
 

Page 117 of 127



 

  
 

The Reorienting to Recovery (R2R) Project seeks to collaboratively identify preferred 
recovery scenarios that advance salmonid recovery in the Central Valley while 
balancing other social, cultural, and economic interests in the region. In early August, 
the R2R Project presented results of the “bookend” scenarios that were generated to 
test distinct combinations of intense management actions focused around one action 
type (either flows, harvest, hatcheries, or habitat) to the structured decision-making 
(SDM) workgroup. These modeled bookends aim to explore how the model responds to 
different inputs so that the group can explore refined scenarios. The model is a coarse 
tool, and while modifications can be made to improve logic, inputs, and outputs, results 
are most appropriate and informative when compared among scenarios. They can aid in 
the development of refined scenarios and model updates.  
 
Overall, no singular bookend met all biological salmonid recovery targets. Multiple 
scenarios met recovery targets for productivity, but none met targets for spatial structure 
and genetic diversity. Since each scenario represents implementing only one type of 
management action and was not designed to achieve recovery, these results are 
expected and indicate multiple factors hindering recovery that will require multiple types 
of management actions. The workgroup brainstormed additional scenarios that balance 
salmonid recovery goals with other interests for the next round of modeling. The R2R 
Project team will spend the next few months sorting through these ideas, refining 
scenarios, and modeling these scenarios for presentation at a future R2R workshop in 
Winter 2023.  
 
Metropolitan staff participated in the planning and implementing of the Interagency 
Ecological Program Workshop for 2024. The workshop showcases a range of topics 
that will be used to inform the management of the Bay-Delta watershed. Topics include 
water operations, restoration, listed species management, and contaminants.  
 
The Delta Independent Science Board interviewed Metropolitan staff regarding 
modeling and predation to be used for informing actions to improve the management of 
the Bay Delta Ecosystem and its water supply. The interviews will be used to develop 
two workshops for 1) Exploring scientific and management implications of upper trophic 
level interactions in Delta food webs and 2) Bay-Delta Modeling 
Framework/Collaborative. 
 
Delta Island Activities 
 
In preparation for the October board action to amend the Capital Investment Plan to 
include the Webb Tract Mosaic Landscape Project and to award three agreements to 
begin design and environmental planning, Metropolitan staff is negotiating grant terms 
and conditions that will be included in the board letter to inform the Board before the 
grant agreement is executed. If approved, grant execution is expected soon after the 
October board action. 
 
 
 

Page 118 of 127



 

  
 

 PUBLIC/GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS 

MEMBER AGENCY SUPPORT  

Public Affairs Staff:  

• Shared Mesa Water’s Water Use Efficiency and Education Coordinator job 
opening with various networks 

• Provided the City of Tustin MWDOC Department of Motor Vehicle rebate videos 
with their logo on them to share in their lobby and on their cable channel 

COMMUNITY AND SPECIAL EVENTS  

Public Affairs Staff:  

• Speakers Bureau – Coordinated and attended a speaking opportunity with 
Director Seckel at Leisure World for 44 Sunshine Club members 

• Continue to participate in the planning and coordination of the OC Water Summit 
• Planned and coordinated the first MWDOC Water Resources & Conservation 

Patch Clinic at the City of Seal Beach’s Lampson Well site for 21 Orange County 
Girl Scouts 

• Planned for Girl Scouts STEM Expo on October 23 and prepared 
promotional/conservation items for the event 

• Provided a Ricky the Raindrop appearance at the City of Westminster’s Fall 
Festival and interacted with 225 local residents 

• Met with Orange Coast College to discuss event logistics for the Orange County 
Children’s Book Festival 

Government Affairs Staff: 

• Participated in the OCBC Governmental Affairs Committee meeting   
• Distributed the Legislative Policy Principles to the member agencies for review 

and feedback  
• Along with Joe Berg, met with staff at ACC-OC to discuss the rulemaking and 

implementation of Making Conservation a California Way of Life and engaging 
Orange County cities  

• Circulated the monthly Grants Tracking and Acquisition report to member 
agencies  

• Along with Joe Berg, met with staff at the League of Cities to discuss the 
rulemaking and implementation of Making Conservation a California Way of Life 
and engaging Orange County cities  

• Met with staff from ACC-OC to outline and prepare for a special meeting with a 
panel discussion on the rulemaking for Making Conservation a California Way of 
Life  

 

Page 119 of 127



 

  
 

K-12 WATER EDUCATION  

Public Affairs Staff:  

• Provided information regarding MWDOC K-12 Choice School Programs to East 
Orange County Water District, City of Fullerton, City of Garden Grove, and El 
Toro Water District 

• Provided all water providers participating in the MWDOC Choice School 
Programs with login information for the shared Google Calendar of scheduled 
visits 

• Met twice with MWDOC 3-12 Choice School Program contractor, Orange County 
Department of Education’s Inside the Outdoors, to discuss program direction, 
goals, and new opportunities to engage students 

• Met with Child Creativity Lab to compare education programs and discuss areas 
for collaboration 

WORKFORCE INITIATIVE  

Public Affairs Staff:  

• Sent a 1-question survey to Water Energy Education Alliance members to gain 
insight on industry workforce priorities. Received 65 responses to date. 

• Participated in the California Municipal Utilities Association’s Statewide Advisory 
Council Meeting in support of their $4M High Roads Training Partnerships grant 

• Met with Generation: Now! to discuss career pathways and potential Orange 
County partnership opportunities 

• Provided support to the Centers of Excellence for Labor Market Research for 
their application to the California Community College Chancellor’s Office for 
funding 

• Proofed and provided input on a draft media alert from the Association of 
California Water Agencies and the California Water Environment Association on 
careers in water for Water Professionals Appreciation Week 

DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS, PUBLICATIONS, AND MEDIA ENGAGEMENT  

Public Affairs Staff:  

• Prepared and distributed content for social media 
• Submitted content to the Association of California Water Agencies newsroom 

o MWDOC Offers STEM-Based Merit Badge Clinics for OC Scouts 
• Updated the MWDOC website as requested by several departments 
• Worked with Hashtag Pinpoint and Orange County Water District to film OC 

Water Summit emcee Fritz Coleman’s event introduction 
• Provided an interview and proofread an article by the California Special Districts 

Association (CSDA) for the Westminster Watersmart Conservation Garden 
project. The first of several articles will appear in their November/December 
green issue. 

Page 120 of 127



 

  
 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 

Public Affairs Staff: 

• Sent signed “Thank You” letters to the Orange County Grand Jury who attended 
the local infrastructure inspection trip 

• Met with the Wyland Foundation to discuss next steps for the City of San 
Clemente landscape transformation project 

• Attended the Nature-based Solutions, Climate Resiliency, and Equity webinar 
hosted by BAYWORK 

• Provided education content to CSDA by request for their social media pages 

Governmental Affairs Staff: 

• Coordinated and submitted all documents requested to OC LAFCO for the 
Focused MSR  

• Staffed the ISDOC Executive Committee meeting  
• Responded to various ISDOC inquiries regarding membership upcoming 

meetings and updated/edited the Executive Committee minutes   
• Staffed the WACO meeting on earthquake preparedness  
• Met with Soto Resources to discuss the grants program  
• Staffed the WACO Planning Committee meeting  

OUTREACH METRICS  

Public Affairs Staff: 

• Google Performance Analytics (September 2023) 
o 151 business profile interactions  
o 1,729 people viewed the business profile 

• Website Analytics (GM report timeframe) 
o 10k pageviews + 39 OC Water-Smart Parks Microsite site sessions 
o Top pages for this date range 
o MWDOC Homepage 1.5k 
o Water-Use-Efficiency 1.1k 
o Turf removal 768 
o Residential Rebates 609 
o Board Meetings 411 

• ocwatersmartgardens.com Analytics (August 2023) 
o 512 sessions  
o Top pages for this date range 

 Landing Page 
 Helpful Plant List Common Questions  
 Garden Resources  

• Social Media (August 3 – August 29) 
According to Hootsuite – the global leader in social media management –a good 
engagement rate is between 1% to 5%.  
For this period, MWDOC's engagement rate is at 17.85% 

Page 121 of 127



 

  
 

o 34,197 Post reach (number of people) 
o 6,104 Post engagement (actions taken – likes, shares, etc.) 

LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS 

Governmental Affairs Staff: 

• Worked with Metropolitan staff to respond to an inquiry from Congresswoman 
Porter’s office regarding a boil order in the City of Coronado  

• Attended the ACWA State Legislative Committee meeting  
• Participated in the CCEEB WCW Committee meeting  
• Attended the ACWA Federal Affairs Committee meeting  
• Participated in the CMUA Regulatory Committee meeting  
• Met with Director Crane to review the Legislative and Regulatory Policy 

Principles  
• Drafted a letter to Governor Newsom to sign AB 1594 (Garcia) – zero-emission 

medium and heavy-duty vehicles 
• Along with Director Seckel and Harvey, met with Assembly Member Diane Dixon  
• Along with Director Crane and Harvey, met with Assembly Member Valencia and 

Assembly Member Petrie-Norris   
• Participated in the Metropolitan Member Agency Legislative meeting  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 122 of 127



 

  
 

WATER USE EFFICIENCY 
 

ORANGE COUNTY DATA ACQUISITION PARTNERSHIP (OCDAP) 
STEERING AND TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (STAC)  

On September 12, Rachel Waite attended the OCDAP STAC. The working group 
collaborates on and organizes a regional effort to cost-share the acquisition of high-
resolution aerial imagery and related products. Topics on the agenda included: 

• Consent Calendar  
• Cycle 2 Deliverables Feedback 
• Extension of Cycle 1 ConnectExplorer  
• Discussion on Cycle 3 RFP and Membership Costs 
• OCDAP Data Sharing/Efforts/Projects Underway and Cycle Derived Products 
• OC GIS User Group Update 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for October 17.  

ORANGE COUNTY WATER USE EFFICIENCY WORKGROUP MEETING 

On September 14, Joe Berg, Beth Fahl, Rachel W., Sam Fetter, and Tina Fann hosted 
the Orange County Water Use Efficiency Workgroup meeting. Items on the agenda 
included: 

• Discussion Items 
o MWDOC Updates 
o Agency Roundtable 

• Water Use Efficiency Standards/Framework Update 
o Presentation – Final Recommendations for Making Conservation a 

California Way of Life 
o Panel Discussion and Q&A 

• Water Use Efficiency Updates 
o Update on Trees 

 Board Approval on MET’s Treebate 
 Trees as a Sustainability Feature Pilot 
 Local Tree Lists 

o Turf Removal Program Update 
 Changes to Work Order to Include Trees 
 Grant Funding/Turf Activity 

• CalWEP Update 
o Winter Plenary – December 13th in San Francisco 

• Future Agenda Items 
 

The next meeting is scheduled for October 12. 

 

Page 123 of 127



 

  
 

PROJECT AGREEMENT (PA) 22 ADVISORY WORKGROUP 

On September 18, Rachel W. joined the PA 22 Advisory Workgroup hosted by the 
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority. Topics on the agenda included: 

• Prop 1 Enhanced Decision Support Tool Update 
• SARCCUP Water Budget Assistance  

 

The next meeting is scheduled for October 16. 

METROPOLITAN WATER USE EFFICIENCY WORKGROUP 

On September 21, Joe, Rachel W., Beth, Sam, and Tina attended the Metropolitan 
Water Use Efficiency Workgroup meeting. Items on the agenda included: 

• Introduction of New Team Member 
• Native Plant Kits 
• MWD Board Meeting Updates  
• External Affairs Update 
• Legislative Update 

o AB 1573 
o Long-Term Framework Letter 

• MWD Conservation Program Updates 
o Regional Program Addendum 
o Grant Updates 
o Member Agency Administered Program Invoicing 

• Member Agency Roundtable 
 

The next meeting is scheduled for October 19. 

CALIFORNIA WATER EFFICIENCY PARTNERSHIP (CALWEP) RESEARCH 
AND EVALUATION (R&E) COMMITTEE MEETING 

On September 20, Rachel W. co-hosted the CalWEP R&E Committee meeting. Topics 
on the agenda included: 

• Legislative Updates 
• Research Project Updates 
• Making Conservation a California Way of Life Framework Updates 
• Presentations: State of the Union on AMI 
• Alliance For Water Efficiency Research Committee Updates 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for November 15.  

Page 124 of 127



 

  
 

UC LANDSCAPE PLANT IRRIGATION TRIALS™ (UCLPIT) FALL OPEN 
HOUSE 

On September 20, Tina attended the UC Landscape Plant Irrigation Trials™ Fall Open 
House at the South Coast Research and Extension Center. The UCLPIT™ evaluates 
landscape plants under varying irrigation levels to determine the best level for optimal 
plant performance. Data may also be used to supplement the Water Use Classification 
of Landscape Species (WUCOLS) when creating water budgets required by California's 
Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). The UCLPIT™ Open House 
participants evaluated the aesthetic quality of 60 plants in the trial. The full trial report 
will be available in the Spring of 2024. 

2023 CALIFORNIA LANDSCAPE CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION (CLCA) 
ORANGE COUNTY (OC) CHAPTER BEAUTIFICATION AWARDS GALA 

On September 23, Tina attended the 2023 CLCA OC Chapter Beautification Awards 
Gala. The CLCA hosts the Beautification Awards competition to recognize industry 
professionals who display excellence in landscape construction and maintenance. The 
Orange County Green Single-Family Residential Award, sponsored by MWDOC, was 
presented to Midwest Landscaping. 

ALLIANCE FOR WATER EFFICIENCY (AWE) LARGE LANDSCAPE 
EVALUATION MEETING 

On September 26, Rachel W. met with AWE staff to discuss the collaborative large 
landscape research effort. Discussion focused on MWDOC’s Turf Removal 
implementation, terms, conditions, participation rates, marketing, and more. The next 
steps were also discussed, including site selection and site consumption data collection.  

Follow-up meetings will be scheduled as needed.  

WHOLESALE WATER PROVIDERS GROUP MEETING 

On September 27, Beth and Rachel W. participated in the Wholesale Water Providers 
Group meeting hosted by the San Diego County Water Authority and attended by water 
use efficiency staff from other Metropolitan wholesale water providers. Topics on the 
agenda included: 

• What are your Regional Programs? What will you Continue/Stop?  
• The Programs Each Wholesale Water Provider Runs that Everyone Should Run 
• Future MAAP Funding/Non-Documented Savings Projects 
• Percentage of Customers Completing Turf Rebate Projects. Your Agency’s 

Completion Rate Versus MWD’s Completion Rate 
• Would you consider a Pressure Regulator Program? Residential, Multi-Family, or 

Commercial? 
• MWDOC’s New (DRAFT) Stormwater Sustainability Feature Sizing Tool 

 

Page 125 of 127



 

  
 

The next meeting for this Group has not yet been scheduled. 

ANNUAL WATER SMART INNOVATIONS CONFERENCE AND EXPOSITION 

Between October 2 – 5, Sam and Tina attended the Water Smart Innovations 
Conference and Exposition in Las Vegas, Nevada. Sam presented on Cooling Towers: 
Aerial Imagery Validation. During the conference, Sam and Tina attended professional 
sessions that covered the following topics: 

• Hotel Cooling Towers and Facilities Tour 
• Water Conservation and Incentive Programs 
• Working with the CII Sector 
• Water Efficient Landscaping 
• Marketing and Outreach 
• Water Efficient Codes and Policies 

 

CONSERVATION FRAMEWORK 
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD (SWRCB) PUBLIC 
HEARING 
 

On October 4, Joe attended the SWRCB public hearing/workshop on the Conservation 
Framework proposed standards in Sacramento. The workshop included informational 
presentations on the proposed standards, selected panel discussions, and a public 
comment period. Joe provided comments that touched on the following points: 

• Extreme Costs to Orange County Water Suppliers. 
• Concern that the Standardized Regulatory Impact Assessments (SRIA) Under-

Estimates Costs and Over-Estimates Benefits. 
• Proposed Landscape Efficiency Standards are not Feasible, particularly within 

the Proposed Timeline. 
• Commercial, Industrial, and Institutional (CII) Performance Measures must be 

Simplified. 
• Water Suppliers should be Recognized for Making Good Faith Efforts to Meet 

the Standards.  
 

ACWA WORKING GROUPS 

Throughout the period of this report, staff attended fifteen ACWA working group 
meetings focused on the Framework. These workgroups are collaborative efforts to 
understand the proposed regulations and unify comments and feedback to the State.   
 

Page 126 of 127



 

   MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Street Address: 

18700 Ward Street 

Fountain Valley, California 92708 

 

Mailing Address: 

P.O. Box 20895 

Fountain Valley, CA 92728-0895 

 

(714) 963-3058 

Fax: (714) 964-9389 

www.mwdoc.com 

 

Megan Yoo Schneider, P.E. 

President 

 

Bob McVicker, P.E., D.WRE 

Vice President 

 

Randall Crane, Ph.D. 

Director 

 

Larry D. Dick 

Director 

 

Al Nederhood 

Director 

 

Karl W. Seckel, P.E. 

Director 

 

Jeffery M. Thomas 

Director 

 

Harvey De La Torre 

Interim General Manager 

 

MEMBER AGENCIES 
 

City of Brea 

City of Buena Park 

East Orange County Water District 

El Toro Water District 

Emerald Bay Service District 

City of Fountain Valley 

City of Garden Grove 

Golden State Water Co. 

City of Huntington Beach 

Irvine Ranch Water District 

Laguna Beach County Water District 

City of La Habra 

City of La Palma 

Mesa Water District 

Moulton Niguel Water District 

City of Newport Beach 

City of Orange 

Orange County Water District 

City of San Clemente 

Santa Margarita Water District 

City of Seal Beach 

Serrano Water District 

South Coast Water District 

Trabuco Canyon Water District 

City of Tustin 

City of Westminster 

Yorba Linda Water District 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
AGENCIES MANAGERS MEETING 

 
ZOOM LINK: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89568244331 
Meeting ID: 895 6824 4331 
Passcode: 868020 
Dial-in option: (669) 900-9128   
 

WHEN:  Thursday, October 19, 2022 from 10:30 am to 12:00 pm. 
 

D R A F T   A G E N D A 
 
 

1.    Opportunity to add and discuss items not already listed. 
Page #/Link 

2.    General Meeting Information/Discussion Items: 

2-1. Draft Board Agendas …….…………………………………………………………………………. (Link) 

2-2. MWDOC Board Strategic Priorities…………………………………………………………… (Link) 

2-3. Conservation as a California Way of Life………………………………………….…….… (Link) 

2-4. MET Update 

a. Pure Water Southern California Cost Recovery Alternatives.……….…….……. (Link) 

2-5. Engineering Update 

 

 

3.    Announcements: 

3-1. Future Supply Actions Program………………………………………………………………… (Link) 

 

4.    Report Items  

4-1. Monthly GM Report …………………………………………………………………….……….… (Link) 
4-2. Legislative Reports …..…………………………………………………………………….………. (Link) 
4-3. WEROC Matrix …………………………………………………………………..…………….…….. (Link) 
4-4. Grant Funding Opportunities ……………………………………...…………………...……. (Link) 
4-5. Additional Reports or Materials………………………………………………………………. (Link) 
 
5.     

 Next meeting tentatively scheduled for November 16 

 No Meeting in December  

 January 18th - In-person  
 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89568244331?pwd=V12pFFS7wih79MFX2GJraq5tN8T5wV.1
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/k0h8an0g9uzlvmlck304p/h?rlkey=9itg9bb76hlv3maud3ltx0zw4&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/3i1nx9msja4zknlwvxlai/h?rlkey=k9qc03ii3f8xv8jlfgsr3v090&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/1hskg9ttm09d1q3fmnvmy/h?rlkey=1n75kckcaqfya5v6g02u0h6da&dl=0
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12345387&GUID=0532827E-396B-4FAB-8968-DE9FD5B0B09E
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12346157&GUID=BE771874-56CF-40FA-B251-8EF9B87FA0FC
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/b61g4zf7oivl77f9e8yzd/h?rlkey=ivch73x2a0mjkz3ox5mgm4tv3&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/d34sr9fl0dghems8qaett/h?rlkey=uyoe072tlzq4c9xd1uh1tl1rt&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/kapvyrf0nr397m3g0w4jp/h?rlkey=fm3zwu8zy5uofevzv1jhdlbut&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/tthx6uco3xrqbaak73fsf/h?rlkey=d5vzd4boezjmh2aet2x1p22qz&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/avszcgerahgu2k1k1u5c0/h?rlkey=ays5ggzd0okqknjv0369ozqu6&dl=0


 
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY AGENCIES’ GROUP CONSISTS OF MEMBERS AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM 

City of San Clemente •  El Toro Water District • Emerald Bay Service District 

 Irvine Ranch Water District • Laguna Beach County Water District • Moulton Niguel Water District 

Santa Margarita Water District • South Coast Water District • Trabuco Canyon Water District 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY AGENCIES GROUP JOINT MEETING with 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY (MWDOC) and 

ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT (OCWD) 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2023 

12:00 P.M. to 1:30 P.M. 
AGENDA 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

24251 LOS ALISOS BLVD., LAKE FOREST, CA 92630 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 
 

2. MWDOC Update/Discussion 

a. MWDOC Current Issues 

b. Other Matters 

 
3. MET Update/Discussion  

a. MET Current Issues 

b. MET Water Supply Issues 

c. Colorado River Negotiations 

d. Other Matters 

 
4. OCWD Update/Discussion 

a. A. Current Issues 

b. Other Matters 

 

5. Legislative/Regulatory Update 

a. Local 

i. OC-LAFCO Matters 

b. State 

c. Federal 

 

6. Regional Project Interests/Updates 

a. Regional Recycled Water Discussion 

b. South County Emergency GW Supply Project 

c. Doheny Ocean Desalination Project Update 

d. San Juan Watershed Project 

e. R-6 Reservoir Floating Cover and Liner Replacement Project 

f. Other Project Interests/Updates 

 
7. Any Agency/City Updates 

 
8. Adjournment 



 

Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission | oclafco.org 
 

2677 North Main Street | Suite 1050 
Santa Ana, CA  92705 

Phone: 714.640.5100 | Fax: 714.640.5139 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF 
ORANGE COUNTY 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Wednesday, October 11, 2023 

8:15 a.m. 
 

County Administrative North (CAN) 
First Floor Multipurpose Room 101 

400 W. Civic Center Drive, Santa Ana, CA 92701 
 

Any member of the public may request to speak on any agenda item at the time the 
Commission is considering the item. 

 
1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUPPLEMENTAL COMMUNICATION 

(Communications received after agenda distribution for agendized items.) 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on items not on 
the agenda, provided that the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission and 
that no action may be taken by the Commission on off-agenda items unless authorized by 
law. 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a.) September 13, 2023 – Regular Commission Meeting Minutes  
The Commission will consider approval of the September 13, 2023 meeting minutes. 
 

b.) Fiscal Year 2023-24 Quarterly Financial Report (First Quarter) 
The Commission will receive the first quarter financial report for Fiscal Year 2023-24. 
 

c.) Legislative Report (October 2023) 
The Commission will receive a report on legislation of LAFCO interest reviewed by the 
Commission during the 2023 legislative session. 

https://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/6a_Minutes_September-13-2023-DRAFT.pdf
https://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/6b_2023-24-Quarterly-Financial-ReportFirst-Quarter.pdf
https://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/6c_Legislative-ReportOctober.pdf


OC LAFCO| Regular Meeting Agenda 
October 11, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
No public hearing items scheduled. 
 

8. COMMISSION DISCUSSION AND ACTION 
 

a.) Policy and Procedures for the Initiation of Proposals by the Orange County Local Agency 
Formation Commission 
The Commission will consider proposed amendments to the OC LAFCO policy that 
outlines the legal requirements and procedures for proposals initiated by the 
Commission. 
 

b.) Personnel Policies and Procedures of the Orange County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (Part 4 – Time Off)  
The Commission will consider a proposed amendment to the “time off” section of the 
personnel policy involving employee vacation accrual. 

 
9. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

This is an opportunity for Commissioners to comment on issues not listed on the agenda, 
provided that the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission.  No discussion 
or action may occur or be taken except to place the item on a future agenda if approved by 
the Commission majority. 

 
10. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

Executive Officer’s announcement of upcoming events and a brief report on activities of the 
Executive Officer since the last meeting. 

11. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
No informational items and announcements scheduled. 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
 

a.) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957 
Title: Executive Officer 

 
b.) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency designated representative:  Commission Chair 
Unrepresented employee:  Executive Officer 

https://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/8a_Commission-Initiation-of-Proposals-Policy.pdf
https://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/8b_Time-Off-Accural_Vacation-Time.pdf


OC LAFCO| Regular Meeting Agenda 
October 11, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

 
c.) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(2) 
Number of potential cases: 1 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING  
 
The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Wednesday, November 8, 2023, at 8:15 
a.m. at the County Administrative North (CAN), First Floor Multipurpose Room 101, 400 W. 
Civic Center Drive, Santa Ana, CA 92701. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
The Local Agency Formation Commission of Orange County welcomes your participation.  The public may 
share general comments or comments on agenda items through the following options: 
 

1) In-person comments may be provided during the general comment period on off-agenda items and 
during the hearing of a specific agenda item.  In accordance with the OC LAFCO guidelines, each 
speaker’s comments may not exceed three (3) minutes for the respective item.  If you have 
documents for the Commission, please bring 15 copies and submit to the Commission Clerk for 
distribution.  

2) Written general comments or comments on specific agenda items may be submitted by email to the 
Commission Clerk at ccarter-benjamin@oclafco.org.  Comments received no less than twenty-four 
(24) hours prior to the regular meeting will be distributed to the Commission and included in the 
record.   

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, public records that relate to open session agenda items that 
are distributed to a majority of the Commission less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will 
be made available to the public on the OC LAFCO website at www.oclafco.org. 
 
State law requires that a participant in an OC LAFCO proceeding who has a financial interest in a decision 
and who has made a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any commissioner in the past year must 
disclose the contribution.  If you are affected, please notify the Commission’s staff before the hearing. 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 
All regular meeting agendas and associated reports are available at www.oclafco.org. Any person with a 
disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may receive a copy of the agenda or associated 
reports upon request.  Any person with a disability covered under the ADA may also request a disability-
related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in a public 
meeting.  Requests for copies of meeting documents and accommodations shall be made with OC LAFCO 
staff at (714) 640-5100 at least three business days prior to the respective meeting. 

 

mailto:ccarter-benjamin@oclafco.org
http://www.oclafco.org/
file://WDMYCLOUDEX4100/lafco_share/LAFCO%20Share/Agenda%20Materials%20and%20Minutes/2022/01_January/www.oclafco.org


 
 
 
            Executive Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, October 3, 2023 
7:30 a.m. 

The next meeting of the ISDOC Executive Committee will be via teleconference only.   
The MWDOC/OCWD offices are closed to the public.  Please use the information below to access the meeting. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3840960436 

 
Dial by your location 

669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
877 853 5247 US Toll-free 
888 788 0099 US Toll-free 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Welcome, Introductions 
[Please mute yourself when not speaking.  Please raise hand on Zoom if you have a 
question or comment.] 
 

II. Approval of Minutes  
• Approval of September 5, 2023 

 
III. Public Comments on items not on the agenda 

 
IV. New Business  

• Ad-Hoc Committee Update:  Dues structure collection discussion 
• Pros and Cons of formation of 501(c)(3) 

 
V. Old Business  

• ISDOC Annual Audit Update 
 

VI. Treasurer’s Report – Director Jacobs 
• Report of accounts 

 
VII. CSDA Report – Director Schafer or Chris Palmer 

• Receive, discuss and file the CSDA Report 
 

VIII. LAFCO Report – Director Fisler 
• Receive, discuss and file the LAFCO report 

Mailing Address 
 

P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
 
Meeting Location 
 

MWDOC/OCWD 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
 
(714) 963-3058 
(714) 964-5930 fax 
 
https://isdoc.specialdistrict.org/  
 
 
Executive Committee 
 
President  
Hon. Greg Mills 
Serrano Water District 
 
1st Vice President  
Hon. Bob McVicker 
Municipal Water District   
Orange County 
 
2nd Vice President  
Hon. Paul Mesmer 
Surfside Colony Community 
Services District 
 
3rd Vice President  
Hon. Scott Nelson 
Placentia Library District 
 
Secretary 
Vacant 
 
Treasurer 
Hon. Saundra Jacobs 
Santa Margarita Water District  
 
Immediate Past President 
Hon. Mark Monin  
El Toro Water District 
 
Staff Administration 
 
Heather Baez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County 
 
Tina Dubuque 
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County  
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3840960436
https://isdoc.specialdistrict.org/


 - 2 - 

 
IX. ACWA Report – Director Jacobs 

• Receive, discuss and file the ACWA report   
 

X. OCCOG Report – Director Scheafer 
•  Receive, discuss and file OCCOG report 

 
XI. California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Report – OCSD Representative  

• Receive, discuss and file the CASA report 
 

XII.  Subcommittee Reports  
• Programs – Director McVicker 
• Membership - Director Mesmer 
• Legislative – Trustee Nelson 

 
XIII.   Adjourn 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

. 
 

 
 Executive Committee Meeting 

(Virtual Meeting via Zoom) 
Tuesday, September 5, 2023, 7:30 a.m. 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

I. WELCOME: 
Acting President Bob McVicker called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. and welcomed all. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Bob McVicker 1st Vice President Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) 
Paul Mesmer 2nd Vice President Surfside Colony Community Services District 
Vacant Secretary  
Saundra F. Jacobs Treasurer Santa Margarita Water District (SMWD) 
Mark Monin Immediate Past President El Toro Water District (ETWD) 

 
DIRECTORS ABSENT: 

Greg Mills President Serrano Water District (SWD) 
Scott Nelson 3rd Vice President Placentia Library District 

 
SUPPORT STAFF PRESENT: 

Heather Baez MWDOC 
Tina Dubuque MWDOC 
Sharon Brimer Recording Secretary 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Amber Baylor South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 
Ed Mandich Trabuco Canyon Water District (TCWD) 
Gavin Centeno Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission (OC LAFCO) 
Jeanette Contreras Placentia Library District 
Jerry Legg Five Star Bank 
Jeremy Yamaguchi Placentia Library District 
Jim Fisler Mesa Water District (MWD) 
John Withers Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) 
Mike Gaskins ETWD 
Mike Scheafer Costa Mesa Sanitary District (CMSD) 
Stacy Taylor MWD 
Stephen Faessel Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD) 

 
II. MEETING MINUTES: 

 
MOTION: 

Motion by Director Jacobs, second Director Mesmer, to approve the meeting minutes of August 1, 
2023, Executive Committee Meeting. The motion passed unanimously. 

  



ISDOC Executive Committee Meeting of September 5, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

 
Ms. Taylor asked for the status of the scholarships. Director Jacobs responded there were no 
applicants for the scholarships.  

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS:  

• Secretary – Vacant Position 
 

• Amendment to the Bylaws 
 

Ms. Baez reported that President Mills would like the membership to consider allowing a non-
elected member to fill the position of Secretary.  The bylaws would need to be amended to allow 
for this, and then voted on by the full membership. 
 
Director Jacobs offered to serve on the Bylaws Amendment ad-hoc Committee, and the topic will 
be agendized for a future meeting. An ad hoc Committee was formed consisting of President Mills 
and Director Jacobs. 

 
V. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

• Website Maintenance ad-hoc Website Committee 
 
Director Mesmer reported Placentia Public Library Jeremy Yamaguchi is the IT support for the 
ISDOC standalone website.  
 
Mr. Yamaguchi gave an update on the development. The $750 Streamline fee was for the set-up 
and migration of information from the MWDOC website.  
 
Director Jacobs offered she is working with Mr. Yamaguchi to implement online payments.  
 
Director Mesmer offered the plan is to keep the MWDOC site active for meeting dates and 
posting agendas and include a link to the standalone website. The standalone website will be 
more comprehensive. The goal is to bring the standalone website live January 1, 2024. At some 
point, the MWDOC site would contain only skeleton ISDOC information and a link to the ISDOC 
standalone site.  
 
There was a request for members to send photos to enhance the website. Photos should be sent 
to Director Mesmer, Jeanette Contreras, or Jeremy Yamaguchi. 
 
An update was requested for next month. 
 

• Members' Dues ad-hoc Committee Update 
 

Directors Mesmer and Monin attended the CSDA chapter roundtable that addressed dues and 
brought back information that could help ISDOC formulate its policy.   
 



ISDOC Executive Committee Meeting of September 5, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

A discussion ensued on the amount of dues to collect and the advantages/disadvantages of 
forming a 501 (c ) (3). This topic will be on the October 2023 agenda.  
 
A suggestion was made for the ad-hoc Committee to present a recommendation on initiating a 
dues structure for the next Executive Committee. 

 
VI. TREASURER'S REPORT: DIRECTOR JACOBS 

 
Director Jacobs reported the August 31, 2023, bank balance was $8,416.09. There was one expense of 
$750 paid to Streamline. The OCCOG dues invoice for $1,000 has not been paid.  
 
Director Jacobs noted the Bylaws state the need for an annual audit. Director McVicker asked for 
members to reach out to their Finance Departments for a volunteer to perform the ISDOC Annual 
Audit. Contact Director Jacobs with volunteer information.  
 

VII. CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION (CSDA) REPORT – DIRECTOR SCHAFER OR CHRIS 
PALMER 

 
No report for this meeting 
 

VIII. LAFCO REPORT: DIRECTOR FISLER 
 
Director Fisler reported the next meeting was scheduled for September 13, 2023. On the upcoming 
agenda: 
• Legislative Report 
• Policy and Guidelines for Conducting Protest Hearings 
• Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Berkson and Associates 

 
Fiscal Indicators have been added to the Municipal Service Reviews (MSR) with the fourth cycle of 
MSRs established for Year 2023-24. There are links on the OC LAFCO website to the MSR schedule. 

 
IX. ACWA REPORT: DIRECTOR JACOBS 
 

Director Jacobs reported: 
• The voting deadline is September 15, 2023, and winners will be announced on September 17, 

2023. 
• Cathy Green, Director of Orange County Water District, is running for ACWA President. 
• Ernesto A. Avila, Director of Contra Costa Water District, is running for ACWA Vice President. 
• Michael Saunders, Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, is running for ACWA Vice President. 
• Region 10 ballots were emailed out. 
• Committee appointments are not automatic, and anyone wishing to serve on a committee must 

submit their name for consideration by September 30, 2023.  
• ACWA  State Legislative Committee meeting  to discuss AB 755 (Papan) is scheduled for 

September 6, 2023.. This will be a Zoom meeting.  
• ACWA Paving Standards Working Group is working to address paving and underground utilities 

standards.  
• The Housing Densification Working Group is developing a webpage to provide information to 

elected officials about the utility implications of Alternate Dwelling Units (ADUs).  
• Region 6 and 7 tours are scheduled for October. It will start and end at Harris Ranch.  



ISDOC Executive Committee Meeting of September 5, 2023 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

• The ACWA Fall Conference is November 28 - 30, 2023, in Indian Wells, CA. 
• Tani Cantil-Sakauye is the new president and CEO of the Public Policy Institute of California 

(PPIC) and will be the headline speaker at the ACWA Conference.   
 

Ms. Taylor offered that AB 755 erodes local control and rate-making authority. It would require 
agencies to perform calculations they might not otherwise do on just 10% of the largest water users.   
 

X. ORANGE COUNTY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (OCCOG) REPORT: DIRECTOR SCHEAFER 
 

Director Scheafer reported OCCOG Executive Director Marnie O'Brien Primmer offered to attend an 
ISDOC Executive Committee meeting to provide the ISDOC members with information about OCCOG 
and its value to ISDOC members. 
 
Director Scheafer reported that the Court addressed the OCCOG lawsuit against the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) housing needs assessment, and it ruled that the 
Department of Housing and Community Development methods were appropriate. OCCOG is 
proceeding with litigation to the Supreme Court 
 
Director Scheafer provided an update on SB 617 (Newman). This bill gives authority to water districts 
to use progressive design-build for water conveyances. OCCOG supports this bill. 
 
It was requested that Ms. Primmer attend the October meeting to present on the benefits of OCCOG 
membership.  
 

XI. CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SANITATION AGENCIES (CASA) REPORT 
 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority Director of Environmental Compliance Amber Baylor 
provided an update: 
• The CASA Engineering and Research Committee is preparing a new statewide water research 

roadmap or strategic plan.  
 

XII. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 

• Programs – Director McVicker  
 
Invitations to the September 28, 2023, Quarterly Meeting were sent last week. As of September 5, 
2023, 17 people have registered. The speaker will be Orange County Transportation Authority 
CEO Darrell Johnson, and the subject is OCTA 101. This event will be catered by Mendocino Farms 
Restaurant and Catering.  
 

• Membership – Director Mesmer 
 
There were no new Associate Members this month. 
 
Associate member Complete Paper Solutions will be one presenter at the September 28, 2023, 
quarterly meeting.  
 

• Legislative Update – Trustee Nelson. 
 



ISDOC Executive Committee Meeting of September 5, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 

Placentia Library District Library Director Jeanette Contreras provided the following information: 
o Ballot Initiative 21-0042A1 9 (AKA 1935) "Taxpayer Protection and Government

Accountability Act" – sponsored by California Business Roundtable. This initiative has
qualified for the ballot. It limits the ability of the state and local governments to enact,
modify, or expand taxes, assessments, fees, and property-related charges. If passed,
public agencies could face a drastic rise in litigation that could severely restrict their
ability to meet essential services and infrastructure needs and the ability of voters to raise
revenues. It would affect State, County, and Special Districts. It would be retroactive to
January 2021. CSDA takes no position on this initiative.

o Viable grants for districts to consider: AmeriCorps, which is due January 4, 2024, and well
as the Forest Service Inflation Reduction Act, which is due August 21, 2024. Check the
CSDA website for available grants.

XIII. ADJOURN:

Acting President McVicker thanked the attendees and staff for their participation and assistance. The
meeting was adjourned at 8:25 a.m.

The next Quarterly Meeting is September 28, 2023, at 11:30 a.m., and it is in-person at
OCWD/MWDOC facility in Fountain Valley, CA.

The next ISDOC Executive Committee meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 3, 2023, at 7:30 a.m.
via Zoom.

Signed: 

ISDOC 1st Vice President, Robert R. McVicker 



 
 

 
Virtual Water Advisory Committee of Orange County (WACO) 

Meeting 
 

Friday, October 6, 2023 
7:30 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Zoom Registration: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZ0qfu6vrzspE90ilDOiPDIYl
vSrVxIbU4BR#/registration  

  
………………………………………..………….. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Welcome & Announcements 
 

• Mark Monin, El Toro Water District 
 

2. Reports  
 

• Water Emergency Response of Orange County 
(WEROC) – Vicki Osborn, MWDOC 

 

• Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MET) 
–Linda Ackerman, MWDOC  

 

• Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) – 
Cathy Green, OCWD   

 
3. Program 
 

Airborne Electromagnetic Surveys to Support the Recharge of 
California’s Groundwater 

 
Speaker: Professor Rosemary Knight, Stanford University 

 
4. Adjourn 

………………………………………..………….. 
 

Next WACO Meeting 
 

Friday, November 3, 2023 at 7:30 a.m. via Zoom 
 
Next WACO Planning Committee Meeting 
 
Tuesday, October 17, 2023 at 7:30 a.m. via Zoom 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

      

Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Mark Monin 
El Toro Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Greg Mills 
Serrano Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
 
Medha Paliwal / Dani Berch 
Orange County Water District (OCWD) 
(714) 378-3200 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco 
 
Heather Baez / Christina Hernandez  
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
(MWDOC) 
(714) 963-3058 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
 
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZ0qfu6vrzspE90ilDOiPDIYlvSrVxIbU4BR#/registration
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZ0qfu6vrzspE90ilDOiPDIYlvSrVxIbU4BR#/registration


 
 

 

  
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
   

WACO Planning Committee 
Tuesday, October 17, 2023 at 7:30 A.M. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/92882659982  

Meeting ID: 928 8265 9982   
Phone Audio: 669-900-9128 

 
AGENDA 

 
WELCOME 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Confirmed: November 3, 2023 WACO Meeting  
o Reports: WEROC, MET, ACWA 
o Program: OC San’s Supercritical Water Oxidation Pilot Project, Advanced 

Treatment and Contaminants of Emerging Concern (such as microplastics) 
o Speaker: Rob Thompson, P.E., General Manager, Orange County Sanitation 

District  
 

2. Confirmed: December 8, 2023 WACO Meeting (2nd Friday of the month):   
o Reports: WEROC, MET, CSDA, ACWA 
o Program: Colorado River/IID 
o Speakers: JB Hamby, Board of Directors Vice President, IID/Chairman of the 

Colorado River Board of California and Tina Shields, Water Department 
Manager, IID 
 

3. Tentative: January 5, 2024 WACO Meeting  
o Reports: WEROC, MET, ACWA 
o Program: Snowpack/Snow Melt: How Did We Do? (speakers TBD) 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  

1. Review draft 2024 WACO meeting dates (see attachment and highlighted areas for 
discussion)  
 

2. Annual Chair and Vice Chair elections process  
 

3. Discuss potential topics for future meetings:  
o Salton Sea w/ members from the Salton Sea Authority  
o Aggregation of water rights  
o San Joaquin blueprint  
o Groundwater storage 
o California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS) 
o San Joaquin Valley Water Collaborative Action Program (CAP) (Tim Quinn)  
o Offshore desalination, subsea reverse osmosis (SSRO) technology w/ Ocean 

Well Water (Tim Quinn) 
o Hawaii Case Study: What Happened and How Do We Avoid it Here?  
o Weather issues: El Nino, hotter temperatures, mega floods – possible speakers:  

• Daniel Swain, UCLA Climate Scientist  
• Jay Lund, CALVIN Model  

o Media training/crisis communications   
o LAFCO situation in San Diego – what happened, where did it end up 
o Electrification, advanced car fleets, air quality  
o Desal in CA: Present & Future – CalDesal Executive Director Glenn Farrel 
o Global Warming: Natural or Manmade? w/ speaker Roy Spencer, Ph.D., 

Climatologist, Author & Former NASA Scientist (can also speak to related topics 
such as Urbanizations Effects on Temperatures and Colorado River shortages)  

o Updating California Water Laws to Address Drought and Climate Change w/ 
Holly Doremus, Professor of Law, Berkeley  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
Meeting Location 
Virtual - Zoom 
 
(714) 378-8232 
(714) 963-0291 fax 
 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco   
 
 
Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Mark Monin 
El Toro Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Greg Mills  
Serrano Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts: 
 
Medha Paliwal/Dani Berch  
Orange County Water District 
 
Heather Baez/Christina Hernandez 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/92882659982


 - 2 - 

 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Discussion of October 6 meeting: Airborne Electromagnetic Surveys to Support the 

Recharge of California’s Groundwater 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

1. WACO meetings: Zoom meeting ID and meeting link change monthly 
 

2. Planning meetings: Zoom link is the same every month 
 

3. Meeting materials are posted at: https://www.mwdoc.com/waco/  
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.mwdoc.com/waco/


DATES TO REMEMBER   

OCTOBER/NOVEMBER 2023  

 

1. Oct 27 – 12 noon – Pres/VP/GM Meeting 

2. Nov 1 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop 

3. Nov 3 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO 

4. Nov 3 – 11:30 a.m. – SOCEC Lunch (Norman Murray Center) 

5. Nov 3 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

6. Nov 5 – DAYLIGHT SAVINGS TIME ENDS (Fall Back 1 Hour) 

7. Nov 6 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Planning/Operations 

8. Nov 6 – 1:30 p.m. – SOCWMA Management Committee 

9. Nov 7 – 7:30 a.m. – ISDOC Executive Committee 

10. Nov 8 – 8:15 a.m. – LAFCO 

11. Nov 8 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Admin/Finance 

12. Nov 9 – 11:30 a.m. – CAG 

13. Nov 9 – 2:30 p.m. – South OC Watershed Management Meeting 

14. Nov 10 – Veterans Day Holiday – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

15. Nov 13 – 11:00 a.m. – Agenda Review  

16. Nov 15 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Board Meeting 

17. Nov 16 – 10:30 a.m. – MWDOC Managers Meeting 

18. Nov 17 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

19. Nov 20 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Engineering/Finance Committee 

20. Nov 21 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

21. Nov 21 – 12 noon – South County Agencies Meeting 

22. Nov 23 – 24 – THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY/DISTRICT CLOSED 

23. Nov 27 – 30 – ACWA FALL CONFERENCE (Indian Wells) 

 


























	October 26, 2023 Board Agenda
	Item #3 - Consent Calendar
	September 26, 2023- Special Bd Minutes
	September 28, 2023 - Board Minutes

	Item #5 - Res No 23-10-2 - BOARD MEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS
	Item #6 - GM report
	GM - Page 1
	GM - Potable and RW Sales
	GM - Customer service report
	GM - water_supply_conditions
	GM Report - WILL SERVE SUMMARY REPORT

	Item #7 - Legislative reports
	2a NRR Board Report 10.23
	2b SDA Report, Oct 2023
	2c Ackerman Consulting Oct 2023 Report
	2d WPAA September 2023 report
	2e MWDOC Bill Matrix, Oct 2023
	2f MWD Bill Matrix, Oct 2023

	Item #8 - Public Education and Outreach Report
	Item #9 - Water Use Efficiency Report
	Item #10 - SOCWA
	SOCWA - Oct 5, 2023
	0 - Notice Board Agenda_2023.10.05

	SOCWA - Oct 12, 2023
	0 - Notice ECM_2023.10.12
	3 - EC Staff Report Meeting Minutes
	3a - Draft Engr Committee Minutes 2023.09.14
	4 - Staff Report Operations Report
	5 - Staff Report JBL Package B Update
	6 - Staff Report CIP Construction Report October
	6a - CIP Construction Report October Revised
	CIP Construction Report October
	CIP Construction Report October COs
	CIP Construction Report ACCO Seal Replacement

	7 - Staff Report Award for CTP Diffusers Replacement
	8 - Staff Report Award for JBL Centrate Line Upgrades
	9 - Staff Report ETM Trail Bridge Crossing Contract Amendment
	9a - Tetra Tech Trail Bridge ETM Crossing MOD 3
	SOW for MOD 3 SOCWA ETM Trail Bridge Crossing 20230908
	Tetra Tech Team Trail Bridge ETM Crossing Fee Estimate_2023MOD3

	10 - Staff Report RTP Backup Power
	10a - TM Standby Generation Study_Certified
	Technical Memorandum STANDBY GENERATION STUDY
	Technical Memorandum STANDBY GENERATION STUDY
	INTRODUCTION
	EXISTING DISTRIBUTION AND STANDBY POWER SYSTEM
	STANDBY PROCESS ASSESSMENT
	UTILITY POWER OUTAGE ANALYSIS
	STANDBY POWER ANALYSIS
	CENTRALIZED STANDBY GENERATION
	Benefits of open transition:
	Benefits of closed transition:

	DISTRIBUTED STANDBY GENERATION
	BLOWER STANDBY POWER
	ISLANDING EXISTING COGEN SYSTEM
	MAINTENANCE, TESTING, FUEL STORAGE, AND EMISSIONS
	10.1 Maintenance
	10.2 Testing
	10.3 Fuel Storage
	10.4 Emissions

	RECOMMENDATIONS
	PORTABLE GENERATOR CONNECTION DESIGN FEE ESTIMATE
	Regional Treatment Plant




	Item #11 - MWDOC
	MWDOC - Oct 2, 2023
	MWDOC - Oct 4, 2023
	MWDOC - Oct 11, 2023
	MWDOC - Oct 18, 2023
	Agenda
	7 GM Report - October 2023

	MWDOC - Oct 19, 2023

	Item #12 - Sep 28 2023 SOCAG Agenda
	Item #13 - LAFCO
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, October 11, 2023
	8:15 a.m.
	County Administrative North (CAN)
	First Floor Multipurpose Room 101
	400 W. Civic Center Drive, Santa Ana, CA 92701
	Any member of the public may request to speak on any agenda item at the time the Commission is considering the item.


	Item #14 - ISDOC
	ISDOC
	ISDOC - part 2

	Item #15 - WACO
	WACO - Oct 6, 2023
	WACO - Oct 17, 2023
	WACO Planning Committee


	Item #16 - DATES TO REMEMBER- Oct - Nov 2023
	ETWD Glossary of Water Terms - Acronyms



